## Yale University Library Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library

# Guide to the George Eliot and George Henry Lewes Collection

**GEN MSS 963** 



by Gordon S. Haight and Marjorie G. Wynne

1975, updated 2022

P. O. Box 208330 New Haven, CT 06520-8330 (203) 432-2977 beinecke.library@yale.edu/ http://beinecke.library.yale.edu/

### **Table of Contents**

Collection Overview	3
Requesting Instructions	3
Administrative Information	4
Immediate Source of Acquisition	
Conditions Governing Access	
Conditions Governing Use	
Preferred Citation	
Processing Information	4
Scope and Contents	4
Arrangement	5
Collection Contents	
Section I. Letters by GEORGE ELIOT to:	
Section II. Letters by GEORGE HENRY LEWES to:	
Section III. Letters to/about GEORGE ELIOT & GEORGE HENRY LEWES	
Section IV. George Eliot. WRITINGS, 1854-1861	
Section V. George Eliot. WRITINGS. DRAMATIZATIONS.	
Section VI. George Henry Lewes. WRITINGS, 1856 July 24-1859 March 31	
Section VII. George Eliot. ASSOCIATION ITEMS	
Section VIII. George Eliot. WRITINGS ABOUT	
Section IX. George Eliot. SPECIAL FILES	
Section X. George Henry Lewes. SPECIAL FILES	
Section XI. May 2022 Addition	
Correspondence, 1833-1918	
Letters by GEORGE ELIOT to:	
Letters by GEORGE HENRY LEWES to:	
Letters to/about GEORGE ELIOT & GEORGE HENRY LEWES	
Writings, 1853-1880	
Other Papers, 1842-1919	
Selected Search Terms	135

#### Collection Overview

**REPOSITORY:** Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library

P.O. Box 208330

New Haven, CT 06520-8330

(203) 432-2977

beinecke.library@yale.edu http://beinecke.library.yale.edu/

**CALL NUMBER: GEN MSS 963** 

CREATOR: Eliot, George, 1819-1880

**TITLE:** George Eliot and George Henry Lewes collection

**DATES:** 1834-1981

**PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION:** 18.14 linear feet (67 boxes)

LANGUAGE: English

**SUMMARY:** The collection includes correspondence by, to and about George Eliot and

George Henry Lewes. There are four journals, one diary, several notebooks with notes for a projected novel, quotes, poetry, and early school essays all belonging to George Eliot, accompanied by reviews and scripts of dramatizations of *Daniel Deronda* in the 1920s and 1970s. With three journals, nine diaries, and notebooks with research notes belonging to George Henry Lewes, accompanied by miscellaneous writings, including several chapters of *Problems of Life and Mind*. There is also printed material, reviews, memorabilia, and photograph portraits of Eliot and Lewes as well as artwork by others. Principal correspondents include members of the Lewes family, Caroline and Charles Bray, John Emerich Edward Dalberg Acton, Barbara Leigh Smith Bodichon, John Chapman, Anna Chalmers and J. W. Cross, Alexandre D'Albert-Durade, Frederic Harrison, Sara Sophia Hennell, Frances Lucy Evans Houghton, Maria Lewis, Edward Robert Bulwer Lytton,

Herbert Spencer, and Anthony Trollope.

**ONLINE FINDING AID:** To cite or bookmark this finding aid, please use the following link: https://

hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/beinecke.eliot

#### **Requesting Instructions**

To request items from this collection for use in the Beinecke Library reading room, please use the request links in the HTML version of this finding aid, available at <a href="https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/beinecke.eliot">https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/beinecke.eliot</a>.

To order reproductions from this collection, please send an email with the call number, box number(s), and folder number(s) to <a href="mailto:beinecke.images@yale.edu">beinecke.images@yale.edu</a>.

Key to the container abbreviations used in the PDF finding aid:

b. box

#### **Administrative Information**

#### **Immediate Source of Acquisition**

Acquired by gift and purchase from various sources.

#### **Conditions Governing Access**

The materials are open for research.

#### **Conditions Governing Use**

The George Eliot and George Henry Lewes Collection is the physical property of the Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library, Yale University. Literary rights, including copyright, belong to the authors or their legal heirs and assigns. For further information, consult the appropriate curator.

#### **Preferred Citation**

George Eliot and George Henry Lewes Collection. General Collection, Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library.

#### **Processing Information**

The collection is comprised of material formerly classed as: MS Vault Eliot.

This finding aid was created in the early 1980s as a typewritten list, and was converted into a ASCII data file by means of scanning and Optical Character Recognition software in the 1990s. While attempts were made to retain the complete information from the original document, a number of format changes were made to present the structure of this archive in accordance with current practice. Additional changes were made in 2020 to make the description compatible with current systems.

Microfilms of manuscripts owned by other libraries or individuals formerly held in this collection (as Section XI. Films of Manuscripts) were discarded by curatorial request April 1997.

The May 2022 Addition (Section XI) consists of material formerly classed as: Uncat MS Vault 653, Uncat MS Vault 715, and Uncat MS Vault 745.

#### **Scope and Contents**

After George Eliot's death there were four principal groups of her manuscripts and private papers held by the families of Evans, Blackwood, Lewes, and Cross. Her family letters were at Derby in the hands of her grandnieces, the Evans sisters. Her long correspondence about the publication of her books was in the Edinburgh office of William Blackwood and Sons, who have since deposited it in the National Library of Scotland. The Blackwoods also owned the manuscript of Scenes of Clerical Life, which was sold in 1911 to the Pierpont Morgan Library. The manuscripts of her other works George Eliot bequeathed with all her literary rights to Charles Lee Lewes, her residuary legatee and sole executor of her estate. In 1891 his widow presented these manuscripts (except for "Brother Jacob" and "A College Breakfast-Party"), bound in 24 volumes, to the British Museum. On June 27, 1923 her three daughters sold many of the remaining George Eliot papers at Sotheby's; they were widely dispersed.

Charles Lewes had lent George Eliot's letters and journals to John Walter Cross, who was writing George Eliot's Life (1885). Apparently believing that they belonged to him, Cross retained them. On his death in

1924 they passed to his niece Miss Elsie Druce, who during the 1930's disposed of most of them in several sales at Sotheby's. Through the zealous interest of Professor Chauncey Brewster Tinker, who had been appointed Keeper of Rare Books in 1930, many of them were purchased for Yale. In that year he secured the largest single group, consisting of 620 letters to the Brays and the Hennells, which with 46 early letters to Maria Lewis formed the nucleus of the Yale collection. In 1931 George Eliot's Commonplace Book and her most important Journal (1854-61) were also acquired, as well as her Diary for 1880, and the travel journals of her trips to Germany (1858), to Italy (1860 and 1864), and to Normandy (1865). From his own collection Mr. Tinker gave among other manuscripts George Eliot's Journal (1861-77). Yale thus has all the extant journals and diaries except the diary for 1879, which is in the Berg Collection at the New York Public Library.

From Lewes's last surviving granddaughter Mrs. E. Carrington Ouvry (1877-1974), Yale secured the manuscript of "Brother Jacob" bound with that of "A College Breakfast-Party", and George Eliot's translation of Spinoza's Ethics. Of the greatest value to scholars are all of Lewes's extant journals and diaries except that for 1878, of which there is a microfilm. The manuscripts of five of Lewes's plays are included in the collection. There are several notebooks used for his Biographical History of Philosophy and Goethe's Life, and for his work on physiology and psychology, as well as many fragments of his Problems of Life and Mind, of which George Eliot completed and published the final volume.

Autograph letters have been added continually since the collection began. In 1975 there were more than 1,030 by George Eliot and 220 by G. H. Lewes. Of letters to and about them there were more than 1,040. The earliest family letters, including the only known one to George Eliot's father, were purchased in 1969 from the widow of his great-grandson Robert Evans, and George Eliot's letters to John Walter Cross and his family were purchased from Miss Druce's heir, Mr. Ian Maclean, in 1970.

[above written by] Gordon S. Haight.

#### Arrangement

Organized into eleven sections: I. Letters by George Eliot to: II. Letters by George Henry Lewes to: III. Letters to and about George Eliot and George Henry Lewes. IV. George Eliot. Writings. V. George Eliot. Writings. Dramatizations. VI. George Henry Lewes. Writings. VII. George Eliot. Association Items. VIII. George Eliot. Writings About. IX. George Eliot. Special Files. X. George Henry Lewes. Special Files. XII. May 2022 Addition.

# Collection Contents Section I. Letters by GEORGE ELIOT to:

Allingham, William, 1824-1839

	7 minghan, 44 man, 102 1 103 7	
b. 1	<u>Letter</u>	1877 Feb 13
b. 1	Letter	1877 May 21
b. 1	Amberley, Katharine Louisa (Stanley); Russell, viscountess, 1842-1874	1868 Apr 29
b. 1	Barclay, Martha (Jackson); (Mrs. Henry Barclay) LETTERS FROM A TOWN MOUSE TO A COUNTRY MOUSE	1841 Mar?
	Tinker 870	
b. <b>1</b>	Belloc, Elizabeth [Bessie] Rayner (Parkes), 1829-1925 (Mme Louis Belloc)	[1870] Dec 29
b. 1	Beneke, Miss	1880 Mar 19
	Blackwood, John, 1818-1879	
b. <b>1</b>	<u>Letter</u>	1861 Mar 23
b. 1	<u>Letter</u>	1869 May 11
b. 1	Letter	1878 Jan 26
b. 1	Letter	1878 Jul 30
b. 1	Letter	1879 Jan 13
b. 1	<u>Letter</u>	1879 Oct 6
b. 1	Blackwood, William, 1836-1912	1868 Mar 15
b. 1	Bodichon, Barbara (Leigh Smith) 1827-1891 (Mme Eugène Bodichon)	[1861 Sep 3]
b. <b>1</b>	Bond, Edward Augustus, 1815-1898	1874 Mar 19
b. 1	Bowen, Charles Synge Christopher 1835-1894	1872 Jan 18
	Bray, Charles & Bray, Caroline (Hennell); Bray, Charles, 1811-1884; Bray, Caroline (Hennell), 1814-1905.	1842-1880
	Unless otherwise indicated the letters are addressed to Mr. & Mrs. Bray. Several letters, as indicated, are also addressed to Miss Sara Sophia Hennell.	
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1842 Feb]
b. 1	<u>Letter to Mrs. Bray</u>	[1842 Mar 6]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1842 Mar 12?]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1842 Sep]
b. 1	<u>Letter to Mrs. Bray</u>	[1842 Dec]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1842? Dec]

b.1	Letter, Wednesday, to Mrs. Bray	[1843 Nov 8]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1843] Nov 20
b.1	Letter, Friday, to Mrs. Bray	[1843 Nov 24]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1843 Nov 30
b.1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1844 Jun 18]
b.1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1845 May?]
b.1	<u>Letter to Mrs. Bray</u>	[1845 May 25]
b.1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1846 Jun 1]
b.1	<u>Letter, Wednesday Mrs. Bray</u> The "Bücherworm letter," published in the <i>Gazette</i> , July 1971]	[1846 Oct 21]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1847] Oct 3
b.1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1848] May 31
b. 1	Letter, Monday, to Mr. Bray	[1848 Jun 5]
b. 1	Letter to the Brays, Sara & Charles C. Hennell	[1848] Jun 8
b. 1	Letter, Sunday, to Mr. Bray	[1848 Jun 11]
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1849 May]
b.1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Wednesday	[1849 May 30]
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1849] Jul 27
b.1	Letter to the Brays & Miss Hennell	[1849] Aug 5
b.1	Letter to the Brays & Miss Hennell	[1849] Aug 20
b.1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1849] Aug 28
b.1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1849] Sep 13
b.1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1849] Sep 20
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1849] Oct 4
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1849 Oct 11]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1849 Oct 24]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1849 Oct 26]
b. 1	Letter to the Brays & Miss Hennell	[1849 Dec 4]
b. 1	Letter to the Brays & Miss Hennell	[1849 Dec 22]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	1850 Jan 28

b.1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1850 Feb 15]
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1850] Mar 1
b. 1	Letter, Wednesday, to Mrs. Bray	[1850 Apr 24]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1850 Nov 30]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1851 Jan 8]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1851 Feb 15]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1851 Oct 4]
b.1	Letter, Wednesday, to Mr. Bray	[1851 Oct 8]
b. 1	Letter to the Brays & Miss Hennell	[1851 Oct 22]
b.1	Letter to the Brays & Miss Hennell	1851 Nov 21
b.1	<u>Letter to Mrs. Bray</u>	[1851] Nov 27
b. 1	Letter, Saturday, to Mrs. Bray	[1851 Dec 20]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Tuesday	[1851 Dec 23]
b.1	<u>Letter to Mrs. Bray</u>	[1852] Jan 12
b.1	<u>Letter to Mrs. Bray</u>	[1852 Jan 23]
b. 1	Letter, Friday, to Mr. Bray	[1852 Jan 30]
b. 1	Letter, Monday, to the Brays & Miss Hennell	[1852 Feb 2]
b. 1	Letter, Saturday, to Mrs. Bray	[1852 Feb 7]
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1852] Feb 16
b.1	Letter, Saturday, to Mrs. Bray	[1852 Feb 28]
b.1	Letter, Monday, to Mr. Bray	[1852 Mar 8]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1852 Mar 29]
b. 1	Letter, Tuesday, to Mrs. Bray	[1852 Mar 30]
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1852] Apr 17
b.1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Monday	[1852 Apr 26]
b.1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Tuesday	[1852 Apr 27]
b.1	Letter, Saturday, to the Brays & Miss Hennell	[1852 May 1]
b.1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Wednesday	[1852] May 5
b.1	Letter, Thursday morning, Mrs. Bray	[1852 May 13]
b.1	Letter, Monday, to Mr. Bray	[1852 May 17]

b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Monday	[1852 May 24]
b.1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1852] May 27
b.1	Letter, Wednesday, to the Brays & Miss Hennell	[1852 Jun 2]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Saturday	[1852 Jun 5]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Monday	[1852 Jun 14]
b. 1	Letter to the Brays & Miss Hennell	1852 Jun 21
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1852] Jun 23
b. 1	Letter, Tuesday, Mr. Bray	[1852 Jun 29]
b. 1	Letter, Wednesday, to Mr. Bray	[1852 Jun 30]
b. 1	Letter, Friday morning, to Mrs. Bray	[1852 Jul 2]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1852 Jul 4]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1852] Jul 13
b. 1	Letter, Wednesday, to Mr. Bray	[1852 Jul 14]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	1852 Jul 21
b.1	<u>Letter to Mr. Bray</u>	[1852 Jul 29]
b. 1	Letter, Thursday, to Mrs. Bray	[1852 Aug 12]
b. 1	Letter, Saturday, to Mrs. Bray	[1852 Sep 11]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1852 Sep 18]
b. 1	Letter, Saturday, the Brays & Miss Hennell	[1852 Oct 2]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1852 Oct 2]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	1852 Oct 7
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	1852 Oct 12
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Thursday	[1852 Oct 21]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Saturday	[1852 Oct 24]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1852 Nov 6]
b. 1	Letter, Thursday, to Mrs. Bray	[1852 Nov 11]
b.1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Saturday	[1852 Nov 13]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Monday	[1852 Nov 22]
b.1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1852 Dec 4]
b.1	Letter, Monday, to Mr. Bray	[1852 Dec 6]

b. 1	Letter, Monday night, to Mr. Bray	[1852 Dec 6]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Friday night	[1852 Dec 10]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1852 Dec 18]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1852] Dec 21
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1852 Dec 25]
b. 1	Letter to the Brays & Miss Hennell	[1852 Dec 31]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1853 Jan 3]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1853 Jan 8]
b. 1	Letter, Saturday, to the Brays & Miss Hennell	[1853 Jan 15]
b. 1	Letter, Monday morning, to Mr. Bray	[1853 Jan 17]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1853 Jan 22]
b. 1	Letter, Monday morning, to Mr. Bray	[1853 Jan 24]
b. 1	Letter, Tuesday, to Mr. Bray	[1853 Jan 25]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1853 Jan 29]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1853 Feb 15]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Saturday	[1853 Feb 19]
b.1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Saturday	[1853 Feb 26]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	1853 Mar 5
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1853 Mar 12]
b. 1	Letter, Friday, to Mr. Bray	[1853 Mar 18]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1853 Mar 30]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1853 Apr 11]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1853 Apr 16]
b.1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1853 Apr 30]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Monday	[1853 May 2]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1853 May 4]
b.1	Letter, Wednesday, to Mr. Bray	[1853 May 25]
b.1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1853 May 30]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1853 Jun 13]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray & Miss Hennell	[1853 Jun 17]

b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1853 Aug 3]
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1853] Aug 9
b.1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1853 Aug 12?]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1853 Aug 21]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray, Saturday	[1853 Sep 17]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1853 Sep 19]
b.1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1853 Oct 20]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1853 Oct 29]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1853] Nov 3
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1853 Nov 5]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1853 Nov 15]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1853 Dec 2
b. 1	Letter, Friday morning, to Mr. Bray	[1853 Dec 9]
b.1	Letter, Thursday, to Mrs. Bray	[1853 Dec 29]
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	1854 Jan 12
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1854] Feb 6
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	1854 Mar 15
b. 1	Letter, Saturday, to Mrs. Bray	[1854] Apr 18
b. 1	Letter, Friday, to Mrs. Bray	[1854 May 19]
b. 1	Letter, Saturday, to Mr. Bray	[1854 May 27]
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1854 Jun 6]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1854 Jun 8]
b. 1	Letter, Wednesday, to Mrs. Bray	[1854 Jun 28]
b.1	Letter, Monday, to Mrs. Bray	[1854 Jul 3]
b. 1	Letter, Friday, to Mr. Bray	[1854 Jul 14]
b.1	Letter, Wednesday, to the Brays & Miss Hennell	[1854 Jul 19]
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1854 Nov 3]
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	1855 May 1
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	1855 May 7
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1855] Jun 23

b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1855] Sep 4
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	1855 Sep 13
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1855 Oct]
b. 1	Letter, Monday, to Mr. Bray	[1855 Oct 15]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	1855 Nov 21
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	1856 Jan 1
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1856] Mar 26
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	1856 Mar 31
b. 1	Tuesday Mr. Bray	[1856 Apr 1]
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	1856 Jun 6
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	1856 Aug 6
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1856] Sep 1
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1856] Sep 5
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1856 Oct]
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1856] Nov 28
b. 1	Letter, Wednesday, to Mr. Bray	[1856 Dec 2]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1856] Dec 29
b. 1	Letter, Saturday, to Mr. Bray	[1857 Jan]
b.1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1857] Apr 5
b. 1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1857 Jun 5
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	1857 Oct 30
b. 1	Letter, Friday, to Mrs. Bray	[1857 Oct 30]
b. 1	Letter to Mr. Bray	1857 Nov 15
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	1857 Dec 23
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1858] Mar 25
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1858 Mar 29]
b.1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1858 Mar 29]
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1858] Mar 31
b.1	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1858] Oct 13
b.1	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1858 Nov 26

b.1	Letter, Christmas Day, to Mr. Bray	[1858 Dec 25]
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1859] Feb 22
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1859] Feb 24
b. 2	Letter to Mr. and Mrs. Bray	[1859] Feb 27 [i.e. 28]
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1859] Mar 8
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1859 Mar 11]
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1859 Mar 21]
b. 2	Letter, Saturday evening, to Mr. Bray	[1859 Jun 18]
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray, On verso of letter from GHL to Mr. Bray	[1859 Jun 24]
b. 2	Letter, Monday evening, to the Brays & Miss Hennell	[1859 Jun 27]
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	1859 Jul 5
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	1859 Jul 23
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1859] Jul 26
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1859] Aug 20
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1859] Aug 23
b. 2	Letter, Wednesday, to Mr. Bray	[1859 Sep 7]
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	1859 Sep 18
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1859 Sep 19]
b. 2	Monday Mr. Bray	[1859 Sep 26]
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray with postscript by GHL	[1859 Sep 28]
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1859 Sep 30]
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1859 Oct 3?]
b. 2	Monday Mr. Bray	[1859 Nov 21?]
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1859] Nov 25
b. 2	Tuesday Mr. Bray	[1860 Jan 3]
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1860 Jul 10]
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1860] Jul 14
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	1860 Jul 18
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1860 Jul 30]
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1860 Sep 11

b. 2	Letter, Tuesday evening, to Mrs. Bray	[1860 Sep 18]
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1861] Mar 19
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1861 Jul 8
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1861] Jul 13
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	1861 Aug 21
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1862 Jan 13
b. 2	Letter, Thursday, to Mrs. Bray	[1862 Feb 6]
b. 2	Letter, Saturday evening, to Mrs. Bray	[1862 May 10?]
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	1862 Dec 29
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	1862 [i.e. 1863] Apr 16
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1862 [i.e. 1863] May 12
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1863 Jun 1
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray & Miss Hennell	1863 Sep 1
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1863 Sep 27
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1863 Nov 14
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1863 Dec 4
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1863 Dec 26
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1864 Mar 7]
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1864 May 2
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	1864 Dec 15
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	1864 Dec 28
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1865 Mar 18
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1865] May 27
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1856 [i.e. 1865] July 31
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1865] Nov 10
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1866 Jun 5
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1866 Dec 26
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1867 Mar 25
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1867 Apr 6

b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	[1867] Jul 12
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1867] Jul 16
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1867 Nov 10
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1867 Dec 7]
b. 2	Letter, Tuesday morning, to Mrs. Bray	[1868 Mar 10]
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1868 May 7
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1868 Oct 11
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1868 Nov 30
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	1868 Dec 19
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1869 Jun 13
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1869?] Jul 11
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1869 Jul 22
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1869 Aug 21
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1869] Aug 23
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1869 Oct 20
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1871] Feb 27
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1871 Apr 3
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1871 Jul 25
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1871 Aug 3
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1871 Oct 6
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1872] Apr ]5
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1873 Mar 20
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1873 Mar 22
b. 2	Letter to Mr. Bray	1873 Apr 14
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1873 Jun 2
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1873 Sep 2
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	[1873 Sep 11]
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1873 Oct 10
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1873 Dec 22
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1874 Feb 17

b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1874 Mar 25
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1874 May 29
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1874 Nov 23
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1874 Nov 24
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1875 Jan 14
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1876 Feb 3
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1876 Dec 21
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1877 Mar 20
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1877 Nov 23
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1878 Jun 7
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1878 Jul 8
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1878 Jul 12
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1878 Aug 26
b. 2	Letter to Mrs. Bray	1880 Nov 28
b. 2	Brock, Mrs. (housekeeper at Witley)	1878 Jun 17
b. 2	Brookfield, Jane (Elton), 1821-1894 (Mrs. William Henry Brookfield)	1867 Dec 14
b. 2 b. 2	Brookfield, Jane (Elton), 1821-1894 (Mrs. William Henry Brookfield)  Brown, Dr. George Dransfield	1867 Dec 14 1872 Dec 8
	·	
	Brown, Dr. George Dransfield	
b. 2	Brown, Dr. George Dransfield  Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923	1872 Dec 8
b. 2 b. 2	Brown, Dr. George Dransfield  Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923  Letter	1872 Dec 8 1867 Jul 26
b. 2 b. 2 b. 2	Brown, Dr. George Dransfield  Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923  Letter  Letter	1872 Dec 8 1867 Jul 26 1869 Jul 28
b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2	Brown, Dr. George Dransfield  Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923  Letter  Letter  Letter	1872 Dec 8  1867 Jul 26  1869 Jul 28  1869 Oct 14
b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2	Brown, Dr. George Dransfield  Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	1872 Dec 8  1867 Jul 26  1869 Jul 28  1869 Oct 14  1870 May 8
b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2	Brown, Dr. George Dransfield  Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	1872 Dec 8  1867 Jul 26  1869 Jul 28  1869 Oct 14  1870 May 8  1870 Oct 18
b. 2	Brown, Dr. George Dransfield  Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	1872 Dec 8  1867 Jul 26  1869 Jul 28  1869 Oct 14  1870 May 8  1870 Oct 18  1873 Mar 16
b. 2	Brown, Dr. George Dransfield  Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	1872 Dec 8  1867 Jul 26  1869 Jul 28  1869 Oct 14  1870 May 8  1870 Oct 18  1873 Mar 16  1875 Mar 2
b. 2	Brown, Dr. George Dransfield  Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923  Letter	1872 Dec 8  1867 Jul 26  1869 Jul 28  1869 Oct 14  1870 May 8  1870 Oct 18  1873 Mar 16  1875 Mar 2  1877 Feb 12
b. 2	Brown, Dr. George Dransfield  Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923  Letter	1872 Dec 8  1867 Jul 26  1869 Jul 28  1869 Oct 14  1870 May 8  1870 Oct 18  1873 Mar 16  1875 Mar 2  1877 Feb 12
b. 2	Brown, Dr. George Dransfield  Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Burne-Jones, Sir Edward Coley, 1833-1898	1872 Dec 8  1867 Jul 26  1869 Jul 28  1869 Oct 14  1870 May 8  1870 Oct 18  1873 Mar 16  1875 Mar 2  1877 Feb 12  1877 May 26

#### Burne-Jones, Georgiana (Macdonald), Lady, 1840-1920

b. 2	Letter	1870 Jun 13
b. 2	Letter	[1870 Jun 14]
b. 2	Letter	1870 Jun 26
b. 2	Letter	1870 Jul 10
b. 2	Letter	1874 Aug 3
b. 2	Letter	1875 May 11
b. 2	Letter	1877 Apr 28
b. 2	Letter	1877 Dec 3
b. 2	Letter	1878 Mar 23
b. 2	Letter	1878 Aug 26
b. 2	Letter	1878 Nov 18
b. 2	Letter	1879 Jun 3
b. 2	Letter	1879 Jun 29
b. 2	Letter	1879 Aug 11
b. 2	Letter	1879 Oct 18
b. 2	Letter	1880 May 5
b. 2	Letter	1880 Sep 9
b. 2	Burton, Sir Frederic William, 1816-1900	1870 Jul 6
b. 2	Cameron, Julia Margaret. See: Section III, Parrish, M.L.	
	Cash, Mary (Sibree), 1824-1895	
b. 2	Letter	[1847] May 10
b. 2	Letter	[1851 Jan]
b. 2	Letter	1857 Jun 6
	Chapman, John, 1821-1894	
b. 2	Letter	1851 Jun 9
b. 2	Letter	1854 Aug 6
b. 2	Letter	[1854 Oct 15]
b. 2	Letter	[1854] Oct 30

#### Chapman, John, 1821-1894 (continued)

b. 2	Letter	1854 Dec 9
b. 2	Letter	1857 May 27
b. 2	Letter	1857 Sep 27
b. 2	Letter	1859 Jan 1
b. 2	Chapman, Susanna (Brewitt), 1808-1892, (Mrs. John Chapman)	1868 Nov 12
	Clark, Sir Andrew, 1826-1893	
b. 2	Letter	1877 Feb 1
b. 2	Letter	1879 May 11
b. 2	Craik, George Lillie, 1798-1866	1862 Dec 11
	Cross, Anna (Chalmers) 1813-1878, (Mrs. William Cross)	
b. 2	Letter	[1871] Mar 16
	Tinker 871	
b. 2	Letter Tinker 872	[1872 Aug 19?]
h 2		[1972 Can 2E]
b. 2	Letter Tinker 873	[1872 Sep 25]
b. 2	Letter	1872 Oct 27
	Tinker 874	
b. 2	Letter	[1872 Nov 24]
b. 2	Letter	1872 Dec 11
b. 2	Letter	1873 Jan 4
	Tinker 875	
b. 2	Letter	1873 Sep 8
b. 2	Letter	[1873] Sep 17
b. 2	Letter	1873 Oct 11
	Tinker 876	4070 D
b. 2	Letter Tinker 877	1873 Dec 6
b. 2	Letter	[1874] Mar 11
b. 2	Letter	[1874 May 26]
b. 2	Letter	1874 Jun 14
	Tinker 878	

#### Cross, Anna (Chalmers) 1813-1878, (Mrs. William Cross) (continued)

b. 2	Letter	1874 Jun 23
b. 2	Letter	1875 Sep 19
b. 2	Letter	1877 Feb 27
	Cross, Eleanor, 1847-1895	
b. 2	Letter	1880 Mar 26
b. 2	Letter Tinker 879	[1880 Apr 13]
b. 2	Letter	[1880 Apr 14?]
b. 2	Letter	[1880] Apr 30
b. 2	Letter Tinker 880	[1880] May 9
	Cross, Emily Helen, 1848-1907 (Mrs. Francis Otter)	
b. 2	Letter, copy	[1875 Jan 13]
b. 2	Letter	1880 Sep 8
	Cross, Florence Nightingale, 1857-1915 (Mrs. Henry W. Eve)	
b. 2	Letter	1879 Jun 17
b. 2	Letter Tinker 881	1880 May 25
b. 2 b. 2		1880 May 25 1880 Aug 3
	Tinker 881	
	Tinker 881 Letter	
b. 2	Tinker 881  Letter  Cross, John Walter, 1840-1924	1880 Aug 3
b. 2 b. 2	Tinker 881  Letter  Cross, John Walter, 1840-1924  Letter	1880 Aug 3 1872 Dec 11
b. 2 b. 2 b. 2	Tinker 881  Letter  Cross, John Walter, 1840-1924  Letter  Letter	1880 Aug 3 1872 Dec 11 [1873 Oct 19]
b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2	Tinker 881  Letter  Cross, John Walter, 1840-1924  Letter  Letter  Letter	1880 Aug 3  1872 Dec 11  [1873 Oct 19]  1874 Jan 12
b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2	Tinker 881  Letter  Cross, John Walter, 1840-1924  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	1880 Aug 3  1872 Dec 11  [1873 Oct 19]  1874 Jan 12  1874 Jun 17
b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2	Tinker 881  Letter  Cross, John Walter, 1840-1924  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	1880 Aug 3  1872 Dec 11  [1873 Oct 19]  1874 Jan 12  1874 Jun 17  [1875 Mar]
b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2 b. 2	Tinker 881  Letter  Cross, John Walter, 1840-1924  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	1880 Aug 3  1872 Dec 11  [1873 Oct 19]  1874 Jan 12  1874 Jun 17  [1875 Mar]  1875 Aug 14
b. 2	Tinker 881  Letter  Cross, John Walter, 1840-1924  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Envelope only	1880 Aug 3  1872 Dec 11  [1873 Oct 19]  1874 Jan 12  1874 Jun 17  [1875 Mar]  1875 Aug 14  1876 May 8
b. 2	Tinker 881  Letter  Cross, John Walter, 1840-1924  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Envelope only  Letter	1880 Aug 3  1872 Dec 11  [1873 Oct 19]  1874 Jan 12  1874 Jun 17  [1875 Mar]  1875 Aug 14  1876 May 8  1876 Jun 3
b. 2	Tinker 881  Letter  Cross, John Walter, 1840-1924  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter, Friday  Letter  Envelope only  Letter  Letter  Letter	1880 Aug 3  1872 Dec 11  [1873 Oct 19]  1874 Jan 12  1874 Jun 17  [1875 Mar]  1875 Aug 14  1876 May 8  1876 Jun 3  [1877 Feb 3]

#### Cross, John Walter, 1840-1924 (continued)

b. 2 Letter b. 2 Letter, Tuesday b. 2 Letter, Thursday b. 2 Letter, Thursday	1878 Aug 26  1879 Jan 22  1879 Jan 30  1879 Feb 7  [1879 Apr 22]  [1879 Oct 16]  1879 December 24-1879  December 25
b. 2 Letter b. 2 Letter b. 2 Letter b. 2 Letter, Tuesday b. 2 Letter, Thursday	1879 Jan 30 1879 Feb 7 [1879 Apr 22] [1879 Oct 16] 1879 December 24-1879
b. 2 Letter b. 2 Letter, Tuesday b. 2 Letter, Thursday	1879 Feb 7 [1879 Apr 22] [1879 Oct 16] 1879 December 24-1879
b. 2 Letter, Tuesday b. 2 Letter, Thursday	[1879 Apr 22] [1879 Oct 16] 1879 December 24-1879
b. 2 Letter, Thursday	[1879 Oct 16] 1879 December 24-1879
	1879 December 24-1879
b. 2 Letter	24-1879
	December 25
Cross, Mary Finlay, 1843-1902	
b. 2 Letter Tinker 882	1871 Jul 31
b. 2 Letter Tinker 883	1874 May 11
b. 2 Letter Tinker 884	1879 Oct 29
b. 2 Letter	1880 Jan 21
b. 2 Letter	1880 Jan 25
b. 2 Letter Tinker 885	[1880] May 13
b. 2 Letter, Addressed also to Eleanor & Florence Cross Tinker 886	1880 Jun 13
b. 2 Letter, Wednesday	[1880 Nov 17]
b. 2 Letter	1880 Nov 23
b. 2 Cross, William, 1838-1916	1880 Sep 18
D'Albert-Durade, Alexandre Louis François, 1804-1886 3 ALS and 27 MS copies by M. D'Albert-Durade	
b. 2 Letter, copy Tinker 887	1860 Jan 28
b. 2 Letter, copy Tinker 888	1860 Feb 7
b. 2 Letter, copy Tinker 889	1860 Jun 7

#### D'Albert-Durade, Alexandre Louis François, 1804-1886 (continued)

b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 890	1860 Jun 28
b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 891	1860 Sep 18
b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 892	1861 Jun 15
b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 893	1861 Aug 26
b. 2	ALS	1862 Jan 2
b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 894	1862 Jul 5
b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 895	1862 Nov 28
b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 896	1863 Nov 28
b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 897	1864 Jun 24
b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 898	1865 Jan 12
b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 899	1866 Sep 21
b. 2	ALS Tinker 900	1867 Apr 12
b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 901	1868 Jan 30
b. 2	ALS	1871 Jan 27
b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 902	1871 Apr 24
b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 903	1872 Jan 29
b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 904	1872 Oct 31
b. 2	Letter, copy Tinker 905	1873 Mar 21

#### D'Albert-Durade, Alexandre Louis François, 1804-1886 (continued)

	ug 9
b. 2 Letter, copy [1874] Tinker 907	Feb 23
b. 2 Letter, copy 1875 N Tinker 908	Лаг 20
b. 2 Letter, copy 1875 C Tinker 909	Oct 13
b. 2 Letter, copy 1876 S Tinker 910	ep 2
b. 2 Letter, copy 1877 N Tinker 911	lov 27
b. 2 Letter, copy 1878 A Tinker 912	Aug 1
b. 2 Letter, copy 1879 N Tinker 912A	∕lar 9
b. 2 Letter, copy 1880 N Tinker 912B	Mar 28
b. 2 Darwin, Charles Robert, 1809-1882 1873 N	/lar 31
b. 2 Deutsch, Emanuel Oscar Menahem, 1829-1873 [1871]	
b. 2 Deutsch, Emanuel Oscar Menahem, 1829-1873 [1871] b. 2 Dew-Smith, A.G. 1879 S	Jul 7
	Jul 7 ep 11
b. 2 Dew-Smith, A.G. 1879 S	Jul 7 ep 11 Aug 8
b. 2 Dew-Smith, A.G. 1879 S b. 2 Doulton, Sir Henry, 1820-1897 1878 A b. 2 Evans, Isaac Pearson, 1816-1890 Copy in the hand of J. W. Cross	Jul 7 ep 11 Aug 8
b. 2 Dew-Smith, A.G. 1879 S b. 2 Doulton, Sir Henry, 1820-1897 1878 A b. 2 Evans, Isaac Pearson, 1816-1890 1857 N Copy in the hand of J. W. Cross b. 2 Evans, Robert, 1773-1849 [1842]	Jul 7 ep 11 Aug 8 May 26
b. 2 Dew-Smith, A.G. 1879 S b. 2 Doulton, Sir Henry, 1820-1897 1878 A b. 2 Evans, Isaac Pearson, 1816-1890 1857 N Copy in the hand of J. W. Cross b. 2 Evans, Robert, 1773-1849 [1842 (GE's father)] Evans, Robert, 1832-1911	Jul 7 ep 11 Aug 8 May 26 Feb 28]
b. 2 Dew-Smith, A.G. 1879 S b. 2 Doulton, Sir Henry, 1820-1897 1878 A b. 2 Evans, Isaac Pearson, 1816-1890 1857 N Copy in the hand of J. W. Cross b. 2 Evans, Robert, 1773-1849 [1842 (GE's father)] Evans, Robert, 1832-1911 (GE's nephew)	Jul 7 ep 11 Aug 8 May 26 Feb 28]
b. 2 Dew-Smith, A.G. 1879 S b. 2 Doulton, Sir Henry, 1820-1897 1878 A b. 2 Evans, Isaac Pearson, 1816-1890 Copy in the hand of J. W. Cross  b. 2 Evans, Robert, 1773-1849 (GE's father)  Evans, Robert, 1832-1911 (GE's nephew)  b. 3 Letter 1864 F	Jul 7 ep 11 Aug 8 May 26 Feb 28]
b. 2 Dew-Smith, A.G. 1879 S b. 2 Doulton, Sir Henry, 1820-1897 1878 A b. 2 Evans, Isaac Pearson, 1816-1890 1857 N Copy in the hand of J. W. Cross b. 2 Evans, Robert, 1773-1849 [1842 (GE's father)] Evans, Robert, 1832-1911 (GE's nephew) b. 3 Letter 1864 A b. 3 Letter 1864 A	Jul 7 ep 11 Aug 8 May 26 Feb 28] Feb 2 Apr 3 Aug 14
b. 2 Dew-Smith, A.G. 1879 S b. 2 Doulton, Sir Henry, 1820-1897 1878 A b. 2 Evans, Isaac Pearson, 1816-1890 1857 N Copy in the hand of J. W. Cross b. 2 Evans, Robert, 1773-1849 [1842 (GE's father)] Evans, Robert, 1832-1911 (GE's nephew) b. 3 Letter 1864 A b. 3 Letter 1866 A	Jul 7 ep 11 Aug 8 May 26 Feb 28] Feb 2 Apr 3 Aug 14 Eep 10

# Evans, Jane (Attenborough); (Mrs. Robert Evans) (GE's sister-in-law)

b. 3	Letter, Copy in an unidentified hand	1864 Feb 12
b. 3	Letter	1879 Feb 20
	Evans, Samuel and Elizabeth; Evans, Samuel, 1777-1858; Evans, Elizabeth (Tomlinson), 1776-1849 (GE's aunt and uncle)	
b. 3	Letter, Mrs. Evans	1839 Feb 6
b. 3	Letter, Mrs. Evans	1839 Mar 5
b. 3	Letter, Mr. Evans	1840 Feb 26
b. 3	Letter, Mr. Evans	1840 Aug 10
b. 3	Letter, Mr. and Mrs. Evans	1840 Dec 5
b. 3	Letter, Mr. and Mrs. Evans	1841 Mar 9
b. 3	Letter, Mr. Evans	1841 Oct 2
	Eve, Florence Nightingale (Cross), 1857-1915 See: Cross, Florence Nightingale (Mrs. Henry W. Eve)	
b. 62	Ewart, Mary A.	1880 Feb 7
b. 3	Faithfull, Emily, 1835-1895	1873 Aug 23
	Gilchrist, Anne (Burrows), 1828-1885 (Mrs. Alexander Gilchrist)	
b. 3	Letter	1871 Apr 19
b. 3	Letter	1871 Aug 2
b. 3	Greville, Sabine Matilda (Thellusson)	1878 Sep 26
	Hanson, Blanche Southwood (Lewes), 1872- See: Lewes, Blanche Southwood (Mrs. R. J. E. Hanson)	
	Harrison, Frederic, 1831-1923	
b. 3	Letter Tinker 913	1866 Jan 5
b. 3	Letter, incomplete Tinker 914	1866 Jan 9
b. 3	Letter Tinker 915	1866 Jan 12
b. 3	Letter Tinker 916	1866 Jan 22

#### Harrison, Frederic, 1831-1923 (continued)

b. 3	Letter Tinker 917	1866 Jan 31
b. 3	Letter, I feel all sorts Tinker 918	1866 Apr 10
b. 3	Letter, After I had written the enclosed letter	1866 Apr 10
b. 3	Letter Tinker 919	[1866] Apr 18
b. 3	Letter Tinker 920	1866 Apr 27
b. 3	Letter Tinker 921	1866 May 4
b. 3	Letter Tinker 922	[1866 May 6]
b. 3	Letter, incomplete Tinker 923	[1866] May 8
b. 3	Letter Tinker 924	[1866 May 23?]
b. 3	Letter Tinker 925	[1866 May 26]
b. 3	Letter Tinker 926	[1866 May 29]
b. 3	Letter Tinker 927	1866 Aug 4
b. 3	Letter Tinker 928	1866 Aug 15
b. 3	Letter Tinker 929	1867 Feb 18
b. 3	Letter Tinker 930	1867 Nov 7
b. 3	Letter, Before we set off Tinker 931	1868 May 25
b. 3	Letter, Yes, indeed, I Tinker 932	[1868 May 25]
b. 3	Letter Tinker 933	1869 Jun 6

#### Harrison, Frederic, 1831-1923 (continued)

b. 3	Letter Tinker 934	1870 Jan 15
b. 3	Letter Tinker 935	1871 May 7
b. 3	Letter	1872 Apr 3
b. 3	Letter Tinker 936	1873 Jun 20
b. 3	Letter Tinker 937	1874 Dec 30
b. 3	Letter Tinker 938	1875 Jan 1
b. 3	Letter Tinker 939	1875 Jan 7
b. 3	Letter Tinker 940	1875 Jan 8
b. 3	Letter Tinker 941	1875 Feb 19
b. 3	Letter	1875 Jun 1
b. 3	Letter	[1875] Jun 2
b. 3	Letter Tinker 942	1875 Jun 9
b. 3	Letter	1875 Jun 15
b. 3	Letter Tinker 943	1875 Jun 18
b. 3	Letter Tinker 944	1877 Jun 14
b. 3	Letter Tinker 945	1877 Dec 26
b. 3	Letter, to Mr. & Mrs. Harrison	1879 Apr 8
b. 3	Letter Tinker 946	1879 Jun 10
b. 3	Letter	1880 Apr 15
b. 3	Letter Tinker 947	[1880 Apr 19]

	Harrison, Ethel (Harrison) (Mrs. Frederic Harrison)	
b. 3	Letter Tinker 948	1872 Nov 25
b. 3	Letter Tinker 949	1872 Dec 11
	Letter to Mr. & Mrs. Harrison, filed under Harrison, Frederic See: Harrison, Frederic	1879 Apr 8
b. 3	Letter Tinker 950	1879 May 25
	Helps, Alice	
b. 3	Letter	1874 Nov 23
b. 3	Letter	1880 Mar 28
	Hennell, Charles Christian, 1809-1850	
b. 3	Letter, With a note by Hennell to Sara Hennell	[1844 Apr]
	Letter, Also addressed to the Brays & Sara Hennell and filed under Bray, Charles & Caroline	[1848 Jun 8]
	See: Bray, Charles & Caroline	
	Hennell, Sara Sophia, 1812-1899 See also under Mr. & Mrs. Charles Bray for letters addressed jointly to them and to Miss Hennell, Mrs. Bray's sister.	)
b. 3	See also under Mr. & Mrs. Charles Bray for letters addressed jointly to them and to	o 1842 Aug 30
b. 3 b. 3	See also under Mr. & Mrs. Charles Bray for letters addressed jointly to them and to Miss Hennell, Mrs. Bray's sister.	
	See also under Mr. & Mrs. Charles Bray for letters addressed jointly to them and to Miss Hennell, Mrs. Bray's sister.  Letter	1842 Aug 30
b. 3	See also under Mr. & Mrs. Charles Bray for letters addressed jointly to them and to Miss Hennell, Mrs. Bray's sister.  Letter  Letter, Friday	1842 Aug 30 [1842 Sep 16?]
b. 3 b. 3	See also under Mr. & Mrs. Charles Bray for letters addressed jointly to them and to Miss Hennell, Mrs. Bray's sister.  Letter  Letter, Friday  Letter, Tuesday	1842 Aug 30 [1842 Sep 16?] [1842 Sep 20]
b. 3 b. 3 b. 3	See also under Mr. & Mrs. Charles Bray for letters addressed jointly to them and to Miss Hennell, Mrs. Bray's sister.  Letter  Letter, Friday  Letter, Tuesday  Letter	1842 Aug 30 [1842 Sep 16?] [1842 Sep 20] [1842] Nov 3
b. 3 b. 3 b. 3	See also under Mr. & Mrs. Charles Bray for letters addressed jointly to them and to Miss Hennell, Mrs. Bray's sister.  Letter  Letter, Friday  Letter, Tuesday  Letter  Letter	1842 Aug 30 [1842 Sep 16?] [1842 Sep 20] [1842] Nov 3 [1842] Nov 23
b. 3 b. 3 b. 3 b. 3	See also under Mr. & Mrs. Charles Bray for letters addressed jointly to them and to Miss Hennell, Mrs. Bray's sister.  Letter  Letter, Friday  Letter, Tuesday  Letter  Letter  Letter	1842 Aug 30 [1842 Sep 16?] [1842 Sep 20] [1842] Nov 3 [1842] Nov 23 [1843] Jan 29
b. 3 b. 3 b. 3 b. 3 b. 3	See also under Mr. & Mrs. Charles Bray for letters addressed jointly to them and to Miss Hennell, Mrs. Bray's sister.  Letter  Letter, Friday  Letter, Tuesday  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	1842 Aug 30 [1842 Sep 16?] [1842 Sep 20] [1842] Nov 3 [1842] Nov 23 [1843] Jan 29 [1843 Mar 15?]
b. 3 b. 3 b. 3 b. 3 b. 3 b. 3	See also under Mr. & Mrs. Charles Bray for letters addressed jointly to them and to Miss Hennell, Mrs. Bray's sister.  Letter  Letter, Friday  Letter, Tuesday  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	1842 Aug 30 [1842 Sep 16?] [1842 Sep 20] [1842] Nov 3 [1842] Nov 23 [1843] Jan 29 [1843 Mar 15?] 1843 Sep 16
b. 3	See also under Mr. & Mrs. Charles Bray for letters addressed jointly to them and to Miss Hennell, Mrs. Bray's sister.  Letter  Letter, Friday  Letter, Tuesday  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	1842 Aug 30 [1842 Sep 16?] [1842 Sep 20] [1842] Nov 3 [1842] Nov 23 [1843] Jan 29 [1843 Mar 15?] 1843 Sep 16 1843 Oct 9
b. 3	See also under Mr. & Mrs. Charles Bray for letters addressed jointly to them and to Miss Hennell, Mrs. Bray's sister.  Letter  Letter, Friday  Letter, Tuesday  Letter  Letter	1842 Aug 30 [1842 Sep 16?] [1842 Sep 20] [1842] Nov 3 [1842] Nov 23 [1843] Jan 29 [1843 Mar 15?] 1843 Sep 16 1843 Oct 9 [1844 Mar 3]

b. 3	Letter	[1844 Sep]
b. 3	Letter	[1844] Sep 14
b. 3	Letter	[1844] Oct 31
b. 3	Letter	[1845 Apr 6]
b. 3	Letter	[1845 Apr 16]
b. 3	Letter	[1845 Apr 29]
b. 3	Letter	[1845 May]
b. 3	Letter, Tuesday	[1845 May] 27
b. 3	Letter, Friday	[1845 Jun 13]
b. 3	Letter, Friday evening	[1845 Aug?]
b. 3	Letter	[1845 Sep?]
b. 3	Letter	[1845 Sep 25]
b. 3	Letter, Sunday	[1845 Dec?]
b. 3	Letter, You are quite right	[1845]
b. 3	Letter, As I have been obliged	[1845]
b. 3	Letter	[1845 Dec 18]
b. 3	Letter	[1845 Dec 31]
b. 3	Letter	[1846 Jan 26]
b. 3	Letter, I did not receive	[1846 Jan?]
b. 3	Letter, I sent a parcel of M.S	[1846 Jan?]
b. 3	Letter, Thanks, dear Sara	[1846 Jan?]
b. 3	Letter, Will it not please thee	[1846 Mar 4]
b. 3	Letter, Pollianus Achati suo salutem	[1846 Mar 10?]
b. 3	Letter, As Mr. Bray tells me	[1846 Mar?]
b. 3	Letter, I think on the whole	[1846 Mar?]
b. 3	Letter, My soul kisses thee	[1846 Mar?]
b. 3	Letter, Have I really	[1846 Apr?]
b. 3	Letter, I have considered	[1846 Apr?]
b. 3	Letter, I have been guilty	[1846 Apr 12?]
b. 3	Letter, A young lady	[1846 Apr?]

b. 3	Letter, I have <i>no doubt</i>	[1846 Apr?]
b. 3	Letter, I have been idle	[1846 Apr?]
b. 3	Letter, Health & greetings	
		[1846 Apr?]
b. 3	Letter, Thou mayst make	[1846 May?]
b. 3	Letter, I will leave the title-page	[1846 May?]
b. 3	Letter, As I believe	[1846 May?]
b. 3	Letter, See what it is to have	[1846 May 20?]
b. 3	Letter	[1846 May 23]
b. 3	Letter	[1846 Sep 14?]
b. 3	Letter	[1846 Oct 5]
b. 3	Letter	[1846 Oct 29]
b. 3	Letter, Thursday	[1846 Nov 5]
b. 3	Letter	[1848 Nov 15]
b. 3	Letter, Thursday	[1846 Nov 26?]
b. 3	Letter	[1846 Dec 20]
b. 3	Letter	[1847 Feb 18]
b. 3	Letter, Sunday	[1847 Feb 28]
b. 3	Letter, Sunday	[1847 Apr 4]
b. 3	Letter	[1847 Apr 30]
b. 3	Letter	[1847 Jun 14]
b. 3	Letter	1847 Sep 16
b. 3	Letter	[1847] Oct 13
b. 3	Letter	[1847 Nov 15]
b. 3	Letter	[1847] Nov 27
b. 3	Letter, First page of this letter is missing	[1848 Jan?]
b. 3	Letter	[1848] Feb 1
b. 3	Letter	[1848 Feb 21?]
b. 3	Letter	[1848 May 25?]
b. 3	Letter, Wednesday	[1848 Apr 19]
b. 3	Letter, Sunday	[1848 Jun 4]

b. 3	Letter	[1848 Jun 23]
b. 3	Letter, Friday	[1848 Jul 14]
b. 3	Letter	[1848 Nov 23]
b. 3	Letter	[1848 Dec]
b. 3	Letter	[1849 Jan]
b. 3	Letter	[1849 Feb 4]
b. 3	Letter	[1849 Feb 9]
b. 3	Letter	[1849 Apr 18]
b. 3	Letter	[1849 Apr 25]
b. 3	Letter	[1849 May]
b. 3	Letter	[1849 Jun 5]
b. 3	Letter	[1849 Oct 26]
b. 3	Letter	[1850 Mar 26]
b. 3	Letter, Thursday	[1850 Apr 11]
b. 3	Letter	[1850] Dec 24
b. 3	Letter	1851 Aug 5
b. 3	Letter	[1851] Oct 9
b. 3	Letter, Monday	[1851 Oct 13]
b. 3	Letter	[1851 Nov 2]
b. 3	Letter, Monday	[1851 Nov 24]
b. 3	Letter, Wednesday	[1852 Jan 21]
b. 3	Letter, Saturday	[1852 Jan 31]
b. 3	Letter, Wednesday	[1852 Apr 21]
b. 3	Letter, Monday	[1852 May 17]
b. 3	Letter, Wednesday	1852 Jun 9
b. 3	Letter	[1852 Jun 25]
b. 3	Letter, Tuesday	[1852 Jun 29]
b. 3	Letter	[1852] Jul 16
b. 3	Letter, Monday	[1852 Aug 30]
b. 3	Letter	[1852] Sep 2

b.3       Letter       [1852 Sep]         b.3       Letter       [1852] Oct 12         b.3       Letter, Monday       [1852 Oct 18]         b.3       Letter, Tuesday       [1852 Nov 23]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jan 3]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jan 10]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Mar 19]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Mar 28]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Apr 4]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jun 28]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Aug 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Not 21]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Not 15]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b.3       Letter       [1854 Jan 17]         b.3       Letter       [1854 Jan 17]         b.3       Letter       [185	b. 3	Letter, Saturday	[1852 Sep 25]
b. 3       Letter, Monday       [1852 Oct 18]         b. 3       Letter, Tuesday       [1852 Nov 23]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Jan 10]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Mar 19]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Mar 28]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Jun 28]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Jun 25]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Jun 28]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Aug 18]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Aug 18]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Oct 2]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Jan 17]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Jan 17]         b. 3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 11]         b. 3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 27]         b	b. 3	Letter, I know your hair will stand on end	[1852 Sep]
b.3       Letter, Tuesday       [1852 Nov 23]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jan 3]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Mar 19]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Mar 28]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Apr 4]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jun 28]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jun 28]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jun 28]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Aug 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Aug 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Oct 2]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 16]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 18]         b.3       Letter       [1854] Jan 18         b.3       Letter       [1854] Jan 18         b.3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b.3       Letter       [1854] Feb 28]         b.3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 27]         b.3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b.3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter	[1852] Oct 12
b. 3       Letter       [1853 Jan 3]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Jan 10]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Mar 19]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Mar 28]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Apr 4]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Jun 25]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Jun 28]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Aug 18]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Oct 1]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Nov 18]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Nov 18]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Jan 17]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Jan 17]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Jan 17]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Feb 11]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Feb 28]         b. 3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 28]         b. 3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b. 3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Feb 28]         b. 3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter, Monday	[1852 Oct 18]
b.3       Letter       [1853 Jan 10]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Mar 19]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Mar 28]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Apr 4]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jun 25]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jun 28]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Aug 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Aug 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 25]         b.3       Letter, Friday morning       [1854] Jan 18         b.3       Letter       [1854] Jan 18         b.3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b.3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b.3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 27]         b.3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 27]         b.3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b.3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter, Tuesday	[1852 Nov 23]
b.3       Letter       [1853 Mar 19]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Mar 28]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Apr 4]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jun 25]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jul 27]         b.3       Letter, Wednesday       [1853 Aug 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Oct 1]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Oct 22]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 25]         b.3       Letter       [1854 Jan 18]         b.3       Letter       [1854 Jan 18]         b.3       Letter       [1854 Jan 17]         b.3       Letter       [1854 Feb 6]         b.3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 27]         b.3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 27]         b.3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Feb 28]         b.3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter	[1853 Jan 3]
b.3       Letter       [1853 Mar 28]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Apr 4]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jun 25]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jul 27]         b.3       Letter, Wednesday       [1853 Aug 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Oct 1]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Oct 22]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 18]         b.3       Letter, Friday morning       [1853 Nov 25]         b.3       Letter       [1854] Jan 18         b.3       Letter       [1854] Jan 18         b.3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b.3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b.3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 27]         b.3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 27]         b.3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b.3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Mar 9]         b.3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter	[1853 Jan 10]
b.3       Letter       [1853 Apr 4]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jun 25]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jun 28]         b.3       Letter, Wednesday       [1853 Jul 27]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Aug 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Oct 1]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 25]         b.3       Letter       [1854 Jan 18]         b.3       Letter       [1854 Jan 17]         b.3       Letter       [1854 Jan 17]         b.3       Letter       [1854 Jeb 6         b.3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 27]         b.3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 28]         b.3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b.3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Mar 9]         b.3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter	[1853 Mar 19]
b.3       Letter       [1853 Jun 25]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Jun 28]         b.3       Letter, Wednesday       [1853 Aug 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Aug 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Oct 1]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b.3       Letter, Friday morning       [1853 Nov 25]         b.3       Letter       [1854] Jan 18         b.3       Letter       [1854] Jan 18         b.3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b.3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 11]         b.3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 27]         b.3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b.3       Letter, Tiesday       [1854 Mar 9]         b.3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 91]	b. 3	Letter	[1853 Mar 28]
b.3       Letter, Wednesday       [1853 Jun 28]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Aug 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Aug 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Oct 1]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 18]         b.3       Letter, Friday morning       [1853 Nov 25]         b.3       Letter       [1854] Jan 18         b.3       Letter       [1854] Jan 18         b.3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b.3       Letter, Saturday       [1854] Feb 6         b.3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 27]         b.3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b.3       Letter, Tiesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b.3       Letter, Tiesday       [1854 Mar 9]         b.3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 9]	b. 3	Letter	[1853 Apr 4]
b.3       Letter, Wednesday       [1853 Jul 27]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Aug 18]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Oct 1]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 22]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b.3       Letter       [1853 Nov 25]         b.3       Letter       [1854] Jan 18         b.3       Letter       [1854] Jan 17]         b.3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b.3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 11]         b.3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 27]         b.3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b.3       Letter       [1854 Mar 9]         b.3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter	[1853 Jun 25]
b. 3 Letter [1853 Aug 18] b. 3 Letter [1853 Oct 1] b. 3 Letter [1853 Oct 2] b. 3 Letter [1853 Nov 15] b. 3 Letter [1853 Nov 15] b. 3 Letter [1853 Nov 18] b. 3 Letter, Friday morning [1853 Nov 25] b. 3 Letter [1854] Jan 18 b. 3 Letter [1854] Jan 18 b. 3 Letter [1854] Feb 6 b. 3 Letter [1854] Feb 6 b. 3 Letter, Saturday [1854 Feb 11] b. 3 Letter, Monday [1854 Feb 27] b. 3 Letter, Tuesday [1854 Feb 28] b. 3 Letter [1854 Mar 9] b. 3 Letter [1854 Mar 9]	b. 3	Letter	[1853 Jun 28]
b. 3 Letter [1853 Oct 1] b. 3 Letter [1853 Oct 22] b. 3 Letter [1853 Nov 15] b. 3 Letter [1853 Nov 18] b. 3 Letter, Friday morning [1853 Nov 25] b. 3 Letter [1854] Jan 18 b. 3 Letter [1854] Jan 18 b. 3 Letter [1854] Feb 6 b. 3 Letter [1854] Feb 6 b. 3 Letter, Saturday [1854 Feb 11] b. 3 Letter, Monday [1854 Feb 27] b. 3 Letter, Tuesday [1854 Feb 28] b. 3 Letter, Tuesday [1854 Mar 9] b. 3 Letter, Friday [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter, Wednesday	[1853 Jul 27]
b. 3       Letter       [1853 Oct 22]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Nov 25]         b. 3       Letter       [1854] Jan 18         b. 3       Letter       [1854] Jan 17]         b. 3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b. 3       Letter, Saturday       [1854] Feb 6         b. 3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 11]         b. 3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 27]         b. 3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Mar 9]         b. 3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter	[1853 Aug 18]
b. 3       Letter       [1853 Nov 15]         b. 3       Letter, Friday morning       [1853 Nov 25]         b. 3       Letter       [1854] Jan 18         b. 3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b. 3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b. 3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 11]         b. 3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 27]         b. 3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b. 3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Mar 9]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Mar 9]         b. 3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter	[1853 Oct 1]
b. 3       Letter       [1853 Nov 18]         b. 3       Letter       [1853 Nov 25]         b. 3       Letter       [1854] Jan 18         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Jan 17]         b. 3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b. 3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 11]         b. 3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 27]         b. 3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Mar 9]         b. 3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter	[1853 Oct 22]
b. 3       Letter, Friday morning       [1853 Nov 25]         b. 3       Letter       [1854] Jan 18         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Jan 17]         b. 3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b. 3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 11]         b. 3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 27]         b. 3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Mar 9]         b. 3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter	[1853 Nov 15]
b. 3 Letter [1854] Jan 18 b. 3 Letter [1854 Jan 17] b. 3 Letter [1854] Feb 6 b. 3 Letter, Saturday [1854 Feb 11] b. 3 Letter, Monday [1854 Feb 27] b. 3 Letter, Tuesday [1854 Feb 28] b. 3 Letter b. 3 Letter, Tuesday [1854 Mar 9] b. 3 Letter, Friday [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter	[1853 Nov 18]
b. 3       Letter       [1854 Jan 17]         b. 3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b. 3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 11]         b. 3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 27]         b. 3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Mar 9]         b. 3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter, Friday morning	[1853 Nov 25]
b. 3       Letter       [1854] Feb 6         b. 3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 11]         b. 3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 27]         b. 3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Mar 9]         b. 3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter	[1854] Jan 18
b. 3       Letter, Saturday       [1854 Feb 11]         b. 3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 27]         b. 3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Mar 9]         b. 3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter	[1854 Jan 17]
b. 3       Letter, Monday       [1854 Feb 27]         b. 3       Letter, Tuesday       [1854 Feb 28]         b. 3       Letter       [1854 Mar 9]         b. 3       Letter, Friday       [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter	[1854] Feb 6
b. 3 Letter, Tuesday [1854 Feb 28] b. 3 Letter [1854 Mar 9] b. 3 Letter, Friday [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter, Saturday	[1854 Feb 11]
b. 3 Letter [1854 Mar 9] b. 3 Letter, Friday [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter, Monday	[1854 Feb 27]
b. 3 Letter, Friday [1854 Mar 31]	b. 3	Letter, Tuesday	[1854 Feb 28]
·	b. 3	Letter	[1854 Mar 9]
b. 3 Letter [1854 Apr 3]	b. 3	Letter, Friday	[1854 Mar 31]
· ·	b. 3	Letter	[1854 Apr 3]
b. 3 Letter [1854 Apr 21]	b. 3	Letter	[1854 Apr 21]
b. 3 Letter, Wednesday [1854 Apr 26]	b. 3	Letter, Wednesday	[1854 Apr 26]
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			

b. 3	Latter Caturday	[1054 Ama 20]
	Letter, Saturday	[1854 Apr 29]
b. 3	Letter, Sunday	[1854 May 7]
b. 3	Letter, Wednesday	[1854 May 17]
b. 3	Letter, Saturday	[1854 Jun 3]
b. 3	Letter	[1854] Jun 12
b. 3	Letter, Monday	[1854 Jul 10]
b. 3	Letter	[1854] Oct 31
b. 3	Letter	[1854 Nov 22]
b. 3	Letter	1855 Jan 9
b. 3	Letter	1855 Mar 16
b. 3	Letter	1855 Jun 17
b. 3	Letter	1855 Jun 23
b. 3	Letter	[1855] Jul 21
b. 3	Letter	[1855 Jul 28]
b. 3	Letter	[1855] Aug 24
b. 3	Letter, Thursday	[1855 Sep 13]
b. 3	Letter	[1855] Oct 16
b. 3	Letter	[1855] Nov 29
b. 3	Letter, Saturday	[1855 Dec 15?]
b. 3	Letter	[1856 Jan 18]
b. 3	Letter, Monday	[1856 Jan 28]
b. 3	Letter	[1856] Feb 19
b. 3	Letter	[1856] Feb 25
b. 3	Letter, Tuesday	[1856 Feb 26]
b. 3	Letter, Sunday	[1856 Apr 6]
b. 3	Letter, Thursday	[1856 Apr 10]
b. 3	Letter	1856 Jun 29
b. 3	Letter	1856 Jul 29
b. 3	Letter	[1856 Sep 5]
b. 3	Letter	1856 Sep 22

b. 3	Letter	[1856] Dec 9
b. 3	Letter	[1856] Dec 17
b. 3	Letter	1857 Jan 26
b. 3	Letter	[1857 Feb 24]
b. 3	Letter	1857 Mar 2
b. 3	Letter	[1857 Mar 5]
b. 3	Letter	[1857 Mar 12]
b. 3	Letter	[1857] Mar 24
b. 3	Letter	[1857] Mar 27
b. 3	Letter	[1857] Apr 16
b. 3	Letter	[1857] May 22
b. 3	Letter	[1857 Jun 5]
b. 3	Letter	[1857 Jun 16]
b. 3	Letter	[1857] Aug 19
b. 3	Letter	1557 Sep 21
b. 3	Letter	1857 Oct 20
b. 3	Letter	[1857 Nov 9]
b. 3	Letter, Monday	[1857 Nov 23]
b. 3	Letter	1857 Dec 13
b. 3	Letter	1858 Jan 17
b. 3	Letter	1858 Mar 2
b. 3	Letter	[1858] Mar 27
b. 3	Letter	1858 Apr 17
b. 3	Letter	1858 May 10/13
b. 3	Letter	1858 Jun 14
b. 3		
	Letter	1858 Jul 28
b. 3		1858 Jul 28 [1858] Sep 4
b. 3 b. 3	Letter	
	Letter Letter	[1858] Sep 4
b. 3	Letter Letter	[1858] Sep 4 [1858 Sep 5]

b. 3	Letter	[1858] Oct 11
b. 3	Letter	1858 Nov 6
b. 3	Letter	1859 Feb 19
b. 3	Letter	[1859] Feb 26
b. 3	Letter	[1859 Mar 21]
b. 3	Letter	[1859 Apr 11]
b. 3	Letter	1859 Apr 15
b. 3	Letter	[1859 Apr 19]
b. 3	Letter	1859 May 19
b. 3	Letter	[1859] May 21
b. 3	Letter	1859 Jun 16
b. 3	Letter	[1859 Jun 24]
b. 3	Letter	[1859 Jun 22]
b. 3	Letter	[1859] Aug 15
b. 3	Letter	[1859] Aug 23
b. 3	Letter	[1859] Aug 29
b. 3	Letter	1859 Sep 4
b. 3	Letter	[1859] Oct 10
b. 3	Letter	1859 Nov 11
b. 3	Letter	[1859] Nov 14
b. 3	Letter	[1859 Dec 5]
b. 3	Letter	[1858 Dec 30]
b. 3	Letter	[1860 Jan 9]
b. 3	Letter	1860 Jul 2
b. 3	Letter	1860 Jul 7
	Postscript at end of GHL's letter to Sara Hennell. Filed with GHL letters See: Section II. Letters by GEORGE HENRY LEWES	1860 Jul 9
b. 3	Letter	1860 Aug 6
b. 3	Letter	1860 Aug 27
b. 3	Letter	[1860 Oct 26]

b. 3	Letter	[1860] Nov 13
b. 3	Letter	1860 Dec 20
b. 3	Letter	[1861 Jan 16]
b. 3	Letter	1861 Feb 8
b. 3	Letter	[1861 Feb 20]
b. 3	Letter	1861 Apr 13
b. 3	Letter	1861 Jun 19
b. 3	Letter	1861 Jul 2
b. 3	Letter	1861 Jul 12
b. 3	Letter	1861 Jul 30
b. 3	Letter	1861 Aug 12
b. 3	Letter	1861 Sep 18
b. 3	Letter	1861 Oct 6
b. 3	Letter	1861 Nov 22
b. 3	Letter	1861 Dec 6
b. 4	Letter	1862 Jan 14
b. 4	Letter	[1862] Feb 3
b. 4	Letter, Saturday	[1862 Feb 8]
b. 4	Letter, Wednesday	[1862 Mar 12]
b. 4	Letter	[1862] Mar 27
b. 4	Letter	1862 Aug 1
b. <b>4</b>	Letter	1862 Sep 12
b. <b>4</b>	Letter	1862 Oct 3
b. 4	Letter	1862 Nov 26
b. 4		
	Letter	1862 Dec 26
b. 4	Letter Letter	1862 Dec 26 [1863] Jan 1
b. 4 b. 4		
	Letter	[1863] Jan 1
b. 4	Letter Letter	[1863] Jan 1 1862 [i.e. 1863]
b. 4 b. 4	Letter Letter	[1863] Jan 1 1862 [i.e. 1863] Feb 2

b. <b>4</b>	Letter	[1863] Jun 21
b. 4	Letter, Saturday	[1863 Jul 11]
b. 4	Letter	1863 Oct 16
b. 4	Letter	1863 Dec 26
b. 4	Letter	1864 Jan 22
b. 4	Letter, Monday	[1864 Mar 7]
b. 4	Letter	[1864] Mar 20
b. 4	Letter	[1864] Apr 9
b. 4	Letter	1864 Apr 30
b. 4	Letter	[1864] Jun 23
b. 4	Letter, Saturday	[1864 Jun 25]
b. <b>4</b>	Letter	1864 Aug 28
b. 4	Letter	1864 Aug 30
b. 4	Letter	1864 Sep 15
b. 4	Letter	1864 Sep 26
b. 4	Letter, Sunday	[1864 Oct 2]
b. 4	Letter	1864 Nov 23
b. 4	Letter	[1865] Feb 6
b. 4	Letter	1865 Mar 2
b. 4	Letter	1865 Mar 8
b. 4	Letter	1865 May 18
b. 4	Letter	1865 Sep 14
b. 4	Letter	1865 Sep 16
b. 4	Letter	[1865] Sep 18
b. 4	Letter	[1865 Sep]
b. 4	Letter	[1865] Oct 7
b. 4	Letter	[1865 Oct 16]
b. 4	Letter	[1865] Oct 28
b. 4	Letter, Sunday	[1865 Nov 19]
b. <b>4</b>	Letter	[1865] Dec 7

b. 4	Letter	[1865] Dec 21
b. 4	Letter	[1866 Feb 12]
b. 4	Letter	1866 Apr 9
b. 4	Letter	1866 Aug 10
b. 4	Letter	1866 Sep 29
b. 4	Letter	1866 Nov 22
b. 4	Letter	1866 Dec 7
b. 4	Letter	[1867 Apr 28]
b. 4	Letter	[1867] May 13
b. 4	Letter	[1867 Oct 12]
b. 4	Letter	1867 Nov 22
b. 4	Letter	1867 Dec 26
b. 4	Letter	1868 Mar 22
b. 4	Letter	1868 Nov 20
b. 4	Letter	1869 Feb 4
b. 4	Letter	[1869 Feb 15]
b. 4	Letter	1869 Sep 21
b. 4	Letter	1869 Nov 15
b. 4	Letter	[1870 May 15]
b. 4	Letter	[1870] May 18
b. 4	Letter	1870 Jun 13
b. 4	Letter	1870 Aug 12
b. 4	Letter	1870 Nov 18
b. 4	Letter	1871 Jan 2
b. 4	Letter	1871 Nov 19
b. 4	Letter	1871 Nov 22
b. 4	Letter	1871 Dec 15
b. 4	Letter	1872 Jan 4
b. 4	Letter	1872 Jan 29
b. 4	Letter	1872 Mar 22

# Hennell, Sara Sophia, 1812-1899 (continued)

b. 4	Letter	1872 Aug 1
b. 4	Letter	1872 Nov 19
b. 4	Letter	[1872] Nov 22
b. 4	Letter	1872 Dec 20
b. 4	Letter	1874 Feb 10
b. 4	Letter	1874 Mar 27
b. 4	Letter	1874 Apr 23
b. 4	Letter	1874 Nov 20
b. 4	Letter	1875 Nov 20
b. 4	Letter	1876 Nov 22
b. 4	Letter	1877 May 15
b. 4	Letter	1877 Nov 16
b. 4	Letter, Sunday	[1877] Nov 23
b. 4	Letter	[1878 Nov 24]
b. 4	Letter	1879 Nov 22
b. 4	Letter	1880 Dec 4
b. 4	Hodgson, Mrs. Stewart Signed G.H. Lewes	[18]78 Aug 25
b. 4	Holbeche, Vincent Copy in the hand of J. W. Cross	1857 Jun 13
b. 4	Holland, Sir Henry Thurstan, 1826-1914 Copy in an unidentified hand	1880 Jul 28
	Houghton, Frances [Fanny] Lucy (Evans), 1805-1882 (Mrs. Henry Houghton)	
b. 4	Letter, What could give you the idea	[1845]
b. 4	Letter, Alas, alas!	[1846 Feb?]
b. 4	Letter, How are you	[1847 Jan]
b. 4	Letter, You have not, I dare say	[1848 Feb 27]
b. 4	Letter, Mr. Bury has put	[1848 Apr 17?]
b. 4	Letter, I have been expecting	[1848 Apr 20]
b. 4	Letter	[1848] May 1
b. 4	Letter, Monday I find it is in vain	[1848 May?]

# Houghton, Frances [Fanny] Lucy (Evans), 1805-1882 (Mrs. Henry Ho [...] (continued)

b. 4	Letter, Saturday Father is not apparently	[1848 May?]
b. 4	Letter, Saturday evening Father is going on well	[1848 May]
b. 4	Letter, Father has made	[1848 May 25]
b. 4	Letter, Fragment: Father has decided	[1848 May 25]
b. 4	Letter	[1848 May 28]
b. 4	Letter	[1848 Jun 17]
b. 4	Letter, Thursday I hardly know	[1848 Jun]
b. 4	Letter, Father has not been	[1848 Jun?]
b. 4	Letter, Sunday evening There is no material alteration	[1848 Jul?]
b. 4	Letter, Monday evening Father has had a more	[1848 Jul?]
b. 4	Letter, Father has had another	[1848 Sep?]
b. 4	Letter, Mr. Holbeche has been	[1848 Sep?]
b. 4	Letter, Typescript only, I have been holding	[1849 Feb 4?]
b. 4	Letter, Thursday evening Father is very much altered	[1849 Mar?]
b. 4	Letter, Wednesday evening I know you are anxious to hear	[1849 Apr?]
b. 4	Letter, Father becomes more	[1849 Apr?]
b. 4	Letter, I think father seems	[1849 May?]
b. 4	Letter	[1849 Jul 23]
b. 4	Letter, Typescript only	[1849] Sep 6
b. 4	Letter, Typescript only	[1849] Oct 4
b. 4	Letter	[1850 Feb 4]
b. 4	Letter, Typescript only	[1850 Feb 9]
b. 4	Letter, Saturday	[1850 Mar 30]
b. 4	Letter, Wednesday How have the weeks passed	[1851 Jul]
b. 4	Letter, Thursday	[1851 Sep 18]
b. 4	Letter, Sunday	[1851 Sep 21]
b. 4	Letter, Typescript only	[1852] Aug 22
b. 4	Letter	[1852] Oct 2
b. 4	Letter, Monday morning	[1852 Dec 27]
b. 4	Letter, Typescript only	1853 Nov 7

Houghton, Frances [Fanny] Lucy (Evans), 1805-1882 (Mrs. Henry Ho [...] (continued)

b. 4	Letter, Fragment:friends-men and women	[1853 Dec]
b. 4	Letter, Typescript only	1854 Apr 6
b. 4	Letter, Fragment: Chrissy & I	[1855] Dec 28
b. 4	Letter, Typescript only	1857 May 3
b. 4	Letter, Fragment: I am going	1857 May 26
b. 4	Letter	1857 Jun 2
b. 4	Houghton, Richard Monckton Milnes, 1st baron, 1809-1885  Accompanied by the signed draft of a statement recommending Edward Pigott for the secretaryship of the Royal Academy, 19 May 1873.	1873 May 13
b. 4	Joachim, Ellen (Mrs. Henry Joachim)	[1876] May 13
b. 4	Jowett, Benjamin, 1817-1893	1873 May 12
b. 4	Knox, Isa (Craig), 1831-1903 (Mrs. John Knox)	1865 Nov 1
b. 4	Laurence, Samuel	1861 Apr 8
b. 4	Lewes, Blanche Southwood, 1872- (Mrs. R. J. E. Hanson) (GHL's granddaughter)	1879 Jul 24
	Lewes, Charles and Gertrude; Lewes, Charles Lee, 1842-1891; Lewes, Gertrude (Hill), 1837-1923; (GHL's son and daughter-in-law)  The letters written by GE and GHL are noted. Unless otherwise noted, the letters are addressed to Charles Lee Lewes.	
b. <b>4</b>	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	[1861] Apr 25
	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes, Filed with letters by GHL by GE and GHL See: Section II. Letters by GEORGE HENRY LEWES	1861 May 5
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1861 May 17
	by GE and GHL	
b. 4	by GE and GHL  Letter to Charles Lee Lewes  by GE and GHL	1861 May 27
b. 4 b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1861 May 27 [1862 Mar 10]
	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes by GE and GHL	
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes by GE and GHL  Letter to Charles Lee Lewes  Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	[1862 Mar 10]

# Lewes, Charles and Gertrude; Lewes, Charles Lee, 1842-1891; Lewe [...] (continued)

b. 4	Letter to Mr. & Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes by GE and GHL	1868 Jun 27
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	[1868 Oct 13]
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1869 Dec 14
b. 4	Letter to Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes	1870 Jul 10
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1870 Jul 21
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1871 Feb 16
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1871 Jun 20
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	[1871] Jul 10
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1875 Nov 11
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	[1879 Apr 28]
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1879 May 30
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1879 Jun 5
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1879 Jun 10
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	[1879 Jul 2]
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	[1879 Jul 7]
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	[1879 Jul 10]
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1879 Jul 23
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1879 Jul 25
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1879 Jul 31
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1879 Aug 12
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1879 Sep 21
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1879 Oct 3
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes, Saturday	[1879 Oct 18]
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1879 Oct 23
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes, Tuesday	[1879 Oct 27]
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes, Thursday	[1879 Nov 6?]
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes, Tuesday	[1879 Nov 11]
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1880 May 12
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1880 May 21

# Lewes, Charles and Gertrude; Lewes, Charles Lee, 1842-1891; Lewe [...] (continued)

b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1880 May 28
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1880 Jun 9
b. 4	Letter, to Mr. & Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes	1880 [Jul] 7
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1880 Jul 13
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1880 Jul 21
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1880 Aug 28
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1880 Sep 8
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1880 Sep 19
b. 4	Letter to Charles Lee Lewes	1880 Oct 7
	Lewis, Maria, 1800?-1887	
b. 4	Letter	1838 May 26
b. 4	Letter	[1838 Aug 18]
b. 4	Letter	1838 Nov 6
b. 4	Letter	1839 Feb 27
b. 4	Letter	[1839 Mar 16]
b. 4	Letter	[1839] May 20
b. 4	Letter, Wednesday	[1839 Jul 17]
b. 4	Letter	1839 Sep 4
b. 4	Letter	1839 Oct 30
b. 4	Letter	1839 Nov 22
b. 4	Letter	1840 [Feb 13]
b. 4	Letter	[1840 Mar 13]
b. 4	Letter	1840 Mar 23
b. 4	Letter, Monday	[1840 Mar 30]
b. 4	Letter, Thursday	1840 May 26 [i.e. May 28]
b. 4	Letter, Whitwednesday	[1840 Jun 10]
b. 4	Letter	1840 Jun 23
b. 4	Letter, Monday	[1840 Jul 6]
b. 4	Letter, Monday	[1840 Jul 20]
b. 4	Letter	1840 Aug 12

# Lewis, Maria, 1800?-1887 (continued)

b. 4	Letter	1840 Sep 17
b. 4	<u>Letter</u>	1840 Oct 1
b. 4	Letter	1840 Oct 27
b. 4	Letter	1840 Dec 5
b. 4	Letter	1840 Dec 21
b. 4	Letter	1840 [i.e. 1841] Jan 27
b. 4	Letter	1841 Feb 11
b. 4	Letter	1841 Feb 17
b. 4	Letter	1840 [i.e. 1841] Mar 8
b. 4	Letter	1841 Mar 11
b. 4	Letter	1841 Apr 28
b. 4	Letter, Thursday	[1841 May 20]
b. 4	Letter, Friday	[1841 Jun 4]
b. 4	Letter	1841 Jun 18
b. 4	Letter	[1841 Jun 21]
b. 4	Letter	[1841 Jul 21]
b. 4	Letter	1841 Jul 31-Aug 2
b. 4	Letter, Thursday	[1841 Aug 12]
b. 4	Letter	[1841] Aug 20
b. 4	Letter	[1841 Aug 21]
b. 4	Letter	1841 September 03-1841 September 04
b. 4	Letter	1841 Oct 1
b. 4	Letter	1841 Oct 4
b. 4	Letter	1841 Oct 16
b. 4	Letter, Saturday	[1841 Oct 23]
b. 4	Letter, Tuesday	[1841 Nov 2]
b. 4	Letter, Saturday	[1841 Nov 13]
b. 4	Letter	[1841] Dec 8

### Lewis, Maria, 1800?-1887 (continued)

b. 4	Letter, Saturday	[1842 Jan 1]
b. 4	Letter	1842 Feb 18
b. 4	Letter	[1842 May 27]
	Liggins, Joseph See: GE's letter to <i>The Times</i> for letters about his supposed authorship of <i>Scene of Clerical Life</i> , etc.	S
b. 4	Macmillan, Alexander, 1815-1896	1874 Nov 10
	Main, Alexander, 1841-1918	
b. 4	Letter	1871 Aug 9
b. 4	Letter	1872 Nov 4
	Malleson, Elizabeth (Whitehead), 1828-1916 (Mrs. Frank Rodbard Malleson)	
b. 4	Letter	1863 Nov 15
b. 4	Letter	1864 Dec 25
b. 4	Letter	1872 Dec 19
b. 4	Letter	1880 Feb 3
b. 4	Meredith, Louisa Anne (Twamley) (Mrs. Charles Meredith)	1878 Nov 7
	Otter, Emily Helen (Cross), 1848-1907 See: Cross, Emily Helen (Mrs. Francis Otter)	
	Pears, Elizabeth (Bray) (Mrs. Abijah Hill Pears)	
b. 4	Letter, Copy by S. S. Hennell Tinker 951	[1842 Jan 28]
b. 4	Letter, Copy by S. S. Hennell Tinker 952	[1842 Mar 31]
b. 4	Letter, Copy by S. S. Hennell Tinker 953	1849 May 10
b. 4	Peirce, Melusina (Fay) (Mrs. Charles Sanders Peirce)	1866 Sep 14
	Pigott, E.F.S.	
	Postscript to letter by GHL (Section II)  See: Section II. Letters by GEORGE HENRY LEWES	1858 Jul 20
b. 4	Ralston, William Ralston Shedden, 1828-1889	1868 Oct 11
b. 4	Reynolds, Frances (Mrs. John Russell)	1873 Dec 30
	Senior, Jane Elizabeth (Hughes) (Mrs. Nassau Senior)	

# Senior, Jane Elizabeth (Hughes) (Mrs. Nassau Senior) (continued)

b. 5         Letter, Copy in an unidentified hand         1870 Mar 13           b. 5         Letter, Copy in an unidentified hand         1872 Jul 1           b. 5         Letter, Copy in an unidentified hand         1873 Jan 24           b. 5         Letter, Copy in an unidentified hand         1873 Jan 24           b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 Feb 11]           b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 Mar 8]           b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 Mar 8]           b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 Mar 8]           b. 5         Letter         1861 Aug 26           b. 5         Letter         1861 Aug 26           b. 5         Letter         1881 Aug 26           b. 5         Simpson, George         1880 Nov 12           b. 5         Simpson, Mary Charlotte Mair (Senior) (Mrs. C. T. Simpson)         1873 Mar 2           b. 5         Letter, copy         1870 Sec 10           Tinker 954         1871 Sep 16           b. 5         Letter, fragment; copy         1870 Per 10           Tinker 954	b. 5	Letter, Copy in an unidentified hand	[1867 May 22]
b. 5         Letter, Copy in an unidentified hand         1873 Jan 24           b. 5         Letter, Copy in an unidentified hand         1873 Jan 24           b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 Feb 11]           b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 Feb 21]           b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 Mar 8]           b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 Mary 14?]           b. 5         Letter         1861 Aug 26           b. 5         Letter         [1871 Jun]           b. 5         Letter         [1871 Jun]           b. 5         Simpson, George         1868 Nov 12           b. 5         Simpson, Mary Charlotte Mair (Senior) (Mrs. C. T. Simpson)         1873 Mar 2           b. 5         [Spencer, Herbert?] 1820-1903         1871 Sep 16           b. 5         Stowe, Harriet Elizabeth (Beecher), 1811-1896         1869 Dec 10           b. 5         Letter, copy Tinker 954         1869 Dec 10           b. 5         Letter, fragment; copy         [1872 Oct?]           b. 5         Letter, copy Tinker 956         1879 Apr 10           b. 5         Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor)         1872 Apr 24           b. 5         Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson)         1877 May 17 <td>b. 5</td> <td>Letter</td> <td>1869 Sep 9</td>	b. 5	Letter	1869 Sep 9
B.	b. 5	Letter, Copy in an unidentified hand	1870 Mar 13
Sibree, Jahn, 1823-1909   [1848 Feb 11]	b. 5	Letter, Copy in an unidentified hand	1872 Jul 1
b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 Feb 11]           b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 Mar 8]           b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 Mar 8]           b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 May 147]           Siebold, Antonie von (Mrs. Karl Theodor Ernst von Siebold)           b. 5         Letter         1861 Aug 26           b. 5         Letter         [1871 Jun]           b. 5         Simpson, George         1868 Nov 12           b. 5         Simpson, Mary Charlotte Mair (Senior) (Mrs. C. T. Simpson)         1873 Mar 2           b. 5         [Spencer, Herbert?] 1820-1903         1871 Sep 16           Stowe, Harriet Elizabeth (Beecher), 1811-1896           b. 5         Letter, copy Tinker 954         1869 Dec 10           b. 5         Letter, fragment; copy Tinker 955         1879 Apr 10           b. 5         Letter, copy Tinker 956         1879 Apr 10           b. 5         Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor)         1872 Apr 24           b. 5         Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor)         1877 May 17           b. 5         Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson)         1877 May 17           b. 5         Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William August	b. 5	Letter, Copy in an unidentified hand	1873 Jan 24
b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 Feb?]           b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 Mar 8]           b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 May 14?]           b. 5         Letter         1861 Aug 26           b. 5         Letter         [1871 Jun]           b. 5         Simpson, George         1868 Nov 12           b. 5         Simpson, Mary Charlotte Mair (Senior) (Mrs. C. T. Simpson)         1873 Mar 2           b. 5         [Spencer, Herbert?] 1820-1903         1871 Sep 16           b. 5         [Syencer, Herbert?] 1820-1903         1871 Sep 16           b. 5         [Syencer, Herbert?] 1820-1903         1879 Dec 10           b. 5         Letter, copy Tinker 954         1869 Dec 10           b. 5         Letter, copy Tinker 955         1872 Oct?]           b. 5         Letter, copy Tinker 956         1879 Apr 10           b. 5         Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor)         1872 Apr 24           b. 5         Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson)         1877 May 17           b. 5         Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson)         1859 Apr 15           b. 5         Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus         [1872] May 21           b. 5 </td <td></td> <td>Sibree, Jahn, 1823-1909</td> <td></td>		Sibree, Jahn, 1823-1909	
B.5	b. 5	Letter, copy	[1848 Feb 11]
b. 5         Letter, copy         [1848 May 14?]           b. 5         Letter         1861 Aug 26           b. 5         Letter         1861 Aug 26           b. 5         Letter         [1871 Jun]           b. 5         Simpson, George         1868 Nov 12           b. 5         Simpson, Mary Charlotte Mair (Senior) (Mrs. C. T. Simpson)         1873 Mar 2           b. 5         [Spencer, Herbert?] 1820-1903         1871 Sep 16           b. 5         Letter, copy Tinker 954         1869 Dec 10           b. 5         Letter, copy Tinker 954         [1872 Oct?]           b. 5         Letter, fragment; copy Tinker 955         [1872 Oct?]           b. 5         Letter, copy Tinker 956         1879 Apr 10           b. 5         Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor)         1872 Apr 24           b. 5         Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson)         1877 May 17           b. 5         The Times copy in an unidentified hand; Accompanied by a copy in an unidentified hand of GHL's letter to J. R. Quirk, 19 August 1859, and a clipping about Liggins signed "L"           b. 5         Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus         [1872] May 21           b. 5         Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus	b. 5	Letter, copy	[1848 Feb?]
Siebold, Antonie von (Mrs. Karl Theodor Ernst von Siebold)  b. 5	b. 5	Letter, copy	[1848 Mar 8]
b.5 Letter [1871 Jun] b.5 Simpson, George 1868 Nov 12 b.5 Simpson, Mary Charlotte Mair (Senior) (Mrs. C. T. Simpson) 1873 Mar 2 b.5 Simpson, Mary Charlotte Mair (Senior) (Mrs. C. T. Simpson) 1873 Mar 2 b.5 [Spencer, Herbert?] 1820-1903 1871 Sep 16  Stowe, Harriet Elizabeth (Beecher), 1811-1896 b.5 Letter, copy Tinker 954 b.5 Letter, fragment; copy [1872 Oct?] Tinker 955 b.5 Letter, copy Tinker 956 b.5 Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor) 1872 Apr 24 b.5 Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson) 1877 May 17 b.5 The Times copy in an unidentified hand; Accompanied by a copy in an unidentified hand of GHL's letter to J. R. Quirk, 19 August 1859, and a clipping about Liggins signed "L" b.5 Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus [1872] May 21 Trübner, Nicolaus, 1817-1884	b. 5	Letter, copy	[1848 May 14?]
b. 5         Letter         [1871 Jun]           b. 5         Simpson, George         1868 Nov 12           b. 5         Simpson, Mary Charlotte Mair (Senior) (Mrs. C. T. Simpson)         1873 Mar 2           b. 5         [Spencer, Herbert?] 1820-1903         1871 Sep 16           b. 5         Letter, copy Tinker 954         1869 Dec 10           b. 5         Letter, fragment; copy Tinker 955         [1872 Oct?]           b. 5         Letter, copy Tinker 956         1879 Apr 10           b. 5         Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor)         1872 Apr 24           b. 5         Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson)         1877 May 17           b. 5         The Times Copy in an unidentified hand; Accompanied by a copy in an unidentified hand of GHL's letter to J. R. Quirk, 19 August 1859, and a clipping about Liggins signed "L"         1859 Apr 15           b. 5         Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus Tollemache)         [1872] May 21		Siebold, Antonie von (Mrs. Karl Theodor Ernst von Siebold)	
b. 5 Simpson, George 1868 Nov 12 b. 5 Simpson, Mary Charlotte Mair (Senior) (Mrs. C. T. Simpson) 1873 Mar 2 b. 5 [Spencer, Herbert?] 1820-1903 1871 Sep 16 Stowe, Harriet Elizabeth (Beecher), 1811-1896 b. 5 Letter, copy Tinker 954 b. 5 Letter, fragment; copy Tinker 955 b. 5 Letter, copy Tinker 955 b. 5 Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor) 1872 Apr 24 b. 5 Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson) 1877 May 17 b. 5 The Times copy in an unidentified hand; Accompanied by a copy in an unidentified hand of GHL's letter to J. R. Quirk, 19 August 1859, and a clipping about Liggins signed "L" b. 5 Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus Tollemache) Trübner, Nicolaus, 1817-1884	b. 5	Letter	1861 Aug 26
b. 5 Simpson, Mary Charlotte Mair (Senior) (Mrs. C. T. Simpson) 1873 Mar 2 b. 5 [Spencer, Herbert?] 1820-1903 1871 Sep 16 Stowe, Harriet Elizabeth (Beecher), 1811-1896 b. 5 Letter, copy 1869 Dec 10 Tinker 954 b. 5 Letter, fragment; copy 1879 Apr 10 Tinker 955 b. 5 Letter, copy 1879 Apr 10 Tinker 956 b. 5 Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor) 1872 Apr 24 b. 5 Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson) 1877 May 17 b. 5 The Times 1859 Apr 15 Copy in an unidentified hand; Accompanied by a copy in an unidentified hand of GHL's letter to J. R. Quirk, 19 August 1859, and a clipping about Liggins signed "L" b. 5 Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus 1872 May 21 Trübner, Nicolaus, 1817-1884	b. 5	Letter	[1871 Jun]
b. 5 [Spencer, Herbert?] 1820-1903 1871 Sep 16  Stowe, Harriet Elizabeth (Beecher), 1811-1896  b. 5 Letter, copy Tinker 954  b. 5 Letter, fragment; copy Tinker 955  b. 5 Letter, copy Tinker 956  b. 5 Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor) 1872 Apr 24  b. 5 Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson) 1877 May 17  b. 5 The Times copy in an unidentified hand; Accompanied by a copy in an unidentified hand of GHL's letter to J. R. Quirk, 19 August 1859, and a clipping about Liggins signed "L"  b. 5 Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus [1872] May 21 Trübner, Nicolaus, 1817-1884	b. 5	Simpson, George	1868 Nov 12
Stowe, Harriet Elizabeth (Beecher), 1811-1896  b. 5	b. 5	Simpson, Mary Charlotte Mair (Senior) (Mrs. C. T. Simpson)	1873 Mar 2
b. 5 Letter, copy Tinker 954  b. 5 Letter, fragment; copy Tinker 955  b. 5 Letter, copy Tinker 956  b. 5 Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor)  b. 5 Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson)  b. 5 The Times Copy in an unidentified hand; Accompanied by a copy in an unidentified hand of GHL's letter to J. R. Quirk, 19 August 1859, and a clipping about Liggins signed "L"  b. 5 Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus Tollemache)  Trübner, Nicolaus, 1817-1884	b. 5	[Spencer, Herbert?] 1820-1903	1871 Sep 16
b. 5 Letter, fragment; copy Tinker 955  b. 5 Letter, copy Tinker 956  b. 5 Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor)  b. 5 Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson)  b. 5 The Times copy in an unidentified hand; Accompanied by a copy in an unidentified hand of GHL's letter to J. R. Quirk, 19 August 1859, and a clipping about Liggins signed "L"  b. 5 Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus Tollemache)  Trübner, Nicolaus, 1817-1884		Stowe, Harriet Elizabeth (Beecher), 1811-1896	
b. 5 Letter, copy Tinker 956  b. 5 Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor)  b. 5 Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson)  1877 May 17  b. 5 The Times copy in an unidentified hand; Accompanied by a copy in an unidentified hand of GHL's letter to J. R. Quirk, 19 August 1859, and a clipping about Liggins signed "L"  b. 5 Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus Tollemache)  Trübner, Nicolaus, 1817-1884	b. 5		1869 Dec 10
b. 5 Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor) 1872 Apr 24 b. 5 Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson) 1877 May 17 b. 5 The Times 1859 Apr 15 copy in an unidentified hand; Accompanied by a copy in an unidentified hand of GHL's letter to J. R. Quirk, 19 August 1859, and a clipping about Liggins signed "L" b. 5 Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus Tollemache) Trübner, Nicolaus, 1817-1884	b. 5		[1872 Oct?]
b. 5 Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson)  1877 May 17  b. 5 The Times copy in an unidentified hand; Accompanied by a copy in an unidentified hand of GHL's letter to J. R. Quirk, 19 August 1859, and a clipping about Liggins signed "L"  b. 5 Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus Tollemache)  Trübner, Nicolaus, 1817-1884	b. 5		1879 Apr 10
b. 5  The Times  copy in an unidentified hand; Accompanied by a copy in an unidentified hand of GHL's letter to J. R. Quirk, 19 August 1859, and a clipping about Liggins signed "L"  b. 5  Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus Tollemache)  Trübner, Nicolaus, 1817-1884	b. 5	Taylor, Clementia (Doughty) (Mrs. Peter A. Taylor)	1872 Apr 24
copy in an unidentified hand; Accompanied by a copy in an unidentified hand of GHL's letter to J. R. Quirk, 19 August 1859, and a clipping about Liggins signed "L"  b. 5 Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis) 1817-1896 (Mrs. William Augustus [1872] May 21 Tollemache)  Trübner, Nicolaus, 1817-1884	b. 5	Thompson, Catharine (Paget) (Mrs. Henry Lewis Thompson)	1877 May 17
Tollemache)  Trübner, Nicolaus, 1817-1884	b. 5	copy in an unidentified hand; Accompanied by a copy in an unidentified hand of	1859 Apr 15
	b. 5		[1872] May 21
b. 5 Letter 1871 Nov 13		Trübner, Nicolaus, 1817-1884	
	b. 5	Letter	1871 Nov 13

# Trübner, Nicolaus, 1817-1884 (continued)

b. <b>5</b>	Letter	1877 May 27
b. 5	Letter	1879 Jul 30
b. 5	Letter	1879 Nov [9?]
	Ward, Elizabeth Stuart (Phelps) (Mrs. H.D. Ward)	
b. 5	Letter, copy	1875 Aug 13
b. 5	Letter, copy	1876 Dec 16
b. 5	Letter, copy	1877 Nov 13
b. 5	Letter, copy  Socilatters by Mrs. Word to CE	1879 Apr 10
	See: letters by Mrs. Ward to GE	
b. 5	Watts, Francis	[1842] Apr 11
b. 5	Watts, George Frederick	1870 Jan 11
b. 5	[Zimmerman, Agnes?]	1866 Oct 23

# Section II. Letters by GEORGE HENRY LEWES to:

b. 5	Signature on quotation from T. Chalmers	[1870?]
	Unidentified recipient	
b. 5	Letter, Saturday	n.d.
b. 5	Letter, I have given up	n.d.
b. 5	Letter	1867 Oct 9
b. 5	Letter	1872 Nov 29
b. 5	Appleton, Charles Edward Cutts Birch	[1871 Feb 6]
	Baily, Mr.	
b. 5	Letter	n.d.
b. 5	Letter, Wednesday	watermark 1865
b. 5	Baudissin, Ida, Countess von, 1814-1888	[1869 Feb 4]
	Benzon, Elizabeth Lehmann	
b. 5	Letter, Tuesday	n.d.
	Accompanied by a sonnet to Mrs. Benzon, 17 May 1872	
b. 5	Blackie, John Stuart, 1809-1895	1855 Dec 19
	Blackwood, John, 1818-1879	
b. 5	Letter	[1859 Aug 3?]
b. 5	Letter	1861 Mar 6
b. 5	Blackwood, Messrs. William & Sons	1866 Apr 25
	Bodichon, Barbara Leigh (Smith), 1827-1891 (Mme. Eugène Bodichon)	
b. 5	Letter, Wednesday	[1863 Sep 30]
b. 5	Letter	[1869 Jun 16]
b. 5	Letter	[1869 Jul 6]
b. <b>5</b>	Letter, Saturday	[1870 May 21]
b. 5	Letter, Monday	[1870 Dec 19]
b. 5	Letter, Friday	[1871 Jan 6]
b. 5	Letter	[1871 Dec 12]
b. 5	Letter, Friday	[1875 Aug 13]
b. 5	Letter	1876 Jun 6
b. 5	Postcard	1877 Mar 28

# Bodichon, Barbara Leigh (Smith), 1827-1891 (Mme. Eugène Bodichon [...] (continued)

b. 5	Letter, Friday	[1877 May 4]
b. 5	Letter, Friday	[1877 May 18]
b. 5	Letter, Tuesday	[1877 Nov 27]
b. 5	Letter, Thursday	[1878 Jan 31]
b. 5	Letter	[1878 Feb 27]
b. 5	Letter	[1878 Jun 5]
b. 5	Postcard	1878 Nov 1
	Bohn, Henry George, 1796-1884	
b. 5	Letter, unsigned draft	1856 Jun 8
b. 5	Letter, draft	1856 Jun 15
b. 5	Bowring, Sir John, 1792-1872	[1866] Friday
	Bracebridge, Charles Holte, 1799-1872	
b. 5	Letter, MS copy in GE's hand	[1859 Sep 19]
b. 5	Letter, MS copy in an unidentified hand	1859 Sep 19
b. 5	Letter, MS copy in an unidentified hand	1859 Sep 29
b. 5	Letter, Draft	1859 Oct 7
	Bray, Caroline (Hennell), 1814-1905	
b. <b>5</b>	Bray, Caroline (Hennell), 1814-1905  Letter	[1863 Feb?]
b. 5 b. 5		[1863 Feb?] [1875 May 11]
	Letter	
	Letter Letter	
b. 5	Letter  Letter  Bray, Charles, 1811-1884	[1875 May 11]
b. 5 b. 5	Letter  Letter  Bray, Charles, 1811-1884  Letter	[1875 May 11] [1852 Jun?]
b. 5 b. 5	Letter  Bray, Charles, 1811-1884  Letter  Letter, Sunday  Letter, On verso of letter from GE to Charles Bray	[1875 May 11] [1852 Jun?] [1854 Jun 25]
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter  Bray, Charles, 1811-1884  Letter  Letter, Sunday  Letter, On verso of letter from GE to Charles Bray See: Section I. Letters to GE	[1875 May 11] [1852 Jun?] [1854 Jun 25] [1859 Jun 24]
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter  Bray, Charles, 1811-1884  Letter  Letter, Sunday  Letter, On verso of letter from GE to Charles Bray See: Section I. Letters to GE  Letter, Thursday  Postscript added to letter from GE to Charles Bray	[1875 May 11]  [1852 Jun?]  [1854 Jun 25]  [1859 Jun 24]
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter  Bray, Charles, 1811-1884  Letter  Letter, Sunday  Letter, On verso of letter from GE to Charles Bray See: Section I. Letters to GE  Letter, Thursday  Postscript added to letter from GE to Charles Bray See: Section I. Letters to GE	[1875 May 11]  [1852 Jun?]  [1854 Jun 25]  [1859 Jun 24]  [1859 Jun 30]  [1859 Sep 28]
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter  Bray, Charles, 1811-1884  Letter  Letter, Sunday  Letter, On verso of letter from GE to Charles Bray See: Section I. Letters to GE  Letter, Thursday  Postscript added to letter from GE to Charles Bray See: Section I. Letters to GE  Letter, Thursday	[1875 May 11]  [1852 Jun?]  [1854 Jun 25]  [1859 Jun 24]  [1859 Jun 30]  [1859 Sep 28]
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter  Bray, Charles, 1811-1884  Letter  Letter, Sunday  Letter, On verso of letter from GE to Charles Bray See: Section I. Letters to GE  Letter, Thursday  Postscript added to letter from GE to Charles Bray See: Section I. Letters to GE  Letter, Thirsday  Letter, Friday  Letter	[1875 May 11]  [1852 Jun?]  [1854 Jun 25]  [1859 Jun 24]  [1859 Jun 30]  [1859 Sep 28]  [1859 Sep 30?]  [1859 Oct 3]

	Browning, Oscar	
b. 5	Letter	[1867 Jul]
b. 5	postcard	1875 Dec 13
b. 5	Buchheim, Carl Adolf	1875 Oct 15
b. 5	[Busk, George (1807-1886)]	[1868 Nov]
b. 5	Chapman, John, 1821-1894	[1854 Jan 31?]
	Cohn, Albert	
b. 5	Letter, Friday	[1873 Dec 10]
	Conway, Moncure Daniel, 1832-1907	
b. 5	Letter, Wednesday	[186?]
b. 5	Letter, Saturday	[1866 Nov]
	Craik, George Lillie, 1837-1905	
b. 5	Letter, Thursday	n.d.
	Cracroft, Bernard	
b. 5	Empty envelope postmarked	1873 Nov 25
b. 5	Cross, the Misses	[1877] Jul 31
	Cross, Anna (Chalmers) (Mrs. William Cross)	
b. <b>5</b>	Letter, Monday	[1871 Jul 24]
b. 5	Letter	1871 Oct 21
		1671 OCL 21
b. 5	Letter	1872 Jun 25
b. 5 b. 5	Letter Letter	
		1872 Jun 25
b. 5	Letter	1872 Jun 25 1872 Dec 29
b. 5 b. 5	Letter Letter, Saturday	1872 Jun 25 1872 Dec 29 [1872 Apr 27]
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter Letter, Saturday Letter, Wednesday	1872 Jun 25 1872 Dec 29 [1872 Apr 27] [1875 Jan 13]
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter Letter, Saturday Letter, Wednesday Letter, Tuesday	1872 Jun 25 1872 Dec 29 [1872 Apr 27] [1875 Jan 13] [1877 Mar 20]
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter, Saturday  Letter, Wednesday  Letter, Tuesday  Letter, Christmas Eve	1872 Jun 25 1872 Dec 29 [1872 Apr 27] [1875 Jan 13] [1877 Mar 20]
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter, Saturday  Letter, Wednesday  Letter, Tuesday  Letter, Christmas Eve  Cross, John Walter	1872 Jun 25 1872 Dec 29 [1872 Apr 27] [1875 Jan 13] [1877 Mar 20] 1877 Dec 24
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter, Saturday  Letter, Wednesday  Letter, Tuesday  Letter, Christmas Eve  Cross, John Walter  Letter, Wednesday	1872 Jun 25  1872 Dec 29  [1872 Apr 27]  [1875 Jan 13]  [1877 Mar 20]  1877 Dec 24  n.d.

### Cross, John Walter (continued)

b. <b>5</b>	Letter	[1873 Apr 18]
b. 5	Letter, Monday	[1873 May 26]
b. 5	Post card	1874 Feb 21
b. 5	Letter, Early August	[1874]
b. 5	Letter, Tuesday	[1874 Oct 27]
b. 5	Letter, Sunday	[1875 Sep 17]
b. 5	Letter, Thursday	[1877 Feb 22]
b. 5	Letter, Monday	[1877 Mar 5]
b. 5	Letter, Friday	[1877 Mar 16]
b. 5	Letter, Sunday	[1877 Jun 10]
b. 5	Dennis, John	1866 May 10
b. 5	Dew-Smith, A.G.	n.d.
b. 5	Empson, William, 1791-1852	[1849]
b. 5	Espinasse, Francis	1861 Aug 27
b. 5	Goethe, Ottilie von	n.d.
	Gordon, G.H. Stored in: the Osborn Manuscript Files. Call number: OSB MSS FILE 9012.	[1866]
	Hamilton and Company	
b. 5	postcard	1877 Apr 24
	Hennell, Sara Sophia	
b. <b>5</b>	Letter	[1859 Apr 15]
b. 5		
۵. ٥	Letter, with postscript by GE	1860 Jul 9
b. 5	Letter, with postscript by GE Letter	1860 Jul 9 1864 Sep 5
	Letter	
b. 5	Letter Hickson, William Edward	1864 Sep 5
b. 5 b. 5	Letter  Hickson, William Edward  Letter, I am going to Paris	1864 Sep 5 n.d.
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter  Hickson, William Edward  Letter, I am going to Paris  Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson	1864 Sep 5 n.d. 1843 Sep 4
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter  Hickson, William Edward  Letter, I am going to Paris  Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson  Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson	n.d. 1843 Sep 4 1843 Nov 1
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter  Hickson, William Edward  Letter, I am going to Paris  Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson  Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson  Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson	n.d. 1843 Sep 4 1843 Nov 1 1843 Dec 20
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter  Hickson, William Edward  Letter, I am going to Paris  Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson  Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson	n.d. 1843 Sep 4 1843 Nov 1 1843 Dec 20 1843 Dec 22

### Hickson, William Edward (continued)

b. <b>5</b>	Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson	1844 Sep
b. 5	Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson	1845 Mar 22
b. <b>5</b>	Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson	1847 Sep 12
b. <b>5</b>	Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson	1847 Nov 8
b. <b>5</b>	Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson	1847 Dec 6
b. <b>5</b>	Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson	1848 Mar 5
b. <b>5</b>	Undated letter endorsed and dated by Hickson	1849 Jul 4
b. 5	Holyoake, George Jacob, 1817-1906	1875 Aug 1
b. 5	Hullah, John Pyke	[1865 Aug 5]
	Huth, Mrs. Henry	
b. <b>5</b>	Letter, Thursday	[1876]
b. 5	Hutton, J	No year May 5
	Kean, Charles John Stored in: the Osborn Manuscript Files. Call number: OSB MSS FILE 9013.	[1852] Oct 18
b. 5	Kemble, John M.	[1844?] Mar 23
b. 5	Kestner, Georg Heinrich Friedrich Wilhelm	1863 May 20
	Photostat of the original in the University Library, Leipzig	
	Lehmann, Nina (Chambers) (Mrs. Frederick Lehmann)	
b. 5	Letter	[1865 Jan]
b. <b>5</b>	Letter, Wednesday	[1867 May?]
b. <b>5</b>	Letter, Monday	[1876 May 8]
b. <b>5</b>	Letter, Monday	[1877 Feb 26]
	Lewes, Charles, Thornton and Herbert; Lewes, Charles Lee, 1842-1891; Lewes, Thornton Arnott, 1844-1869; Lewes, Herbert Arthur, 1846-1875;	
	The letters so indicated are addressed to his three sons; the remainder are addressed to Charles Lee Lewes, as indicated.	
b. <b>5</b>	Letter, to his sons	1854 Sep 27
b. <b>5</b>	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1857 Apr 15
b. <b>5</b>	Letter, to his sons	1857 Jun 18
b. <b>5</b>	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	[1857] Nov 29
b. <b>5</b>	Letter, to his sons	1858 Mar 24
b. <b>5</b>	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	[1858] Apr 20

 $Lewes, Charles, Thornton\ and\ Herbert; Lewes, Charles\ Lee, 1842-1\ [...]\ (continued)$ 

b. <b>5</b>	Letter, to his sons	1858 Jul 20
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1858 Nov 20
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Thursday	[1859 Jul 7]
b. 5	Letter, Monday night. to his sons	[1859 Jul 11]
b. 5	Letter, to his sons	1859 Nov 10
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1860 Mar 17
b. 5	Letter, to his sons	1860 May 6
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	[1860] May 30
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Sunday	[1861 Apr 21]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, With postscript by GE	1861 May 5
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1862 May 21
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	[1862 Sep 5?]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Monday	[1862 Sep 8]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	[1863] Feb 24
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1864 Mar 18
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1864 May 11
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1864 May 20
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1864 May 26
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1864 Jun 5
b. <b>5</b>	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes With note by CLL to his aunt Mrs. Edward Lewes	[1864 Sep 18]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday	[1864 Sep 28]
b. 5	Postscript to letter of March 28 addressed to Mrs. John Willim Photocopy	1870 Mar 29
	Lewes, Charles and Gertrude; Lewes, Charles Lee; Lewes, Gertrude (Hill) The letters are addressed to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes and to Charles Lee Lewes as indicated.	
b. 5	Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes, Saturday	[1865 Mar 29]
b. 5	Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes, Postscript to letter addressed to Mrs. John Willim Photocopy	1866 Jun 13
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1866 Jun 22

### Lewes, Charles and Gertrude; Lewes, Charles Lee; Lewes, Gertrude [...] (continued)

b. <b>5</b>	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1866 Jul 1
b. 5	Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes	1866 Jul 15
b. 5	Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes	1867 Jan 3
b. 5	Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes	1867 Jan 11
b. 5	Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes	1867 Jan 26
b. 5	Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes	1867 Feb 18
b. 5	Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes	1867 Feb 27
b. 5	Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes	[1867] May 2
b. 5	Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes	1867 Aug 8
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1867 Sep 13
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1867 Sep 23
b. 5	Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday	[1869 May 19]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday	[1869 Nov 2]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1870 Apr 23
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Saturday	[1870 May 7]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1870 May 17
b. 5 b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, With a note by CLL to his grand-	1870 May 17 1870 Jul 3
	·	
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, With a note by CLL to his grand-	1870 Jul 3
b. 5 b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, With a note by CLL to his grand-mother, Mrs. John Willim Tuesday	1870 Jul 3 [1870 Jul 19]
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, With a note by CLL to his grand-mother, Mrs. John Willim Tuesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Thursday	1870 Jul 3 [1870 Jul 19] [1870 Aug 25]
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, With a note by CLL to his grand-mother, Mrs. John Willim Tuesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Thursday  Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes	1870 Jul 3 [1870 Jul 19] [1870 Aug 25] 1870 Dec 25
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, With a note by CLL to his grand-mother, Mrs. John Willim Tuesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Thursday  Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday	1870 Jul 3  [1870 Jul 19]  [1870 Aug 25]  1870 Dec 25  [1871 Apr 26]
b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5 b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, With a note by CLL to his grand- mother, Mrs. John Willim Tuesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Thursday  Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1870 Jul 3 [1870 Jul 19] [1870 Aug 25] 1870 Dec 25 [1871 Apr 26] 1871 May 5
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, With a note by CLL to his grand- mother, Mrs. John Willim Tuesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Thursday  Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1870 Jul 3  [1870 Jul 19]  [1870 Aug 25]  1870 Dec 25  [1871 Apr 26]  1871 May 5  [1871 May 26]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, With a note by CLL to his grand- mother, Mrs. John Willim Tuesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Thursday  Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Friday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday	1870 Jul 3  [1870 Jul 19]  [1870 Aug 25]  1870 Dec 25  [1871 Apr 26]  1871 May 5  [1871 May 26]  [1871 Jun 7]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, With a note by CLL to his grand- mother, Mrs. John Willim Tuesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Thursday  Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Friday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Friday	1870 Jul 3  [1870 Jul 19]  [1870 Aug 25]  1870 Dec 25  [1871 Apr 26]  1871 May 5  [1871 May 26]  [1871 Jun 7]  [1871 Jun 9]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, With a note by CLL to his grand- mother, Mrs. John Willim Tuesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Thursday  Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Friday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Friday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Friday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Friday	1870 Jul 3  [1870 Jul 19]  [1870 Aug 25]  1870 Dec 25  [1871 Apr 26]  1871 May 5  [1871 May 26]  [1871 Jun 7]  [1871 Jun 9]  [1871 Aug 4]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, With a note by CLL to his grand- mother, Mrs. John Willim Tuesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Thursday  Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Friday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Friday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Sunday	1870 Jul 3  [1870 Jul 19]  [1870 Aug 25]  1870 Dec 25  [1871 Apr 26]  1871 May 5  [1871 May 26]  [1871 Jun 7]  [1871 Jun 9]  [1871 Aug 4]  [1871 Aug 27]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, With a note by CLL to his grand- mother, Mrs. John Willim Tuesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Thursday  Letter, to Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Friday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Friday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Sunday  Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Monday	1870 Jul 3  [1870 Jul 19]  [1870 Aug 25]  1870 Dec 25  [1871 Apr 26]  1871 May 5  [1871 May 26]  [1871 Jun 7]  [1871 Jun 9]  [1871 Aug 4]  [1871 Aug 27]  [1871 Aug 28]

### Lewes, Charles and Gertrude; Lewes, Charles Lee; Lewes, Gertrude [...] (continued)

b. <b>5</b>	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Sunday	[1872 Jun 23]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Sunday	[1872 Jun 30]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Friday	[1872] Aug 9
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1872 Oct 10
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1873 Jul 4
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1873 Aug 8
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Thursday	[1874 Jun 18]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1874 Jul 1
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Sunday	[1874 Aug 16]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Thursday	[1875 Jun 24]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Sunday	[1875 Jul 11]
b. <b>5</b>	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Saturday-Sunday	1875 August 07-1875 August 08
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	[1875 Sep] 23
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Sunday	[1876 Jun] 25
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1876 Jul 6
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1876 Jul 24
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1876 Aug 19
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	[1878] Jul 3
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Wednesday	[1878 Jul 10]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	[1878 Aug 26]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Tuesday	[1878 Sep 3 or10?]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Friday	[1878 Sep 6]
b. 5	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes, Tuesday	[1878 Oct 15]
	Liebreich, Richard	
b. 5	Letter, Monday	n.d.
b. 5	Lindau, Paul, 1839-1919	1875 Sep 23
	Main, Alexander, 1841-1918	
b. 5	Letter	1875 Jul 22
b. 5	Letter	1871 Dec 20

[Mathews, Charles James, 1803-1878]
-------------------------------------

b. <b>6</b>	Letter, Thursday	1854 [Jan?]
b. 6	Mitchell, Dr. Silas Weir, 1829-1914	1862 Aug 30
b. 6	Moscheles, Mrs. Felix	1877 Apr 12
	Norton, Charles Eliot	
b. 6	Postcard	1873 Apr 16
	Nutt, David	
b. 6	Letter, Thursday	[1857]
b. 6	Letter	1857 Jul 7
b. 6	Osgood, J.R. and Sons	1875 May 24
	Owen, Sir Richard	
b. 6	Letter	[1852?]
b. 6	Letter	1862 Jun 3
b. 6	Letter	1867 Oct 4
b. 6	[Parker, John William]	[1847 Apr or May]
	Pigott, Edward Frederick Smyth	
b. 6	Letter	1858 Jun 27
b. 6	Letter, with postscript to GE	1858 Jul 20
	Quirk, James R.	
b. 6	Letter, Partial copy in an unidentified hand	1859 Aug 19
b. 6	Reynolds, Frances (Mrs. John Russell)	1874 Jan 11
	Reynolds, Sir John Russell, Bart., 1828-1896	
b. 6	Letter, With env. & port. of GHL	[1870] Jul 8
	Rodgers, Guy See: Smith, George Barnett	
	Roslyn, Guy See: Smith, George Barnett	
b. 6	Scribner, Messrs. and Co.	[1866?] Aug 21
	Simpson, George	
b. 6	Letter, Monday	[1875 Dec 6]

### Smith, George Barnett, 1841-1899

(Guy Roslyn was the pseudonym of George Barnett Smith) Rodgers was GHL's misreading of Roslyn

b. 6	Letter	1872 Dec 8
b. 6	Letter Tinker 996	[1877] Nov 15
b. <b>6</b>	Stahr, Adolf	1855 Nov 12
	Thompson, Sir Henry	
b. 6	Letter	[1878 Feb]
b. 6	Letter	[1878 Jun 12?]
	Towle, George M.	
b. 6	Letter, Monday	[1866]
	Trübner, Nicolaus	
b. 6	Letter	1867 May 29
b. 6	Letter, Thursday	[1873 Feb 20]
b. 6	Letter, to Trübner's manager	[1878] Apr 19
b. 6	Letter	1878 Jun 30
b. 6	Trübner, Mrs. Nicolaus	1873 Mar 3
b. <b>6</b>	Tugwell, George (11 ALS)	1858-61, n.d.
b. 6	Webster Beniamin Nottingham, 1797-1882	[1854]
	White, William Hale	
b. 6	Letter, Tuesday	[1876 May 9]
	Willim, Elizabeth (Ashweek) Lewes (Mrs. John Willim)	
b. 6	Postscript to Mr. and Mrs. C.L. Lewes	1866 Jun 13
b. 6	Letter	1867 Feb 5
b. 6	Letter, with postscript, dated March 29, to C.L. Lewes	1870 Mar 28

[1883?] Dec 21

b. 6

Letter

# Section III. Letters to/about GEORGE ELIOT & GEORGE HENRY LEWES

#### Anonymous letters to GE: Letter, If to feel for you... b. 6 n.d. [1859?] b. 6 Letter b. 6 Letter 1868 Jul 31 b. 6 Letter 1872 Jun 4 b. 6 Letter 1876 May 31 b. 6 Letter 1876 Aug 31 [1878] Dec 4 b. 6 Letter b. 6 Letter, Signed "Dolores", in German [1879] 1879 Jan 19 b. 6 Letter b. 6 Letter 1879 May 30 Anonymous letters to GHL: b. 6 Letter, I have been trying to read and comprehend your work... [1874?] Abbott, Edwin Abbott, 1838-1926 Letter, to GE b. 6 1876 Sep 22 Acton, John Emerich Edward Dalberg, 1st baron, 1834-1902 to John Walter Cross Tinker 957 b. 6 Letter, Don't forget that we... n.d. b. 6 Letter, Easter Monday n.d. b. 6 Letter 1881 Jan 25 b. 6 Letter 1881 Feb 9 b. 6 Letter [1881?] Nov 22 b. 6 Letter [1882?] Feb 6 b. 6 Letter 1883 Jun 4 b. 6 Letter, I am sure you forgive me [1883?] b. 6 Letter, Monday [1883?] b. 6 Letter [1883?] Dec 2 b. 6 Letter, I have promised Dick [1883?]

# Acton, John Emerich Edward Dalberg, 1st baron, 1834-1902 (continued)

b. <b>6</b>	Letter	[1883?] Dec 27
b. 6	Letter	1884 Jan 5
b. 6	Letter	[1884] Feb 6
b. 6	Letter	[1884] Feb 8
b. 6	Letter	[1884] Apr 24
b. 6	Letter	1884 Oct 20
b. 6	Letter	[1884] Oct 22
b. 6	Letter	1884 Nov 2
b. 6	Letter	[1884] Nov 11
b. 6	Letter	1884 Nov 12
b. 6	Letter, Friday morning. I have an appointment	[1884]
b. 6	Letter	[1884] Nov 27
b. 6	Letter, I came up yesterday	[1884 Dec 4]
b. 6	Letter	[1884] Dec 5
b. 6	Letter, I am afraid you will find	[1884 Dec]
b. 6	Letter	[1885] Jan 3
b. 6	Letter	[1885] Jan 6
b. 6	Letter	[1885] Mar 1
	Adams, Robert Dudley, 1829-	
b. 6	Letter, to GE	1876 Jun 1
b. 6	Letter	1879 Oct 6
	Adler, Hermann, 1839-1911	
b. <b>6</b>	Letter, to GE	1876 Jun 23
	Aitchison, George	
b. <b>6</b>	Letter, to GE	1879 Dec 6
	Allbutt, Sir Thomas Clifford, 1836-1925 to GE	
b. 6	Letter, Christmas	1871
b. 6	Letter	1879 Jan 19
b. 6	Letter	1879 Feb 26

### Allbutt, Sir Thomas Clifford, 1836-1925 (continued)

b. <b>6</b>	Letter	1879 Apr 6
	Allen, Henry E.	
b. 6	Letter, to Richard Quain	1879 Apr 21
	Allingham, Helen (Paterson)	
b. 6	Letter, to Elinor Ouvry	n.d.
b. 6	Letter	[1925?] Jun 18
b. 6	Letter	[1925?] Jun 23
b. 6	Letter	1926 Jul 1
	Asher, David	
b. 6	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 5
	Bain, Alexander, 1818-1903	
b. 6	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 28
b. 6	Letter, to GHL	1875 Mar 5
	Bairdner, W.	
b. 6	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 7
	Barclay, Martha (Jackson), (Mrs. Henry Barclay)	
b. 6	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	1884 Jun 3
	Barrett-Lennard, M.	
	to GE	
b. 6	Letter, Monday	[187–]
	Bates, Charlotte Fiske, 1838-	
b. 6	Letter, to GE	1880 Jan 1
	Bayne, Peter, 1830-1896	
b. 6	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 3
	Beesly, Edward Spencer, 1831-1915	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 6	Letter	1868 Nov 16
b. 6	Letter	1869 May 20
b. 6	Letter	1870 Jun 10
b. 6	Letter	1878 Dec 5
b. 6	Letter	1880 May 8

# Beesly, Edward Spencer, 1831-1915 (continued)

b. 6	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	1878 Dec 4
	Beesly, Emily (Crompton) (Mrs. Edward Spencer Beesly)	
b. 6	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 3
	Bell, Mrs. ("Nursie")	
b. 6	Letter, to GE	1860 Jun 18
	Bell, James	
b. 6	Letter, to GE	1871 Nov 18
	Belloc, Elizabeth [Bessie] Rayner (Parkes) (Mrs. Louis Belloc) 1829-1925	
b. 6	Letter, to GE	1859 Aug 17
	Benisch, Abraham	
b. 6	Letter, to GE	1876 Dec 15
	Benson, Robert H.	
b. 6	Letter, to GE	1880 Apr 14
	Bishop, J	
b. 6	Letter, to GE	1880 Feb 10
	Verses, "Impromptu. After reading Silas Marner." on p. [2-4].	
	Blackie, John Stuart, 1809-1895	
b. 7	Letter, to GE	[1859] Dec 26
	Blackwood, G.W. and J.H.	
b. 7	Letter, to Elinor Ouvry	1926 Feb 19
b. 7	Letter, to Elinor Ouvry	1927 Nov 14
	Blackwood, John, 1818-1879	
	Letter, to GE	1860 Mar 22
b. 7	Letter, to GE	1878 Sep 29
b. 7	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 1
b. 7	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 2
	Letter, to GHL	1858 Nov 15
b. 7	Letter, to GHL	1872 Dec 21
	Tinker 958	
b. 7	Letter, to GHL	1877 Oct 25

### Blackwood, John, 1818-1879 (continued)

b. 7	Letter, to Alexander Main A copy [in the hand of George Simpson?]	1873 Nov 13
	Blackwood, William, 1810-1861	
b. <b>7</b>	Letter, to GE	1860 May 23
	Blackwood, William, 1836-1912	
b. <b>7</b>	Letter, to GE	1880 Jan 12
b. 7	Letter, to C.L. Lewes (photocopy)	1881 Jan 8
b. 7	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	1886 Feb 5
b. 7	Letter, to G.H. Lewes	1866 Apr 24
	Bodichon, Barbara Leigh (Smith), 1827-1891 (Mme. Eugène Bodichon)	
	Letter, to GE	1856 Jan 14
b. <b>7</b>	Letter, to GE	1856 November 21-1856 December 08
b. 7	Letter, to GE	[1858] Dec 2
b. 7	Letter, to GE	[1859 Apr?]
b. 7	Letter, to GE Tinker 961	[1859] Apr 26
b. 7	Letter, to GE Tinker 962	[1859 Jun 28]
b. 7	Letter, to GE, Aunt Julia does nothing	[1859 Jun?]
b. 7	Letter, to GE	1859 June 30-1859 July 01
b. 7	Letter, to GE	[1859 Jul 3]
b. 7	Letter, to GE, Wednesday. I am going to Wimbledon	[1859 Jul]
b. 7	Letter, to GE	[1859] Jul 25
b. 7	Letter, to GE	[1859] Aug 10
b. 7	Letter, to GE	[1859] Aug 26
b. 7	Letter, to GE	[1859 Aug 28]
b. 7	Letter, to GE	[1859] Sep 28
b. 7	Letter, to GE	[1859] Nov 27
b. 7	Letter, to GE	[1859] Dec 25

Bodichon, Barbara Leigh (Smith), 1827-1891 (Mme. Eugène Bodichon [...] > Letter, to GE (continued)

b. <b>7</b>	Letter, to GE	[1860] Jun 13
b. 7	Letter, to GE	1860 Dec 22
b. 7	Letter, to GE, Sunday. I hope you received	[1863 Jul]
b. 7	Letter, to GE, Enclosing 8 pages copied from Elizabeth Malleson's letters on <i>Romola</i> (lacks the end)	1867 Jan 11
b. 7	Letter, to GE	1867 Nov?-Dec 16
b. 7	Letter, to GE, I have read your new book	[1871 Dec]
b. 7	Letter, to GE, Friday. I have had some qualms	[1873 Jan?]
b. 7	Letter, to GE Tinker 963	[1880] May 8
b. 7	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	[1880 May]
b. 7	Copy in an unidentified hand of a portion of a letter [to her?] describing a visit with GE	1879 Jun 22
b. 7	Three pen and ink sketches of Elizabeth [Bessie] Rayner (Parkes) Belloc	Undated
	Bohn, Henry George, 1796-1884	
b. 7	Letter, to GHL	1856 Jun 3
b. 7	Letter, endorsed by GE	1856 Jun 7
b. 7	Letter	1856 Jun 13
b. 7	Letter	1856 Jun 18
	Bond, Sir Edward Augustus, 1815-1898	
b. 7	Letter, to GE	1874 Apr 9
	Bottrill, W. Evans	
b. 7	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 5
	Bowen, Charles Synge Christopher, 1st baron	
b. 7	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 4
b. 7	Letter, to J.W. Cross, In the important passage	[1885]
b. 7	Letter, to J.W. Cross, I am delighted with the success  Tinker 960	[1885]
	Bracebridge, Charles Holte, 1799-1872	
	Letters, to Charles Bray	
b. 7	<u>Letter</u>	[1859] Jul 3

# Bracebridge, Charles Holte, 1799-1872 > Letters, to Charles Bray (continued)

b. <b>7</b>	<u>Letter</u>	[1859] Sep 12
b. 7	<u>Letter</u>	1859 Sep 13
b. 7	Letter	1859 Sep 17
b. 7	Letter, I have returned the paper	1859 Sep 24
b. 7	Letter, A ship you see last week	1859 Sep 24
b. 7	Letter, With a copy of his letter to GHL	[1859 Oct 2]
b. 7	Letter	[1859]
b. 7	<u>Letter</u>	[1860 Jul 15?]
b. 7, 🗏 vol. 4	Letter, to GE	1859 Oct 10
	Letters, to GHL	
b. 7	<u>Letter</u>	[1859] Sep 26
b. 7	<u>Letter</u>	1859 Oct 1
b. 7	<u>Letter</u>	1859 Oct 4
b. 7	<u>Letter</u>	1859 Oct 9
	Bray, Caroline (Hennell), 1814-1905	
b. <b>7</b>	Bray, Caroline (Hennell), 1814-1905  Letter, to Elizabeth Rebecca (Brabant) Hennell Call Tinker 964	1844 Jul 28
b. 7	Letter, to Elizabeth Rebecca (Brabant) Hennell Call	1844 Jul 28
b. 7	Letter, to Elizabeth Rebecca (Brabant) Hennell Call Tinker 964	1844 Jul 28 [1859] Jun 25
	Letter, to Elizabeth Rebecca (Brabant) Hennell Call Tinker 964 Letters, to GE	
b. 7	Letter, to Elizabeth Rebecca (Brabant) Hennell Call Tinker 964  Letters, to GE  Letter	[1859] Jun 25
b. 7 b. 7	Letter, to Elizabeth Rebecca (Brabant) Hennell Call Tinker 964  Letters, to GE  Letter  Letter	[1859] Jun 25 [1859] Jul 24
b. 7 b. 7 b. 7	Letter, to Elizabeth Rebecca (Brabant) Hennell Call Tinker 964  Letters, to GE  Letter  Letter  Letter	[1859] Jun 25 [1859] Jul 24 [1863] Aug 31
b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7	Letter, to Elizabeth Rebecca (Brabant) Hennell Call Tinker 964  Letters, to GE  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	[1859] Jun 25 [1859] Jul 24 [1863] Aug 31 [1873] Mar 21
b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7	Letter, to Elizabeth Rebecca (Brabant) Hennell Call Tinker 964  Letters, to GE  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	[1859] Jun 25 [1859] Jul 24 [1863] Aug 31 [1873] Mar 21
b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7	Letter, to Elizabeth Rebecca (Brabant) Hennell Call Tinker 964  Letters, to GE  Letter	[1859] Jun 25 [1859] Jul 24 [1863] Aug 31 [1873] Mar 21 [1873] Mar 23
b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7	Letter, to Elizabeth Rebecca (Brabant) Hennell Call Tinker 964  Letters, to GE  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Tinker 965	[1859] Jun 25 [1859] Jul 24 [1863] Aug 31 [1873] Mar 21 [1873] Mar 23

Bray, Charles, 1811-1884

Bray, Charles, 1811-1884 (continued)

b. 7	Letter, to C.H. Bracebridge	1860 Jul 14
	Draft. Accompanied by Frederick Temple's judgment in the case of Craddo vs. Bray, 12 July 1860.	CK
	Letters, to GE	
b. <b>7</b>	Letter	1855 Oct 13
b. 7	Letter	[1859 Jun 26]
b. 7	Letter	1859 Jul 8
b. 7	Letter	1859 Jul 18
b. 7	Letter	1859 Aug 14
b. 7	Letter	1859 Sep 18
b. 7	Letter	1859 Sep 20
b. <b>7</b>	Letter	[1859 Sep 26]
b. 7	Letter	1874 May 18
	Bray-Hennell Extracts, all in the hand of Sara Sophia Hennell:	
b. <b>7</b>	1. Extracts from the letters of Sara Hennell, Mary Hennell, and Caroline Hennell Bray concerning GE.  Tinker 993	1842-1849
b. <b>7</b>	2. Extracts of "quotable passages" from the letters of GE to Maria Lewis, John Sibree, and Mary Sibree Cash.  Tinker 992	
b. 7	3. Account of an incident in the childhood of GE, told by Miss Shaw.	
	Brewster, Margaret Maria	
b. 7	Letter, to GE	1859 Oct 5
	Bridges, John Henry, 1832-1906	
b. <b>7</b>	Letter, to GE	[1859] Sep 11
	British Museum (by Robin Flower)	
b. 7	Letter, to Elinor Ouvry On verso: List of GHL's manuscripts sold to Yale	1939 Jun 13
	Brock, T.D.C. (wife of the gardener at Witley)	
b. 7	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 6
	Broune, William Brockden	
b. <b>7</b>	Letter, to GE	1879 Dec 23
	Brown, George Dransfield	

# Brown, George Dransfield (continued)

Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923 b. 7	b. <b>7</b>	Letter, to GE	1872 Dec 4
Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923		Brown, Dr. John, 1810-188Z	
b. 7 Letter, to GE cetter, to GL. Lewes cetter, to GL. Lewes cetter, to GL. Lewes cetter, to GL. Lewes cetter, to GE cetter ce	b. <b>7</b>	Letter, to John Blackwood	[1859] Feb 16
About Rajon's etching of GE  b. 7		Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923	
b. 7 Letter, to GE 1868 May 24 b. 7 Letter, to C.L. Lewes 1890 Mar 18 b. 7 Letter, to C.L. Lewes 1890 Apr 1  Bruce, John G. b. 7 Letter, to GE 1880 Apr 9  Bryce, James Bryce, viscount, 1838-1922 b. 7 Letter, to JW. Cross [1880] May 25 b. 7 Letter [1885] Mar 25 b. 7 Letter [1885] Apr 27 Tinker 966  Buchanan, Robert, 1841-1901 b. 7 Letter, to GE 1878 Dec 9  Letters, to GHL b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 6 b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 6 b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 15  Buddee, Karl b. 7 Letter, to GE 1870 September 1 1870 September 1 1870 September 1 1870 September 1	b. 7		1890 Nov 11
b. 7 Letter, to C.L. Lewes 1890 Mar 18 b. 7 Letter, to C.L. Lewes 1890 Apr 1  Bruce, John G.  b. 7 Letter, to GE 1880 Apr 9  Bryce, James Bryce, viscount, 1838-1922  b. 7 Letter [1885] Mar 2  b. 7 Letter [1885] Apr 2  Tinker 966  Buchanan, Robert, 1841-1901  b. 7 Letter, to GE 1878 Dec 9  Letters, to GHL  b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 6  b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 15  Buddee, Karl  b. 7 Letter, to GE 1870 Septem 18-1870 Se	b. 7	Letter, to GE	1867 Jul 22
b. 7 Letter, to C.L. Lewes Bruce, John G. b. 7 Letter, to GE Bryce, James Bryce, viscount, 1838-1922 b. 7 Letter [1885] May 2 b. 7 Letter [1885] May 2 b. 7 Letter [1885] May 2 b. 7 Letter [1885] Apr 2 Tinker 966  Buchanan, Robert, 1841-1901 b. 7 Letter, to GE Letters, to GHL b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 6 b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 15 Buddee, Karl  b. 7 Letter, to GE Incomplete copy by GE; in German. Tinker 968	b. 7	Letter, to GE	1868 May 24
Bruce, John G. b. 7 Letter, to GE 1880 Apr 9  Bryce, James Bryce, viscount, 1838-1922 b. 7 Letter, to J.W. Cross [1880] May 2 b. 7 Letter [1885] Mar 2 b. 7 Letter [1885] Apr 2 Tinker 966  Buchanan, Robert, 1841-1901 b. 7 Letter, to GE 1878 Dec 9  Letters, to GHL b. 7 Letter 1864 Jun 30 b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 6 b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 15  Buddee, Karl b. 7 Letter, to GE 1870 September 18-1870 September 17 September 18-1870 Septe	b. 7	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	1890 Mar 18
b. 7 Letter, to GE 1880 Apr 9  Bryce, James Bryce, viscount, 1838-1922  b. 7 Letter [1885] May 2  b. 7 Letter [1885] Apr 2  Tinker 966  Buchanan, Robert, 1841-1901  b. 7 Letter, to GE 1878 Dec 9  Letters, to GHL  b. 7 Letter 1864 Jun 30  b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 6  b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 15  Buddee, Karl  b. 7 Letter, to GE 1870 September 1  Tinker 968	b. 7	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	1890 Apr 1
Bryce, James Bryce, viscount, 1838-1922 b. 7		Bruce, John G.	
b. 7	b. 7	Letter, to GE	1880 Apr 9
b. 7		Bryce, James Bryce, viscount, 1838-1922	
b. 7	b. 7	Letter, to J.W. Cross	[1880] May 27
Tinker 966  Buchanan, Robert, 1841-1901  b. 7	b. 7	<u>Letter</u>	[1885] Mar 21
b. 7 Letter, to GE  Letters, to GHL  b. 7 Letter  b. 7 Letter  b. 7 Letter  1864 Jun 30  b. 7 Letter  1864 Aug 6  b. 7 Letter  1864 Aug 15  Buddee, Karl  b. 7 Letter, to GE Incomplete copy by GE; in German.  Tinker 968	b. 7		[1885] Apr 22
Letters, to GHL         b. 7       Letter       1864 Jun 30         b. 7       Letter       1864 Aug 6         Buddee, Karl         Buddee, Karl         Letter, to GE Incomplete copy by GE; in German.       1870 Septem 18-1870 September 1         Tinker 968		Buchanan, Robert, 1841-1901	
b. 7 Letter 1864 Jun 30 b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 6 b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 15  Buddee, Karl  b. 7 Letter, to GE 1870 September 1 Incomplete copy by GE; in German. Tinker 968	b. 7	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 9
b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 6 b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 15  Buddee, Karl b. 7 Letter, to GE Incomplete copy by GE; in German. Tinker 968		Letters, to GHL	
b. 7 Letter 1864 Aug 15  Buddee, Karl  b. 7 Letter, to GE Incomplete copy by GE; in German. Tinker 968	b. 7	Letter	1864 Jun 30
Buddee, Karl  b. 7 Letter, to GE Incomplete copy by GE; in German.  Tinker 968  1870 Septem 18-1870 September 1	b. 7	Letter	1864 Aug 6
b. 7 Letter, to GE 1870 Septem 18-1870 Incomplete copy by GE; in German. 18-1870 September 1 Tinker 968	b. 7	Letter	1864 Aug 15
Incomplete copy by GE; in German.  18-1870 September 1 Tinker 968		Buddee, Karl	
Burne-Jones, Sir Edward Coley, 1833-1898	b. 7	Incomplete copy by GE; in German.	1870 September 18-1870 September 19
		Burne-Jones, Sir Edward Coley, 1833-1898	
b. 7 Letter, to J.W. Cross [1880 Dec 24	b. 7	Letter, to J.W. Cross	[1880 Dec 24]
b. 7 Letter, to J.W. Cross [1880] Dec 2 Tinker 967	b. 7		[1880] Dec 28

# Burne-Jones, Georgiana (Macdonald), Lady, 1840-1920

#### Letters, to J.W. Cross

b. 7	<u>Letter</u>	1880 Dec 23
b. 7	<u>Letter</u>	1881 Mar 26
b. 7	<u>Letter</u>	1885 Jan 27
b. 7	<u>Letter</u>	1885 Apr 10
b. 7	<u>Letter</u>	1885 Apr 14
	Letters, to GE	
b. <b>7</b>	Letter	[1870] Aug 2
b. 7	Letter	1873 Jun 23
b. 7	Letter	1878 Dec 5
b. 7	Letter	1879 Jul 1
b. 7	Letter	1880 May 06-1880 May 07
b. 7	Letter	1880 Jun 16
b. 7	Letter	1880 Aug 31
	Burton, Sir Frederic William, 1816-1900	
b. 7	Letter, to GE	1863 Jul 9
b. 7	Letter, to GE	1868 Jun 21
b. 7	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	1882 Jan 27
	Caird, Edward, 1835-1908	
b. 7	Letter, to GHL	1874 May 10
b. 7	Letter, to GHL	1877 May 20
	Call, Elizabeth Rebecca (Brabant) Hennell, 1811-1898	
b. 7	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 3
b. 7	Letter, to GE	[1880] May 21
	Call, Wathen Mark Wilks	
b. 7	Letter, to J.W. Cross	1882 Jul 22
	Campbell, P.W.	
b. <b>7</b>	Letter, to GE	1878 Oct 16
	Carlyle, Jane Baillie (Welsh), 1801-1866	

# Carlyle, Jane Baillie (Welsh), 1801-1866 (continued)

b. 7	Letter, to GE	1859 Feb 20
	Tinker 969	
	Carlyle, Thomas, 1795-1881	
b. 7	Letter, to GHL	1855 Nov 3
	Cassell & Co. Ltd.	
b. 7	Letter, to Ellis & Ellis	1931 Feb 13
	Chapman, John, 1821-1894	
b. 7	Letter, to James Martineau Draft in the hand of GE	1851 Aug 29
b. 7	Letter, to GE	1857 Jan 15
	Letters, to Johanna von Heyligenstaedt	
b. <b>7</b>	Letter	1859 Jun 21
b. 7	Letter	1859 Sep 26
b. 7	Letter	1860 Oct 18
b. 7	Letter	1860 Nov 17
b. 7	Letter	1861 Jul 25
b. 7	Letter	1861 August 05-1861 August 06
b. 7	Letter	05-1861 August
		05-1861 August 06
b. 7	Letter	05-1861 August 06 1861 Oct 24
b. 7 b. 7	Letter Letter	05-1861 August 06 1861 Oct 24 1861 Nov 16
b. 7 b. 7 b. 7	Letter Letter Letter	05-1861 August 06 1861 Oct 24 1861 Nov 16 1861 Nov 20
b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7	Letter Letter Letter Letter	05-1861 August 06 1861 Oct 24 1861 Nov 16 1861 Nov 20 1861 Dec 9
b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7	Letter Letter Letter Letter Letter	05-1861 August 06 1861 Oct 24 1861 Nov 16 1861 Nov 20 1861 Dec 9 1862 Feb 20
b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7	Letter Letter Letter Letter Letter Letter Letter	05-1861 August 06  1861 Oct 24  1861 Nov 16  1861 Nov 20  1861 Dec 9  1862 Feb 20  1862 Mar 6
b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7	Letter Letter Letter Letter Letter Letter Letter Letter Letter	05-1861 August 06  1861 Oct 24  1861 Nov 16  1861 Nov 20  1861 Dec 9  1862 Feb 20  1862 Mar 6  1862 Mar 11
b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7	Letter	05-1861 August 06  1861 Oct 24  1861 Nov 16  1861 Nov 20  1861 Dec 9  1862 Feb 20  1862 Mar 6  1862 Mar 11  1862 Mar 24
b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7 b. 7	Letter	05-1861 August 06  1861 Oct 24  1861 Nov 16  1861 Nov 20  1861 Dec 9  1862 Feb 20  1862 Mar 6  1862 Mar 11  1862 Mar 24  1862 Apr 8
b. 7	Letter	05-1861 August 06  1861 Oct 24  1861 Nov 16  1861 Nov 20  1861 Dec 9  1862 Feb 20  1862 Mar 6  1862 Mar 11  1862 Mar 24  1862 Apr 8  1862 Jul 4
b. 7	Letter	05-1861 August 06  1861 Oct 24  1861 Nov 16  1861 Nov 20  1861 Dec 9  1862 Feb 20  1862 Mar 6  1862 Mar 11  1862 Mar 24  1862 Apr 8  1862 Jul 4

### Chapman, John, 1821-1894 > Letters, to Pres (his second wife) (continued)

b. 8	Letter	1880 Jan 29
b. 8	Letter	1880 Feb 5
b. 8	Letter	1880 Feb 10
	Chapman, Susanna (Brewitt), 1808-1892	
b. 8	Letter, to John Chapman	[1851] Oct 31
	Chapman and Hall	
b. 8	Estimate for a 2/-series	1866
	Chapman-Huston, Desmond	
b. 8	<u>Letter, to Elinor Ouvry</u> with draft of Mrs. Ouvry's reply	1935 Nov 5
	Child, Lydia Maria, 1802-1880	
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1879 Jan 26
	Christie, J.M.	
b. 8	Letter, to [GE]	1867 Sep 20
	Clark, Harriet	
b. 8	Letter, to Elinor Ouvry	[1928] Apr 3
	Clark, William George	
b. 8	Letter, to GE	[187-] Nov 18
	Clarke, Edward, 1838- (GE's nephew)	
b. 8	<u>Letter, to GE</u>	1868 Jul 31
	Clarke, Emily Susannah, 1844-1924 (GE's niece)	
b. 8	Letter, to GE	[1859] Oct 20
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1871 Sep 16
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 2
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 13
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1880 May 6
	Clifford, William Kingdon, 1845-1879	
b. 8	Letter, to GHL	[1872?]
	Clodd, Edward, 1840-1930	
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1879 Dec 27

	Cohn, Albert	
b. 8	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	1883 Dec 14
b. 8	Letter, to GHL	1873 Jun 18
	Combe, George, 1788-1858	
b. 8	Letter, to GHL	1856 Sep 14
	Congreve, Maria (Bury), 1836?-1915	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 8	Letter	1859 May 1
b. 8	Letter	1859 May 21
b. 8	Letter	1859 Jun 8
b. 8	Letter	1859 Jun 24
b. 8	Letter	1859 Aug 27
b. 8	Letter	1860 May 17
b. 8	Letter	1860 Dec 28
b. 8	Letter	1878 Dec 1
b. 8	Letter	1878 Dec 13
b. 8	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	1878 Dec 2
	Congreve, Richard, 1818-1899	
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 9
	Conran, Edith	
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 11
	Coombs, D.J.	
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1873 Nov 25
	Costello, Dudley, 1803-1865	
b. 8	Letter, to GHL	1858 Feb 10
	Courtauld, Samuel, 1793-1881	
b. 8	Letter, to John Chapman	1854 Nov 9
b. 8	Letter, to John Chapman	1855 Nov 29
	Coventry Public Library, E. Austin Hinton, Librarian	
b. <b>8</b>	<u>Letter, to Elsie Druce</u>	1934 Feb 15

### Cowper-Temple, Georgiana (Tollemache), Lady

[Entered in catalogue under Mount-Temple, Georgiana (Tollemache) Cowper-Temple, baroness, 1822-1901]

b. 8	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 11
b. 8	Letter, to GE	[1879] Nov 18
	Craik, George Lillie, 1798-1866	
b. 8	Letter, to GHL, Friday	[1858]
	Cross, Eleanor, 1847-1895	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 8	Letter	[1880 Apr 12]
b. 8	Letter	[1880] Jul 20
b. 8	Letter	[1880] May 6
b. 8	Letter, Tuesday	[1880? Jun]
b. 8	Letter, to E.F.S. Pigott	[1880] May 6
	Cross, John Walter, 1840-1924	
b. 8	Letter, to an unidentified recipient	1880 Dec 23
	Letters, to Barbara Leigh (Smith) Bodichon	
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1881 Jan 13
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1881 May 3
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1881 May 7
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1881 Jul 9
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1881 Aug 27
b. 8	Letter, to Lady Burne-Jones	1880 Dec 22
	Letters, to Sir Frederic Burton	
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1881 Feb 5
b. 8	Letter, The portrait and I	1881 Feb 7
b. 8	Letter, I am just back	1881 Feb 7
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1885 Mar 16
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1885 Mar 18
	Letters, to Anna (Chalmers) Cross	
b. 8	Letter	1872 Apr 13

### Cross, John Walter, 1840-1924 > Letters, to Anna (Chalmers) Cross (continued)

b. 8	Letter	1872 May 3
b. 8	Letter, to Mary Finlay Cross	1880 Jun 1
	Letters, to Robert Evans	
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1881 Feb 1
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1881 Mar 3
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1882 May 16
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1882 Sep 17
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1883 Aug 6
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1883 Aug 15
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1884 Nov 24
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1885 Mar 28
	Letters, to Gertrude (Hill) Lewes	
b. 8	<u>Letter</u> Fragment in the hand of J.W. Cross of a quotation from a letter from Professor Tyndall to Dean Stanley about <i>The Spanish Gypsy</i> .	1919 Mar 13
b. 8	Photocopy of his will and its codicils	1915 Oct 11
b. 8	Letter	1916 Jun 6
b. 8 b. 8	Letter  Accompanied by 2 obituaries, one from <i>The Times</i> and the other not identified	1916 Jun 6 1924 Nov 4
	Accompanied by 2 obituaries, one from <i>The Times</i> and the other not	
	Accompanied by 2 obituaries, one from <i>The Times</i> and the other not identified	
b. 8	Accompanied by 2 obituaries, one from <i>The Times</i> and the other not identified  Cross, Mary Finlay, 1843-1902	1924 Nov 4
b. 8 b. 8	Accompanied by 2 obituaries, one from <i>The Times</i> and the other not identified  Cross, Mary Finlay, 1843-1902  Letter, to J.W. Cross	1924 Nov 4 [1880] Jun 5
b. 8 b. 8	Accompanied by 2 obituaries, one from <i>The Times</i> and the other not identified  Cross, Mary Finlay, 1843-1902  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Letter, to GE	1924 Nov 4 [1880] Jun 5
b. 8 b. 8	Accompanied by 2 obituaries, one from <i>The Times</i> and the other not identified  Cross, Mary Finlay, 1843-1902  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Letter, to GE  Cust, Lionel	1924 Nov 4 [1880] Jun 5 [1880] May 10
b. 8 b. 8	Accompanied by 2 obituaries, one from <i>The Times</i> and the other not identified  Cross, Mary Finlay, 1843-1902  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Letter, to GE  Cust, Lionel  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Cyples, William  Letter, to GE	1924 Nov 4  [1880] Jun 5  [1880] May 10  1905 Feb 15
b. 8 b. 8 b. 8	Accompanied by 2 obituaries, one from <i>The Times</i> and the other not identified  Cross, Mary Finlay, 1843-1902  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Letter, to GE  Cust, Lionel  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Cyples, William	1924 Nov 4  [1880] Jun 5  [1880] May 10  1905 Feb 15
b. 8 b. 8 b. 8	Accompanied by 2 obituaries, one from <i>The Times</i> and the other not identified  Cross, Mary Finlay, 1843-1902  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Letter, to GE  Cust, Lionel  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Cyples, William  Letter, to GE  Accompanied by a copy of his "The Permutation of Ideas" [1868] inscribed to	1924 Nov 4  [1880] Jun 5  [1880] May 10  1905 Feb 15
b. 8 b. 8 b. 8	Accompanied by 2 obituaries, one from <i>The Times</i> and the other not identified  Cross, Mary Finlay, 1843-1902  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Letter, to GE  Cust, Lionel  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Cyples, William  Letter, to GE  Accompanied by a copy of his "The Permutation of Ideas" [1868] inscribed to GH Lewes.	1924 Nov 4  [1880] Jun 5  [1880] May 10  1905 Feb 15
b. 8 b. 8 b. 8	Accompanied by 2 obituaries, one from <i>The Times</i> and the other not identified  Cross, Mary Finlay, 1843-1902  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Letter, to GE  Cust, Lionel  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Cyples, William  Letter, to GE  Accompanied by a copy of his "The Permutation of Ideas" [1868] inscribed to GH Lewes.  D'Albert Durade, Alexandre Louis François, 1804-1886	1924 Nov 4  [1880] Jun 5  [1880] May 10  1905 Feb 15
b. 8 b. 8 b. 8 b. 8	Accompanied by 2 obituaries, one from <i>The Times</i> and the other not identified  Cross, Mary Finlay, 1843-1902  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Letter, to GE  Cust, Lionel  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Cyples, William  Letter, to GE  Accompanied by a copy of his "The Permutation of Ideas" [1868] inscribed to GH Lewes.  D'Albert Durade, Alexandre Louis François, 1804-1886  Letters, to J.W. Cross	1924 Nov 4  [1880] Jun 5  [1880] May 10  1905 Feb 15  1879 Dec 31

### D'Albert Durade, Alexandre Louis François, 1804-1886 (continued)

	Letters, to GE	1859 Oct 23
b. 8	Letter	1859 Nov 30
b. 8	Letter	1860 Feb 5
b. 8	Letter	1860 Mar 19
b. 8	Letter	1860 Sep 11
b. 8	Letter	1860 Nov 25
b. 8	Letter	1861 Jan 24
b. 8	Letter	1864 Mar 21
b. 8	Letter	1864 Jun 20
b. 8	Letter	1871 Sep 11
b. 8	Letter	1872 Oct 19
b. 8	Letter	1873 Oct 26
b. 8	Letter	1877 Jan 19
b. 8	Letter	1878 Dec 7
	D'Albert Durade, Julie (Covelle), 1800-1880	
b. 8	Letter, to GE	[1860]
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1860 Jul 16
	David, Ernest	
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1876 Nov 11
	Enclosing a review of <i>Daniel Deronda</i> by Alexandre Weill	
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1877 Sep 12
	Delboeuf, Joseph Rémi Léopold	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 8	Letter	1879 Feb 23
b. 8	Letter	1879 May 23
b. 8	Letter	1879 Oct 14
b. 8	Letter, to GHL	1878 Jul 10
	Accompanied by Delboeuf's article, "Psychologie comparée. Le sens des couleurs chez les animaux" in La Revue Scientifique, 24 May 1879, inscribed to GE.	
	De la Rue, Warren	
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 5

# Deutsch, Emanuel Oscar Menahem, 1829-1873

b. 8	Letter, to GE	1867 Aug 20
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1867 Oct 2
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1868 May 21
	Dickens, Charles	
b. 8	Letter, to GHL	1853 Feb 25
	Dilke, Emilia Francis (Strong) Pattison, Lady, 1840-1904	
b. 8	Letter, to GE	1874 Nov 30
b. <b>8</b>	Letter, to GE  Accompanied by an excerpt copied by Mrs. Pattison from the <i>Livret du Salon</i> quoting GE's "The Lifted Veil."	[1875 Jan 10]
	Dohrn, Anton, 1840-1909	
b. 8	Letter, to GHL	1873 Feb 10
	Dolgoronsky, Olga	
b. 8	Letter, to J.W. Cross	1889 Jul 3
	Druce, Anna Bowling Buchanan (Cross) (Mrs. Albert Druce), 1841-1921	
b. 8	Letter, to J.W. Cross	1880 June 11-1880 June 12
	Druce, Elsie	
	Letters, to Elinor Ouvry	
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1925 Feb 3
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1926 Feb 21
b. 8	<u>Letter</u>	1932 Oct 23
	Letters to Miss Druce, about GE's grave in Highgate Cemetery, from:	
b. 8	National Trust	1946 Oct 22
b. 8	The London Society	1946 Oct 30
b. 8	London Cemetery Co.	1946 Nov 2
b. 8	Mrs. H.M. Tonks (née Evans)	1946 Nov 6
b. 8	London Cemetery Co.	1946 Nov 8
b. 8	lan Maclean	1946 Nov 8
b. 8	National Trust	1946 Nov 8

 $\label{eq:continued} \textit{Druce, Elsie} > \textit{Letters to Miss Druce, about GE's grave in Highgate Cemetery, fr} \ [...] \ (\textit{continued})$ 

b. 8	Mrs. H.M. Tonks	1946 Nov 11
b. 8	Daniel & Millward	1946 Nov 18
b. 8	London Cemetery Co.	1947 Apr 30
b. 8	London Cemetery Co.	1947 May 2
b. 8	London Cemetery Co.	1947 May 9
b. 8	Mrs. H.M. Tonks	1947 Jun 2
b. 8	Accompanied by a copy of a deed of sale (incompletely filled in) of G grave in Highgate Cemetery.	E's
	Du Maurier, George Louis Palmella Busson, 1834-1896	
b. 8	<u>Letter, to C.L. Lewes</u>	[1881] May 2 (or9?)
	Duncan, Warren & Gardner	
b. 8	Letter, to William Blackwood & Sons (Photocopy)	1881 Feb 21
	Edwards, Annie L.	
b. 9	Leter, to GE	[1873] Apr 11
	Eliot, George, Fellowship	
b. 9	"Suggested Rules" to Elinor Ouvry	1930 Oct 31
	Ellensohn, G.	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 5
	Ellis & Ellis	
b. 9	Carbon of letter to A.P. Watt & Son concerning rights in GE's novels	1926 Mar 2
	Engelmann, Julius	
b. 9	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1883 Dec 28
	Evans, Eleanor Mary, 18??-1923 (niece of GE)	
b. <b>9</b>	Letter, to J.W. Cross	[1882] Sep 5
	Evans, Frederic Rawlins, 1842-1927 (nephew of GE)	
	Letters, to J.W. Cross	
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	[1880] Dec 28
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	[1881] Mar 4

Evans, Frederic Rawlins, 1842-1927 > Letters, to J.W. Cross (continued)

b. 9	<u>Letter</u> Tinker 971	[1882] Aug 13
b. 9	Letter Letter	1896 Mar 12
	Evans, Harriette (daughter of Robert Evans II)	
b. <b>9</b>	Letter, to her brother Robert Evans	No year, Feb 17
b. 9	<u>Valentines verses</u>	1849
	Evans, Isaac Pearson, 1816-1890 (brother of GE)	
	Letters, to J.W. Cross	
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1880 Dec 24
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1881 Jan 22
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1881 May 27
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1885 Jan 29
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1885 Feb 9
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1885 Mar 26
b. 9	Letter, to GE Tinker 972	1880 May 17
	Evans, Mrs. Jane (of Sutton Coldfield)	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 12
	Evans, Jane (Attenborough) (Mrs. Robert Evans), 1815-1881	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1864] Mar 15
	Evans, Mary Spence (Brown) (Mrs. Edmund Brown)	
b. 9	Letter, to J.W. Cross	[1885] Mar 29
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 11
	Evans, Robert, 1773-1849 (father of GE)	
b. 9	Extract from the diary of Robert Evans for 22 Nov 1829, with two short notes all in the hand of Eleanor Mary Evans and signed with her initials.  Tinker 973	ı
b. 9	Letter, to Frances Lucy (Evans) Houghton	1837 Jul 10
b. 9 b. 9	Letter, to Frances Lucy (Evans) Houghton  Letter, Sunday	1837 Jul 10 [1837?]

# Evans, Robert, 1832-1911 (nephew of GE)

## Letters, to J.W. Cross

b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1880 Dec 26
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1881 Mar 1
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1882 Mar 31
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1883 Aug 12
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1885 Feb 1
	Letters, to GE	
b. 9	Letter	1866 Aug 13
b. 9	Letter	1866 Sep 7
	Evans, Sarah (Rawlins) (Mrs. Isaac Evans) 1806-1881	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 5
	Evans, Thomas C.	
b. 9	Leter, to GE	1859 Aug 10
b. 9	Leter, to GE	[1859 Aug]
	Eve, Florence Nightingale (Cross) (Mrs. Henry Weston Eve), 1857-1915	
b. 9	Letter, to J.W. Cross	[1880 May 7]
b. 9	Letter, to J.W. Cross	[1880] May 21
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1880 May 7]
b. 62	Ewart, Mary A.  Note, signed, about visit to GE, written on p. [3] of ALS from GE to Miss Ewart, 1880 Feb 7 pasted on inside front cover of <i>Romola</i> [Beinecke Library.1972.135].	
	Fawcett, Henry, 1833-1884	
b. 9	Letter, to J.W. Cross	1880 Dec 27
	Fawcett, Millicent (Garrett) (Mrs. Henry Fawcett)	
b. 9	Letter, to J.W. Cross	[1880] Dec 24
	Fields, Annie (Adams) (Mrs. James Thomas Fields)	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	1874 May 20
b. 9	Letter	1874 Aug 4
b. 9	Letter	1879 Feb 2

	Fitz-Gerald, Eliza	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 4
	Flower, Constance (de Rothschild)	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	1879 Jan 1
	Forman, Emma (Leaming)	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1877?]
	Foster, Sir Michael, 1836-1907	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	1879 Jan 1
	Franklin, Lewis A.	
b. 9	Letter, to Nicolaus Trübner	1874 Jun 23
	Freese, Theodor	
b. 9	Letter, to K.F.O. Westphal	1870 Apr 1
	Accompanied by a diagram of an electrical machine and a trans-lation by GHL of the letter.	
	Frese, Julius	
b. 9	Letter, to an unidentified recipient	1857 Jan 22
	fragment	
	Froude, James Anthony, 1818-1894	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1858] Jan 17
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1858] Sep 26
b. <b>9</b>	Letter, to GE	[1859] Mar 13
b. 9	Letter, to GHL	No year Feb 7
	Gall, Rutland	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	1859 May 10
	Gaskell, Elizabeth Cleghorn (Stevenson), 1810-1865	
b. 9	to GE	[1859] June 3
	Geddes, Emily (Bury) 1841-1929, (Mrs. James Cruickshank Geddes)	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	1874 Jul 24
	Gendle, Elizabeth	
b. <b>9</b>	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 4

#### Gilman, Alice F. (continued)

b. <b>9</b>	Letter, to GE	1879 Mar 30
	Gladstone, William Ewart	
b. 9	Letter, to [J.W. Cross?] Unsigned	1880 Dec 27
	Glyn, Isabella Dallas (Gearns), 1823-1889	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 3
	Goethe, Ottilie von	
b. <b>9</b>	Letter, to GHL [photostat only]	[1854 Aug 10]
	Grant, Charles	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 9	Letter, I need scarcely say	n.d.
b. 9	Letter, I wish I could tell you	n.d.
b. 9	Letter, I cannot thank you sufficiently	n.d.
	Grant Duff, Sir Mountstuart Elphinstone, 1829-1906	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	1873 Apr 1
	Grant Duff, Anna Julia (Webster), Lady	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1879] Jan 1
	Greville, Violet	
b. <b>9</b>	Letter, to GE	[1880] Sep 30
	Griffiths, William	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 6
	Grove, Sir George, 1820-1900	
b. <b>9</b>	Letter, to GE	[1876] Mar 27
	Guedalla, Haim, 1815-1904	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1876] Sep 25
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1876] Oct 1
	Gurney, Archer Thompson	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	1857 May 14
	Gurney, Edmund, 1847-1888	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 17
	Gurney, Will	

# Gurney, Will (continued)

b. 9	Letter, to GHL	1860 Mar
	Haldane, Elizabeth S.	
	Letters, to Elinor Ouvry	
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1925 Jan 18
	With draft of Mrs. Ouvry's reply on last page	
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1926 Jan 8
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1926 Feb 24
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1926 Mar 19
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1926 Mar 21
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1926 Apr 12
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1927 Mar 17
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1928 Mar 28
	Hall, William Henry Bullock, 1837-1904	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	1879 Jan 15
	Hamer, S.S.	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1878 Dec]
	Hamerton, Philip Gilbert, 1834-1894	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 7
	Hamilton, Constance M. (Lawrie)	
	Letters, to J.W. Cross	
b. <b>9</b>	Letter, with envelope	[1878] Dec 12
b. 9	Letter	[1881] Jan 3
	Hare, John Strachey	
b. <b>9</b>	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 3
	Harford, Frederick Kill	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	[1878] Jun 14
	Harris, Mary B.	
b. 9	Letter, to GE	1879 Dec 10
	Harrison, Clifford	
b. 9	Letter, to GHL	[1877] May 1
	Harrison, Frederic, 1831-1923	

#### Harrison, Frederic, 1831-1923 (continued)

#### Letters, to J.W. Cross

b. 9	Letter Tinker 989	1880 May 6
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1883 Jan 7
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1884 Jun 26
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	1884 Dec 26
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	[1885?] Mar 9
b. 9	<u>Letter</u>	[1885?] Mar 16
b. 9	<u>Letter</u> Tinker 990	1901 Apr 16
Lett	ters, to GE	
b. 9	Letter Tinker 974	[1866 Jan 11]
b. 9	Letter Tinker 975	[1866] Jan 18
b. 9	Letter Tinker 976	[1866] Jan 27
b. 9	Letter Tinker 977	[1866] Jan 29
b. 9	Letter Tinker 978	[1866] Jan 30
b. 9	Letter Tinker 979	[1866] Apr 17
b. 9	Letter Tinker 980	[1866] Apr 27
b. 9	Letter Tinker 981	[1866] May 2
b. 9	Letter Tinker 982	[1866] May 16
b. 9	Letter Tinker 983	[1866 May 26]
b. 9	Letter Tinker 984	[1866] May 29

#### Harrison, Frederic, 1831-1923 > Letters, to GE (continued)

b. 9	Letter Tinker 985	[1866] Jun 1
b. 9	Letter Tinker 986	[1866] Jul 19
b. 9	Letter Tinker 987	[1867] Feb 5
b. 9	Letter	[1868] May 25
b. 9	Letter Tinker 988	[1868] Nov 11
	Letter, to William Henry (Bullock) Hall	
b. 9	Letter Tinker 991	1880 Dec 23
	Letters to C.L. Lewes	
b. 9	Letter	[1879] Mar 20
	Harvey, Alex	
b. 10	Letter, to GHL	1858 Feb 24
	Haycroft, Alice G.G.	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 17
	Helps, Alice	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1880 May 15
b. 10	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	1878 Dec 3
	Helps, Sir Arthur, 1813-1875	
b. 10	Letter, to GHL	1858 Feb 22
	Hennell, Charles Christian, 1809-1850	
b. 10	Letter, to Sara Sophia Hennell	1845 Jul 17
	Hennell, Sara Sophia, 1812-1899 See: Bray-Hennell Extracts	
	See: Lewis, Maria, for S.S. Hennell's note about GE's letters to Miss Lewis	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 10	Letter	1854 Nov 15
b. 10	Letter	1858 Jun 27
b. 10	Letter	1859 Apr 14

## Hennell, Sara Sophia, 1812-1899 > Letters, to GE (continued)

b. <b>10</b>	<u>Letter</u>	1859 Jun 26
b. 10	Letter	[1859] Jul 1
b. 10	Letter	[1859] Aug 21
b. 10	Letter	[1859] Sep 5
b. 10	Letter	[1859 Sep 18]
b. 10	Letter	1859 Oct 1
b. 10	Letter	[1859] Oct 6
b. 10	Letter	[1859] Oct 9
b. 10	Letter	[1859] Oct 12
b. 10	Letter	[1859] Dec 12
b. 10	Letter	1860 Jan 18
b. 10	Letter	1860 Jun 28
b. 10	Letter	[1863] Aug 22
b. 10	Letter	1874 Apr 21
	Herkomer, Hubert	
b. 10	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	1889 Sep 21
	,	1007 000 21
	Herzen, Alexandre, 1839-	1007 3cp 21
b. 10		1879 Jan 16
	Herzen, Alexandre, 1839-	<u> </u>
	Herzen, Alexandre, 1839- Letter, to GE	<u> </u>
b. 10	Herzen, Alexandre, 1839- Letter, to GE Hill, Caroline I.	1879 Jan 16
b. 10	Herzen, Alexandre, 1839- Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline I. Letter, to GE	1879 Jan 16
b. 10 b. 10	Herzen, Alexandre, 1839- Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline I. Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline Southwood (Smith), (Mrs. James Hill)	1879 Jan 16 [1873] Jan 26
b. 10 b. 10	Herzen, Alexandre, 1839- Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline I. Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline Southwood (Smith), (Mrs. James Hill) Letter, to GE	1879 Jan 16 [1873] Jan 26
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Herzen, Alexandre, 1839- Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline I. Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline Southwood (Smith), (Mrs. James Hill) Letter, to GE  Hill, Florence	1879 Jan 16 [1873] Jan 26 1879 Jan 18
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Herzen, Alexandre, 1839- Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline I. Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline Southwood (Smith), (Mrs. James Hill) Letter, to GE  Hill, Florence Letter, to Elinor Ouvry	1879 Jan 16 [1873] Jan 26 1879 Jan 18
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Herzen, Alexandre, 1839- Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline I. Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline Southwood (Smith), (Mrs. James Hill) Letter, to GE  Hill, Florence Letter, to Elinor Ouvry  Hinton, Margaret	1879 Jan 16  [1873] Jan 26  1879 Jan 18
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Herzen, Alexandre, 1839- Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline I. Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline Southwood (Smith), (Mrs. James Hill) Letter, to GE  Hill, Florence Letter, to Elinor Ouvry  Hinton, Margaret Letter, to GE	1879 Jan 16  [1873] Jan 26  1879 Jan 18
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Herzen, Alexandre, 1839- Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline I. Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline Southwood (Smith), (Mrs. James Hill) Letter, to GE  Hill, Florence Letter, to Elinor Ouvry  Hinton, Margaret Letter, to GE  Hodder & Stoughton (by Sir Ernest Hodder Williams)	1879 Jan 16  [1873] Jan 26  1879 Jan 18  1928 May 18  1878 Dec 12
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Herzen, Alexandre, 1839- Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline I. Letter, to GE  Hill, Caroline Southwood (Smith), (Mrs. James Hill) Letter, to GE  Hill, Florence Letter, to Elinor Ouvry  Hinton, Margaret Letter, to GE  Hodder & Stoughton (by Sir Ernest Hodder Williams) Letter, to Elizabeth Haldane	1879 Jan 16  [1873] Jan 26  1879 Jan 18  1928 May 18  1878 Dec 12

	Holland, Sir Henry Thurston, 1825-1914	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 12
	Holland, Margaret Jean (Trevelyan), Lady	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	[1878]
	Friday	
	Holt, H.P.R.	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1879 Aug 3
	Holyoake, George Jacob, 1817-1906	
b. 10	to Herbert Spencer	1878 Dec 15
	Hooper, Jane Margaret (Wynnard) (Mrs. George Hooper)	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1871 Nov 29
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 2
	Hopwood, Maud Southwood (Lewes) (Mrs. John Rowland Hopwood)	
b. 10	Letter, to Elinor Ouvry	[1928] Apr 3
	Houghton, Richard Monckton Milnes, 1st Baron, 1809-1885	
b. 10	Letter, to GHL	[1862?] Aug 22
b. 10	Letter, to GHL	[1865] May 5
b. 10	Letter, to GHL	[1870] May 3
	Howard, Rosalind Frances (Stanley), later Countess of Carlisle	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1873 Oct 13
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1880 May 17
	Howitt, Mary (Mrs. William Howitt), 1799-1888	
b. 10	Letter, to Mary Gillies	[1869] Nov 4
	Huddy, Mary Elizabeth (Lee)	
b. 10	Letter, to Elinor Ouvry	1926 Jun 30
	"Some Account of Mrs. Willim" enclosed in the above letter.	
	Hunt, Leigh, 1784-1859	
b. 10	Letter, to Margaret Gillies	[1846] May 12
b. 10	Letter, to GHL	[1838] Jul 12
b. 10	Letter, to GHL and Agnes (Jervis) Lewes	[1841] Feb 19
b. 10	Letter, to GHL	[1841?] Aug 4

	Hunt, Thornton Leigh, 1810-1873	
b. 10	Letter, to GHL	1838 Jul 6
	Hutton, James (ed. <i>Universal Review</i> )	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	[1859] Jun 16
	Hutton, Richard Holt (ed. Spectator), 1826-1897	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1863 Aug 6
b. 10	Letter, to GE	[1863] Aug 10
	Hutchinson, Sir Jonathan, 1828-1913	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1874 Sep 10
	Huxley, Thomas Henry, 1825-1895	
b. 10	Letter, to GHL	1858 Jul 18
b. 10	Letter, to GHL	1864 Mar 21
	Inman, Mary Elizabeth	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1873 Oct 12
	Jackson, John Hughlings, 1835-1911	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 2
b. 10	Letter, to GHL	1871 Mar 17
	Jacobs, Joseph	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1879 Aug 29
	Jerrold, Douglas, 1803-1857	
	Letters, to GHL	
b. 10	Letter, Saturday	[1847?]
b. 10	Letter	[184?] Sep 14
b. 10	Letter	[1848] May 14
	Jerrold, William Blanchard, 1826-1884	
b. <b>10</b>	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 12
	Jevons, William Stanley, 1835-1880	
b. 10	Letter, to GHL	1871 Apr 12
b. 10	Letter, to GHL	1871 Apr 19
b. 10	Letter, to GHL	1875 Mar 21

	Jewsbury, Geraldine Endsor, 1812-1880	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 7
	Joachim, Ellen (Mrs. Henry Joachim)	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 7
	Johnson, Rossiter	
b. 10	Letter, to J.W. Cross	1885 May 27
	Jones, Owen, 1809-1874	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1868 Jul 30
	Jones, Thomas	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1879 Sep 15
	Jowett, Benjamin, 1817-1893	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 10	Letter	1872 Aug 14
b. 10	Letter	1878 Oct 20
b. 10	Letter	[1878] Oct 24
	Letters, to J.W. Cross	
b. <b>10</b>		1880 Dec 24
b. 10 b. 10	Letters, to J.W. Cross	
	Letters, to J.W. Cross  Telegram	1880 Dec 24
b. 10	Letters, to J.W. Cross  Telegram  Letter	1880 Dec 24 1880 Dec 28
b. 10 b. 10	Letters, to J.W. Cross  Telegram  Letter  Letter	1880 Dec 24 1880 Dec 28 1885 Jan 27
b. 10 b. 10	Letters, to J.W. Cross  Telegram  Letter  Letter  Letter	1880 Dec 24 1880 Dec 28 1885 Jan 27
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Letters, to J.W. Cross  Telegram  Letter  Letter  Letter, to GHL  Kaufmann, David, 1852-1899	1880 Dec 24 1880 Dec 28 1885 Jan 27 No year Jun 5
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Letters, to J.W. Cross  Telegram  Letter  Letter  Letter, to GHL  Kaufmann, David, 1852-1899  Letter, to GE	1880 Dec 24 1880 Dec 28 1885 Jan 27 No year Jun 5
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Letters, to J.W. Cross  Telegram  Letter  Letter  Letter, to GHL  Kaufmann, David, 1852-1899  Letter, to GE  Kaye, Harriette	1880 Dec 24 1880 Dec 28 1885 Jan 27 No year Jun 5
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Letters, to J.W. Cross  Telegram  Letter  Letter  Letter, to GHL  Kaufmann, David, 1852-1899  Letter, to GE  Kaye, Harriette  Letter, to GE	1880 Dec 24 1880 Dec 28 1885 Jan 27 No year Jun 5
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Letters, to J.W. Cross  Telegram  Letter  Letter  Letter, to GHL  Kaufmann, David, 1852-1899  Letter, to GE  Kaye, Harriette  Letter, to GE  Keep, Elizabeth Porter	1880 Dec 24  1880 Dec 28  1885 Jan 27  No year Jun 5  1879 Apr 13
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Letters, to J.W. Cross  Telegram  Letter  Letter  Letter, to GHL  Kaufmann, David, 1852-1899  Letter, to GE  Kaye, Harriette  Letter, to GE  Keep, Elizabeth Porter  Letter, to GE	1880 Dec 24  1880 Dec 28  1885 Jan 27  No year Jun 5  1879 Apr 13
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Letters, to J.W. Cross  Telegram  Letter  Letter  Letter, to GHL  Kaufmann, David, 1852-1899  Letter, to GE  Kaye, Harriette  Letter, to GE  Keep, Elizabeth Porter  Letter, to GE  Kelly, Howard Atwood, 1858-1943	1880 Dec 24 1880 Dec 28 1885 Jan 27 No year Jun 5 1879 Apr 13 No year Dec 17 1880 Feb 23

# Kovalevsky, Sophie (i.e. Sonya Korvina-Krukorskaya, Mrs. Vladimir O. Kovalevsky), 1850-1891

b. <b>10</b>	Letter	[1869 Oct 8]
	Kovalesky, Vladimir	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 12
	L, C.A.	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 31
	Lane, John, The Bodley Head	
	(by Ronald Boswell)	
b. 10	Letter, to Ellis & Ellis	1926 Jan 26
b. 10	Carbon copy of reply from Ellis & Ellis	1926 Feb 23
b. 10	Letter	1926 Apr 21
b. 10	Letter	1926 Apr 28
b. 10	Letter	1926 Apr 29
	Lang, Andrew, 1844-1912	
b. 10	Letter, to J.W. Cross	[1880] Dec 30
	Tinker 994	
	Langford, Joseph Munt, 1809-1884	
b.10	Langford, Joseph Munt, 1809-1884  Letter, to GE	1859 Oct 8
b. 10 b. 10		1859 Oct 8 1859 Oct 12
	Letter, to GE	
b. 10	Letter, to GE Letter, to GE	1859 Oct 12
b. 10 b. 10	Letter, to GE  Letter, to GHL	1859 Oct 12 1859 Feb 8
b. 10 b. 10	Letter, to GE  Letter, to GHL  Letter, to GHL	1859 Oct 12 1859 Feb 8
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Letter, to GE  Letter, to GHL  Letter, to GHL  Lankester, Phebe	1859 Oct 12 1859 Feb 8 1859 Aug 3
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Letter, to GE  Letter, to GHL  Letter, to GHL  Lankester, Phebe  Letter, to GE	1859 Oct 12 1859 Feb 8 1859 Aug 3
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Letter, to GE  Letter, to GHL  Letter, to GHL  Lankester, Phebe Letter, to GE  Lea, H.M.	1859 Oct 12 1859 Feb 8 1859 Aug 3 1878 Dec 3
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Letter, to GE  Letter, to GHL  Letter, to GHL  Lankester, Phebe  Letter, to GE  Letter, to GE  Letter, to GE	1859 Oct 12 1859 Feb 8 1859 Aug 3 1878 Dec 3
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Letter, to GE  Letter, to GHL  Letter, to GHL  Lankester, Phebe  Letter, to GE  Lea, H.M.  Letter, to GE  Lean, Florence Marryat	1859 Oct 12 1859 Feb 8 1859 Aug 3 1878 Dec 3
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Letter, to GE  Letter, to GHL  Letter, to GHL  Lankester, Phebe  Letter, to GE  Lea, H.M.  Letter, to GE  Lean, Florence Marryat  Letter, to GE	1859 Oct 12 1859 Feb 8 1859 Aug 3 1878 Dec 3
b. 10 b. 10 b. 10 b. 10 b. 10	Letter, to GE  Letter, to GHL  Letter, to GHL  Lankester, Phebe  Letter, to GE  Lea, H.M.  Letter, to GE  Lean, Florence Marryat  Letter, to GE  Lehmann, Emil, 1829-1898	1859 Oct 12 1859 Feb 8 1859 Aug 3 1878 Dec 3 1872 Nov 21

	Lehmann, Nina (Chambers) (Mrs. Frederick Lehmann)	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 6
	Lehmann, Rudolf	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 6
	Leslie, Seymour	
b. 10	Letter, to Elinor Ouvry	[1928] Apr 12
	Levi, David	
b. 10	Letter, to GE	1880 Feb 3
	Lewes, Agnes (Jervis) (Mrs. G.H. Lewes), 1822-1902	
b. 10	Letter, to Elizabeth Gendle	[1862?]
	Lewes, Charles Lee, 1842-1891	
	Letter, to Albert Cohn	
b. 10	<u>Letter, draft</u>	1883 Dec 11
	Letters, to J.W. Cross	
b. 10	<u>Letter</u>	1883 Apr 2
b. 10	<u>Letter</u>	1883 Sep 16
b. 10	<u>Letter</u>	1884 Dec 9
b. 10	<u>Letter</u>	1884 Dec 27
b. 10	<u>Letter</u>	1885 Jan 27
b. 10	Extract from GHL's journal for 28 Jan 1859 copied for J.W. Cross	[1883?]
	Letters, to Agnes Jervis Lewes	
b. 10	Letter	1857 Mar 1
b. 10	Letter	1857 Sep 13
b. 10	Letter	1858 Jan 10
	Letters, to GE	
b. 10	Letter	[1859] Jul 24
b. 10	Letter	1859 Sep 6
b. 10	Letter	1859 Nov 20
b. 10	Letter	1871 Jun 18
b. 10	Letter	1871 Jul 2

## Lewes, Charles Lee, 1842-1891 > Letters, to GE (continued)

b. 10	Letter	1871 Jul 16
b. 10	Letter	1880 May 23
b. 10	Letter	1880 May 31
1	to GHL	
b. 10	Letter	1857 Mar 29
b. 10	Letter	1857 Jul 18
b. 10	Letter	[1858] Feb 16
b. 10	Letter	1858 Apr 21
b. 10	Letter	1858 Jun 6
b. 10	Letter	1858 Jul 25
b. 10	Letter	1858 Oct 10
b. 10	Letter	1859 Feb 13
b. 10	Letter	1859 Apr 17
b. 10	Letter	1859 May 15
b. 10	Letter	1859 Jul 3
b. 10	Letter	1859 Aug 18
b. 10	Letter	1871 Aug 9
1	Letters, to GE and GHL	
b. 10	Letter	[1859] Oct 16
b. 10	Letter	1860 Jan 1
b. 10	Letter	1860 Jan 15
b. 10	Letter	1861 Feb 4
b. 10	Letter	1861 Apr 25
b. 10	Letter	1861 May 11
b. 10	Letter	1864 May 13
b. 10	Letter	1864 May 23
b. 10	Letter	1864 May 31
b. 10	Letter	1865 Apr 13
b. 10	Letter	1866 Sep 24
b. 10	Letter	1868 Jul 25

Lewes, Charles Lee, 1842-1891 > Letters, to GE and GHL (continued)

b. 10	Letter	1871 May 21
b. 10	Letter, to Edward Pigott	1878 Dec 9
	Lewes, Edgar James, d.?1836	
	Letters, to his mother, Elizabeth (Ashweek) Lewes Willim (Mrs. John Willim, 1787-1870)	
b. 10	Letter	1825 May 27
b. 10	Letter	1825 Aug 2
b. 10	Letter	1825 Nov 4
b. 10	Letter	1836 [i.e. 1826] Jun 30
b. 10	Letter	1826 Aug 29
b. 10	Letter, I write this upon getting	1827 Mar 16
b. 10	Letter, I write this immediately	1827 Mar 16
b. 10	Letter, I am arrived safe	1827 Mar 16
b. 10	Letter	1827 Mar 20
b. 10	Letter	1828 Jan 22
b. 10	Letter	1828 Aug 4
b. 10	Letter	1828 Sep 23
b. 10	Letter	1829 Jan 20
b. 10	Letter In a wrapper with genealogy of Elinor Southwood Lewes Ouvry on front cover. [to Edward and George Henry Lewes] A true, literal & exact account of the Goods, Chattels & other appurtenances of Edgar James Lewes. 10 quatrains of comic verse, signed. 2 p.	1830 Feb 10
b. 10	Letter, to Charles Seaforth	1825 Jun 11
	Lewes, Gertrude (Hill); (Mrs. Charles Lee Lewes), 1837-1923	
	Letters, to J. W. Cross	
b. 10	Letter, with MS map of Chelsea	[1881]
b. 10	<u>Letter</u>	1882 Jul 14
b. 10	<u>Letter</u>	1902 Jul 23
b. 10	<u>Letter</u>	1919 Mar 11
b. 10	<u>Letter</u> Envelope in the hand of Mrs. C.L. Lewes, with note about the cast of GE's head, August 1890.	1919 Apr 2

1858 May 2

b. 11

#### Lewes, Herbert Arthur, 1846-1875

## Letters, to GE

b. <b>11</b>	Letter	1859 Aug 26
b. 11	Letter	1859 Sep
	Letters, to GE and GHL	
b. <b>11</b>	Letter	1859 Oct
b. 11	Letter	1866 Sep 16
b. 11	Letter	1867 Oct 27
	Letter, to Agnes Lewes	
b. 11	Letter	1858 Nov 9
	Letters, to GHL	
b. 11	Letter	[1855?]
b. 11	Letter	1859 Aug [24]
b. 11	Letter	1859 Jul 27
b. 11	Letter	[1861] Jan 13
b. 11	Letter	1861 Feb 3
b. 11	Letter, I don't know	1861
b. 11	Letter, I am much obliged	1861
b. 11	Letter	1866 Nov 5
b. 11	Report card at Hofwyl School	1860
	Lewes, Thornton Arnott, 1844-1869	
	Letters, to GHL, GE, or both	
b. <b>11</b>	Letter	1855 Dec 6
b. <b>11</b>	Letter	1857 Mar 1
b. <b>11</b>	Letter	1857 May 21
b. <b>11</b>	Letter	1857 Oct 2
b. 11	Letter	1857 Dec 20
b. 11	Letter	1858 Jan 31
b. 11	Letter	1858 Apr 8

Letter

## Lewes, Thornton Arnott, 1844-1869 > Letters, to GHL, GE, or both (continued)

b. 11	Letter	1858 May 23
b. 11	Letter	1858 May 30
b. <b>11</b>	Letter	1858 August 19-1858 August 21
b. 11	Letter	1858 Nov 7
b. 11	Letter	1858 Nov 28
b. 11	Letter	1859 Jan 20
b. 11	Letter	1859 Mar 28
b. 11	Letter	1859 Jun 5
b. 11	Letter	1859 Jun 15
b. 11	Letter	1859 Aug 18
b. 11	Letter	1859 Sep 9
b. 11	Letter	1859 Nov 17
b. 11	Letter	1859 [i.e. 1860] Jan 23
b. 11	Letter	1860 Feb 20
b. 11	Letter	1860 Mar 20
b. 11	Letter	1860 May 16
b. 11	Letter	1860 Sep 11
b. 11	Letter	1860 Oct 2
b. 11	Letter	1860 Oct 13
b. 11	Letter	1860 Nov 20
b. 11	Letter	[1860 Dec 11]
b. 11	Letter	1860 [i.e. 1861] Jan 6
b. 11	Letter	1861 Jan 14
b. 11	Letter	1861 Jan 27
b. 11	Letter	1861 Feb 3
b. 11	Letter	1861 Feb 17
b. 11	Letter	1861 Mar 3
b. 11	Letter	1861 Apr 14

## Lewes, Thornton Arnott, 1844-1869 > Letters, to GHL, GE, or both (continued)

b. 11 Letter 1861 May 7 b. 11 Letter 1861 Jun 25 b. 11 Letter 1861 Oct 20 b. 11 Letter 1861 Nov 3 b. 11 Letter 1861 Dec 22 b. 11 Letter 1862 Jan 19 b. 11 Letter 1863 Nov 14 b. 11 Letter 1863 Dec 30 b. 11 Letter 1864 Jan 28 b. 11 Letter 1864 Aug 29 b. 11 Letter 1865 Jun 12 - Jun 15 - Jun 16 - Jun 16 - Jun 17 - Jun 16 - Jun 17 - Jun 16 - Jun 17 - Jun 17 - Jun 1865 Jun 12 - Jun 1865 Jun 186
b. 11       Letter       1861 Oct 20         b. 11       Letter       1861 Nov 3         b. 11       Letter       1861 Dec 22         b. 11       Letter       1862 Jan 19         b. 11       Letter       1863 Nov 14         b. 11       Letter       1863 Dec 30         b. 11       Letter       1864 Jan 28         b. 11       Letter       1864 Aug 29         b. 11       Letter       1864 Oct 7         b. 11       Letter       1865 Jun 12 - Ju
b.11       Letter       1861 Nov 3         b.11       Letter       1861 Dec 22         b.11       Letter       1862 Jan 19         b.11       Letter       1863 Nov 14         b.11       Letter       1863 Dec 30         b.11       Letter       1864 Jan 28         b.11       Letter       1864 Aug 29         b.11       Letter       1864 Oct 7         b.11       Letter       1865 Jun 12 - Ju
b.11       Letter       1861 Dec 22         b.11       Letter       1862 Jan 19         b.11       Letter       1863 Nov 14         b.11       Letter       1863 Dec 30         b.11       Letter       1864 Jan 28         b.11       Letter       1864 Aug 29         b.11       Letter       1864 Oct 7         b.11       Letter       1865 Jun 12 - Jun
b. 11       Letter       1862 Jan 19         b. 11       Letter       1863 Nov 14         b. 11       Letter       1863 Dec 30         b. 11       Letter       1864 Jan 28         b. 11       Letter       1864 Aug 29         b. 11       Letter       1864 Oct 7         b. 11       Letter       1865 Jun 12 - Jun
b. 11       Letter       1863 Nov 14         b. 11       Letter       1863 Dec 30         b. 11       Letter       1864 Jan 28         b. 11       Letter       1864 Aug 29         b. 11       Letter       1864 Oct 7         b. 11       Letter       1865 Jun 12 - Jun
b. 11       Letter       1863 Dec 30         b. 11       Letter       1864 Jan 28         b. 11       Letter       1864 Aug 29         b. 11       Letter       1864 Oct 7         b. 11       Letter       1865 Jun 12 - Jun
b. 11       Letter       1864 Jan 28         b. 11       Letter       1864 Aug 29         b. 11       Letter       1864 Oct 7         b. 11       Letter       1865 Jun 12 - Jun
b. 11       Letter       1864 Aug 29         b. 11       Letter       1864 Oct 7         b. 11       Letter       1865 Jun 12 - Jun
b. 11 Letter 1864 Oct 7 b. 11 Letter 1865 Jun 12 - Ju
b. 11 Letter 1865 Jun 12 - Ju
'
b. 11 Letter 1865 Sep 22
b. 11 Letter 1865 Dec 26
b. 11 Letter 1866 Feb 24
b. 11 Letter, The beginning 1866 Jun 2
b. 11 Letter, Having just returned 1866 Jun 2
b. 11 Letter 1866 Oct 9
b. 11 Letter 1866 Dec 9
b. 11 Letter 1867 Apr 10
b. 11 Letter 1867 Jun 16
b. 11 Letter 1867 Jul 12
b. 11 Letter 1867 Sep 16
b. 11 Letter 1868 Mar 9 - Ap 26
b. 11 Letter 1868 Oct 12
Juvenilia. 1855–1860
b. 11 Stories - The Magic Wand & The Knight of the Crescent. 32 p. 1855 Jul

#### Lewes, Thornton Arnott, 1844-1869 > Juvenilia. (continued)

b. 11	Diary	1855 August 09-1855 August 15
b. 11	Ramsgate. 2 p.	[1855]
b. 11	Fragments of Poems - 17 pieces	1856-1860
	School reports	
b. <b>11</b>	Bayswater School by T.A.L.	1856 Jul 9
b. 11	Hofwyl School	1857 Dec 24
b. 11	Hofwyl School	1858 Mar 31
b. 11	Hofwyl School	1858 Jul 30
b. 11	Hofwyl School	1858 Dec 23
b. 11	Hofwyl School	1859 Apr 21
b. 11	Hofwyl School	1859 Jul 28
b. 11	Hofwyl School	1860 Apr 5
	Lewis, Elisabeth (Eberstadt) Mrs. George Henry (later Lady) Lewis	
b. 11	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 5
	Lewis, Maria, 1800?-1887	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 11	Letter	1874 Sep 22
b. 11	Letter	1875 Jun 22
b. 11	Letter	1879 Jan 22
	Letters, to J.W. Cross	
b. 11	<u>Letter</u>	1881 Jul 19
b. 11	<u>Letter</u>	1885 Jan 14
b. 11	<u>Letter</u> Tinker 995	[1885 Mar?]
	Leys, J.K.	
b. 11	Letter, to GE	1875 Jul
	Leys, Mary	
b. 11	Letter, to GE	1875 Aug 9
	Lindsay, Caroline Blanche Elizabeth (Fitz Roy), Lady	

## Lindsay, Caroline Blanche Elizabeth (Fitz Roy), Lady (continued)

b. 11	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 4
	Lowell, James Russell	
b. 11	Letter, to GE	1880 Aug 27
	Lowndes, Marie Adelaide (Belloc), 1868-1947	
b. 11	Letter, to Elsie Druce	1942 Apr 15
b. 11	Letter	1944 Jan 18
b. 11	Letter  Correspondence with Gordon S. Haight from 1942-1947, and correspondence between Mr. Haight and Elizabeth, Countess of Iddesleigh (Mrs. Belloc Lowndes's daughter) from 1947-1957.	1944 Jun 24
	Lucas, Samuel, 1818-1868	
b. 11	Letter, to GE	1859 Apr 5
	Ludden, Karl	
b. 11	Letter, to GE	1870 September 18-1870 September 20
	Lytton, Edith Villiers, Countess of	
b. 11	Letter, to GE	1872 Dec 9
	Lytton, Edward George Earle Lytton Bulwer-Lytton, 1st baron, 1803-1873	
b. 11	Letter, to GHL	[1848 Mar 8]
b. 11	Letter, to GHL	1863 Oct 1
	Lytton, Edward Robert Bulwer-Lytton, 1st earl of, 1831-1891	
b. 11	Letter, to GE	[1862 April]
	Letters, to GHL	1866 Feb 11
b. 11	Letter	1866 Jun 3
b. 11	Letter	[1868?]
b. 11	Letter, Friday	[1871 Dec ?]
b. 11	Letter	[1872 n.d.]
b. 11	Letter	1872 Mar 23
b. <b>11</b>	Letter	1872 Apr 29
b. 11	Letter	1874 Apr 3
b. 11	Letter	[1874] Jun 8

Lytton, Edward Robert Bulwer-Lytton, 1st earl of, 1831-1891 > Letters, to GHL (continued)

b. <b>11</b>	Letter	1875 Feb 19
b. 11	Letter	1875 Feb 25
b. 11	Letter	1875 Mar 5
b. 11	Letter	1875 Mar 6
b. 11	Letter	[1875 Mar 12]
b. 11	Letter	[1875 Mar 16]
b. 11	Letter	[1875 Apr 6]
b. 11	Letter	1875 Apr 16
b. 11	Letter	[1875 May 1]
b. 11	Letter	1875 May 6
b. 11	Letter	1876 Apr 24
b. 11	Letter	1877 Jan 23
b. 11	Letter	1877 Jun 3
b. 11	Letter	1877 Aug 18
b. 11	Letter	1877 Oct 28
b. 11	Letter	1878 March 23-1878 March 26
b. 11	Letter	1878 Mar 26
b. 11	Letter	1878 May 8
b. 11	Letter	1878 May 23
b. 11	Letter	1878 Jul 27
	M'Cormack, Henry	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1860 Jun 1
	Macaulay, Thomas Babington Macaulay, 1st baron, 1800-1859	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1845 Feb 4
	Macquoid, Katharine S. (Mrs. Thomas R. Macquoid)	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 3
	Magnus, Katie (Emanuel), Lady	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1879 Jun 19
	Main, Alexander, 1841-1918	

#### Main, Alexander, 1841-1918 (continued)

## Letters, to GE and GHL

b. 12	Letter	1873 Nov 24
b. 12	Letter	1874 Jan 6
	Letters, to GHL	
b. <b>12</b>	Letter	1874 Feb 24
	Maine, Sir Henry James Sumner, 1822-1888	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1879 Jan 20
	Malleson, Elizabeth (Whitehead), (Mrs. Frank Rodbard Malleson), 1828-1916	
b. 12	Letter, to Barbara L.S. Bodichon	[1863] Aug 21
	Mario, Jessie Meriton (White), (Mrs. Alberto Mario), 1832-1906	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1878 Nov 3
	Martin, Helena Saville (Faucit), Lady, 1817-1898	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 11
	Martin, Sir Theodore, 1816-1909	
b. 12	Letter, to John Blackwood Tinker 997	1859 Apr 3
	Martineau, Harriet, 1802-1876	
b. 12	Letter, to GHL	No year Dec 10
	Masson, David, 1822-1907	
b. <b>12</b>	Letter, to Robert Vaughan, 1795-1868	1852 May 8
b. 12	Mathers, Helen Buckingham See: Reeves, Helen Buckingham (Mathers)	
	Mathews, Charles James, 1803-1878	
b. 12	Letter, to GHL	1853 Oct 9
	Maybury, Anna M.L.	
b. <b>12</b>	Letter, to GE	1875 Aug 26
	Méren, Marianne	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	[1872?]
	Mill, John Stuart	
	Letters, to GHL	
b. 12	Letter, Wednesday	[1841 Feb 24?]

## Mill, John Stuart > Letters, to GHL (continued)

b. 12	Letter	1841 Mar 1
b. 12	Letter	1841 Apr 24
b. 12	Letter, Saturday	[1841 Aug]
b. 12	Letter, Wednesday	[1842 Dec 7]
b. 12	Letter, Friday	[1843 Mar?]
b. 12	Envelope addressed to GHL	n.d.
	Montalba, Anthony	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	[1878 Dec?]
	Montefiore, Leonard A.	
b. 12	Letter, to GHL, Wednesday	[1877 Oct 17]
	Montgomery, Mary Millicent	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	[1852 Nov 10]
	Morley, John, 1838-1923	
b. 12	Letter, to J.W. Cross	1885 Jan 13
	Mottram, William	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 9
	Moule, Horace Mosley	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	[1868] Sep 24
b. 12	Mount-Temple, Georgiana (Tollemache) Cowper-Temple, baroness, 1822-1901 See: Cowper-Temple, Georginia (Tollemache), Lady	
	Myers, Asher Isaac, 1848-1902	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1879 Jan 17
	Myers, Frederic William Henry, 1843-1901	
	Letters, to J.W. Cross	
b. 12	<u>Letter</u>	1880 Dec 28
b. 12	<u>Letter</u>	1881 Feb 13
b. 12	<u>Letter</u> Tinker 998	1881 Mar 5
b. 12	<u>Letter</u>	1885 Feb 19
	Letters, to GE	
b. 12	Letter	1872 Dec 8

## Myers, Frederic William Henry, 1843-1901 > Letters, to GE (continued)

b. 12	Letter	1878 Dec 10
b. 12	Letter Tinker 999	1880 May 20
b. 12	Letter, to William Henry Hall	1880 May 7
b. 12	Letter, to Charles Lee Lewes	1881 Nov 30
	National Portrait Gallery See: Scharf, Sir George	
	Neubauer, Adolf, 1832-1907	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 8
	Nichols, T.L.	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1873 Apr 5
	Nicholson, Mrs. W. A.	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1859 May 2
	Norton, Susan (Sedgwick), (Mrs. Charles Eliot Norton)	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	[1869] Dec 7
b. 12	Letter, to GE	[1869] Dec 18
	Nutt, David	
b. 12	Nutt, David  Agreement. Signed by Nutt and GHL for publication of GHL's Goethe.	1855 Jun
b. 12		1855 Jun
b. 12 b. 12	Agreement. Signed by Nutt and GHL for publication of GHL's Goethe.	1855 Jun [1878 Dec 2?]
	Agreement. Signed by Nutt and GHL for publication of GHL's Goethe.  Orr, Alexandra (Leighton), (Mrs. Sutherland Orr), 1828-1903	
	Agreement. Signed by Nutt and GHL for publication of GHL's Goethe.  Orr, Alexandra (Leighton), (Mrs. Sutherland Orr), 1828-1903  Letter, to GE, Monday	
	Agreement. Signed by Nutt and GHL for publication of GHL's Goethe.  Orr, Alexandra (Leighton), (Mrs. Sutherland Orr), 1828-1903  Letter, to GE, Monday  Otter, Emily Helen (Cross), 1848-1907	
b. 12	Agreement. Signed by Nutt and GHL for publication of GHL's Goethe.  Orr, Alexandra (Leighton), (Mrs. Sutherland Orr), 1828-1903  Letter, to GE, Monday  Otter, Emily Helen (Cross), 1848-1907  Letter, to GE and GHL	[1878 Dec 2?]
b. 12	Agreement. Signed by Nutt and GHL for publication of GHL's Goethe.  Orr, Alexandra (Leighton), (Mrs. Sutherland Orr), 1828-1903  Letter, to GE, Monday  Otter, Emily Helen (Cross), 1848-1907  Letter, to GE and GHL  Letter, Tuesday afternoon	[1878 Dec 2?]
b. 12 b. 12	Agreement. Signed by Nutt and GHL for publication of GHL's Goethe.  Orr, Alexandra (Leighton), (Mrs. Sutherland Orr), 1828-1903  Letter, to GE, Monday  Otter, Emily Helen (Cross), 1848-1907  Letter, to GE and GHL  Letter, Tuesday afternoon  Letters, to GE	[1878 Dec 2?] [1875 Jan 12]
b. 12 b. 12 b. 12	Agreement. Signed by Nutt and GHL for publication of GHL's Goethe.  Orr, Alexandra (Leighton), (Mrs. Sutherland Orr), 1828-1903  Letter, to GE, Monday  Otter, Emily Helen (Cross), 1848-1907  Letter, to GE and GHL  Letter, Tuesday afternoon  Letters, to GE  Letter, signed by Emily H. and Francis Otter	[1878 Dec 2?] [1875 Jan 12] [1878] Dec 3
b. 12 b. 12 b. 12	Agreement. Signed by Nutt and GHL for publication of GHL's Goethe.  Orr, Alexandra (Leighton), (Mrs. Sutherland Orr), 1828-1903  Letter, to GE, Monday  Otter, Emily Helen (Cross), 1848-1907  Letter, to GE and GHL  Letter, Tuesday afternoon  Letters, to GE  Letter, signed by Emily H. and Francis Otter  Letter	[1878 Dec 2?] [1875 Jan 12] [1878] Dec 3
b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12	Agreement. Signed by Nutt and GHL for publication of GHL's Goethe.  Orr, Alexandra (Leighton), (Mrs. Sutherland Orr), 1828-1903  Letter, to GE, Monday  Otter, Emily Helen (Cross), 1848-1907  Letter, to GE and GHL  Letter, Tuesday afternoon  Letters, to GE  Letters, to GE  Letters, to GE  Letter, Signed by Emily H. and Francis Otter  Letter  Letters	[1878 Dec 2?] [1875 Jan 12] [1878] Dec 3 1880 Apr 16
b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12	Agreement. Signed by Nutt and GHL for publication of GHL's Goethe.  Orr, Alexandra (Leighton), (Mrs. Sutherland Orr), 1828-1903  Letter, to GE, Monday  Otter, Emily Helen (Cross), 1848-1907  Letter, to GE and GHL  Letter, Tuesday afternoon  Letters, to GE  Letter, signed by Emily H. and Francis Otter  Letter  Letter  Letters, to J.W. Cross  Letter	[1878 Dec 2?] [1875 Jan 12] [1878] Dec 3 1880 Apr 16
b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12	Agreement. Signed by Nutt and GHL for publication of GHL's Goethe.  Orr, Alexandra (Leighton), (Mrs. Sutherland Orr), 1828-1903  Letter, to GE, Monday  Otter, Emily Helen (Cross), 1848-1907  Letter, to GE and GHL  Letter, Tuesday afternoon  Letters, to GE  Letter, signed by Emily H. and Francis Otter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	[1878 Dec 2?] [1875 Jan 12] [1878] Dec 3 1880 Apr 16

#### Otter, Francis, d. 1895 (continued)

b. 12	Letter, to GE	1880 Apr 17
	Ouvry, Elinor Southwood (Lewes)	
	Letters, to Elsie Druce	
b. 12	Note on Arthur Paterson and his sister Helen (Paterson) Allingham.	1925 [Feb?]
b. 12	Receipt for <i>Romola</i> photographs. £10 paid by the Royal Borough of Kensington to Ellis & Ellis, Mrs. Ouvry's solicitors.	1931 Feb 11
	Owen, Sir Richard, 1804-1892	
b. 12	Letter, to GHL	1856 Jan 1
b. 12	Letter, to GHL	1857 Jul 14
	Paget, Sir James, 1814-1899	
b. 12	Letter, to GHL	1872 Dec 7
	Papé, Charlotte	
b. 12	Letter, to GHL	1878 Dec 5
	Parrish, Morris L.	
	Letters, to Mrs. Elinor Ouvry	
b. 12	<u>Letter</u>	1932 May 16
b. 12	Letter	1933 Jun 28
b. 12	<u>Letter</u>	1933 Jul 24
b. 12	<u>Letter</u>	1935 Feb 19
	Letters, from Mrs. Elinor Ouvry	
b. 12	Draft of a reply to Mr. Parrish's letter of 28 Jun 1933.	n.d.
b. 12	Copy of a letter from GE to Julia Margaret Cameron, 17 Jan 1871, with notes by Mrs. Ouvry, Feb 1942.	
	Paterson, Arthur	
b. 12	Letter, to Elinor Ouvry	1926 Apr 17
b. 12	Letter, to Elinor Ouvry	1926 Jul 26
	Paterson, Mary M. (Mrs. Arthur Paterson)	
b. 12	Letter, to Elinor Ouvry	1928 Apr 6
b. 12	Letter, to Elinor Ouvry	1928 May 5
	Patterson, Robert Hogarth, 1821-1886	
b. 12	Letter, to John Blackwood	[1868 Jun]

	Paul, Charles Kegan, 1828-1902	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1880 May 8
b. 12	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	1878 Dec 2
	Peirce, Melusina (Fay) (Mrs. Charles Sanders Peirce), 1836-	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1869 Aug 2
	Pelly, Sir Lewis, 1825-1892	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 5
	Perry, Alice M.	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1880 Feb 6
	Pfeiffer, Emily (Davis), 1827-1890	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	No year Nov 17
b. 12	Letter, to GE	[1879] Jan 11
	Pigott, Edward Frederick Smyth, 1824-1895	
b. 12	Letter, to J.W. Cross	1880 May 7
b. 12	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	1878 Dec 2
	Ponsonby, Mary Elizabeth (Bulteel), Lady, 1832-1916	
b. 12	Ponsonby, Mary Elizabeth (Bulteel), Lady, 1832-1916	1874 Oct
	Ponsonby, Mary Elizabeth (Bulteel), Lady, 1832-1916  Letters, to GE	
b. 12	Ponsonby, Mary Elizabeth (Bulteel), Lady, 1832-1916  Letters, to GE  Letter	1874 Oct
b. 12 b. 12	Ponsonby, Mary Elizabeth (Bulteel), Lady, 1832-1916  Letters, to GE  Letter  Letter	1874 Oct 1874 Dec 4
b. 12 b. 12 b. 12	Ponsonby, Mary Elizabeth (Bulteel), Lady, 1832-1916  Letter  Letter  Letter	1874 Oct 1874 Dec 4 1875 Feb 6
b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12	Ponsonby, Mary Elizabeth (Bulteel), Lady, 1832-1916  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	1874 Oct 1874 Dec 4 1875 Feb 6 1875 Feb 9
b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12	Ponsonby, Mary Elizabeth (Bulteel), Lady, 1832-1916  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	1874 Oct 1874 Dec 4 1875 Feb 6 1875 Feb 9 1875 Feb 14
b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12	Ponsonby, Mary Elizabeth (Bulteel), Lady, 1832-1916  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	1874 Oct 1874 Dec 4 1875 Feb 6 1875 Feb 9 1875 Feb 14
b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12	Ponsonby, Mary Elizabeth (Bulteel), Lady, 1832-1916 Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Poole, Hester M.	1874 Oct 1874 Dec 4 1875 Feb 6 1875 Feb 9 1875 Feb 14 1878 Dec 3
b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12	Ponsonby, Mary Elizabeth (Bulteel), Lady, 1832-1916  Letter  Letter, to C.L. Lewes	1874 Oct 1874 Dec 4 1875 Feb 6 1875 Feb 9 1875 Feb 14 1878 Dec 3
b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12	Ponsonby, Mary Elizabeth (Bulteel), Lady, 1832-1916 Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Poole, Hester M. Letter, to GE  Portsmouth, Eveline Alicia Juliana (Herbert), Countess of, 1834-1906	1874 Oct 1874 Dec 4 1875 Feb 6 1875 Feb 9 1875 Feb 14 1878 Dec 3
b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12 b. 12	Ponsonby, Mary Elizabeth (Bulteel), Lady, 1832-1916 Letters, to GE Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Poole, Hester M. Letter, to GE  Portsmouth, Eveline Alicia Juliana (Herbert), Countess of, 1834-1906 Letter, to GE	1874 Oct 1874 Dec 4 1875 Feb 6 1875 Feb 9 1875 Feb 14 1878 Dec 3

## Quirk, Ralph (continued)

b. 12	Letter, to GE, San Mateo	n.d.
	Quain, Richard, 1800-1887	
b. 12	Letter, to Sir James Paget	[1879] Apr 22
	Ramsay, Edward Bannerman, 1793-1872	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1866 Aug 9
	Read, John Edmund	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	[1859] May 12
	Reeves, Helen Buckingham (Mathers), 1853-1920	
b. 12	Letter, to J.W. Cross	[1880 Dec 22]
	Ritchie, Anne Isabella (Thackeray) Lady, 1837-1919	
b. 12	Letter, to J.W. Cross	[1880 Dec]
	Tinker 1000	
b. 12	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	n.y. Jun 2
	Letters, to G.H. Lewes	
b. 12	Letter, Saturday	[1870?]
b. 12	Letter, Friday	[1872 Jan]
	Ritter, Charles	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 12	Letter	1872 Jun 20
b. 12	Letter	1873 Feb 7
b. 12	Letter	1873 Apr 26
b. 12	Letter	1874 Dec 29
b. 12	Letter	1875 Oct 22
b. 12	Letter	1877 May 25
b. 12	Letter	1877 Jul 15
b. 12	Letter	1877 Oct 10
b. 12	Letter, to J.W. Cross	
b. 12	Letter	1881 Mar 28
b. 12	Letter	1887 Apr 9
	Rolleston, George, 1829-1881	
b. 12	Letter, to GHL	[1877] May 19

#### Ruck, Mary Anne (Mrs. Lawrence Ruck)

#### Letters, to GE

b. <b>12</b>	Letter	[1867?] Mar 3
b. 12	Letter	1873 May 1
b. 12	Letter, You are no new friend	[1876]
b. 12	Letter, I think it very good of you	[1876]
b. 12	Letter	[1878] Dec 10
	Rudge, Mrs. E.	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 3
	Ruge, H. Arnold, 1803-1880	
b. 12	Letter, to GHL	[1861?]
	Russell, Lord Arthur John Edward	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 4
	Sadler, Thomas	
b. 12	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 23
	Sampson, George, 1873-1950	
b. 12	Letter, to Elinor Ouvry	1928 May 18
	Sandars, Thomas Collett, 1825-1894	
b. 13	Letter, to J.W. Cross	1885 Feb 8
	Sartoris, Adelaide (Kemble), (Mrs. Edward John Sartoris), 1814?-1879	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1873 Apr 7
	Scharf, Sir George, 1820-1895	
	Letters, to C. L. Lewes	
b. 13	Accepting Burton's portrait of GE for National Portrait Gallery.	1883 Feb 23
b. <b>13</b>	Engraved form accepting "three specimens of the original hand-writing" of GE.	1883 May 5
	Schöll, Gustav Adolf	
b. 13	Letter, to GHL	1854 Aug 8
	Scooner, William Baptiste	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1879 Sep 16
	Sellar, Alexander Craig	

## Sellar, Alexander Craig (continued)

b. 13	Letters, to J.W. Cross	1882 Aug 31
	Sellar, Eleanor (Dennistoun), d. 1918	
b. 13	Letter, to J.W. Cross	[1878] Dec 28
b. 13	Letter, to J.W. Cross	[1880] Dec 28
	Sellar, William Young, 1825-1890	
b. 13	Letter, to J.W. Cross	1881 Jan 2
	Senior, Jane Elizabeth (Hughes), (Mrs. Nassau John Senior), 1828-1877	
	Letter, to GE	1876 Jun 30
b. 13	Letter, with quotation from G.E. Maurice	1876 Nov 29
	Shackleton, Lydia	
b. 13	Letter, to GHL	1858 May 24
	Sharpe, John	
b. 13	Letter, to J. W. Parker & Son, Asking about GHL's <i>Biographical History of Philosophy</i>	1857 Nov 15
	Shorter, Clement K.	
b. 13	Letter, to J.W. Cross	1880 Dec 31
	Sidgwick, Eleanor Mildred (Balfour), (Mrs. Henry Sidgwick)	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 13	Letters, to GE  Letter	1880 Apr 29
b. 13 b. 13		1880 Apr 29 [1880] Nov 4
	Letter	
b. 13	Letter Letter	[1880] Nov 4
b. 13	Letter  Letter  Letter, to J.W. Cross	[1880] Nov 4
b. 13	Letter  Letter  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Sidgwick, Henry, 1838-1900	[1880] Nov 4
b. 13 b. 13	Letter  Letter  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Sidgwick, Henry, 1838-1900  Letters, to J. W. Cross	[1880] Nov 4 1901 Jun 6
b. 13 b. 13	Letter  Letter  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Sidgwick, Henry, 1838-1900  Letters, to J. W. Cross  Letter, Many thanks for your criticisims	[1880] Nov 4 1901 Jun 6 n.d.
b. 13 b. 13 b. 13	Letter  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Sidgwick, Henry, 1838-1900  Letters, to J. W. Cross  Letter, Many thanks for your criticisims  Letter	[1880] Nov 4 1901 Jun 6  n.d. [1880] Dec 25
b. 13 b. 13 b. 13 b. 13	Letter  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Sidgwick, Henry, 1838-1900  Letters, to J. W. Cross  Letter, Many thanks for your criticisims  Letter  Letter	[1880] Nov 4 1901 Jun 6  n.d. [1880] Dec 25 1881 Mar 27
b. 13 b. 13 b. 13 b. 13 b. 13	Letter  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Sidgwick, Henry, 1838-1900  Letters, to J. W. Cross  Letter, Many thanks for your criticisims  Letter  Letter  Letter	[1880] Nov 4 1901 Jun 6  n.d. [1880] Dec 25 1881 Mar 27 1884 Nov 22
b. 13	Letter  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Sidgwick, Henry, 1838-1900  Letters, to J. W. Cross  Letter, Many thanks for your criticisims  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	[1880] Nov 4  1901 Jun 6  n.d.  [1880] Dec 25  1881 Mar 27  1884 Nov 22  1884 Dec 15
b. 13	Letter  Letter, to J.W. Cross  Sidgwick, Henry, 1838-1900  Letters, to J. W. Cross  Letter, Many thanks for your criticisims  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter  Letter	[1880] Nov 4  1901 Jun 6  n.d.  [1880] Dec 25  1881 Mar 27  1884 Nov 22  1884 Dec 15

Sidgwick, Henry, 1838-1900 > Letters, to GE (continued)

b. 13	Letter	[1880] Apr 29
	Siebold, Antonie von	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	[1858 Jun 18]
	Siebold, Karl Theodor Ernst von, 1804-1885, and Antonie von Siebold	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	NaN
b. 13	Letter, to GE	
	Simcox, Edith, 1844-1901	
b. 13	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	[1878 Dec 2]
	Simon, John, 1816-1904	
b. 13	Letter, to GHL, Monday evening	[1859?]
	Simon, Richard	
b. 13	Letter, to GE, Enclosing a poem entitled "New Lives"	1874 Aug 16
	Smart, Alice C., (Mrs. C.S. Smart)	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 30
	Smart, C.S.	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 31
	Smith, Anne Leigh	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	[1859 Jun]
b. 13	Caricature of Joseph Liggins	[1859 Jul]
b. 13	Letter, to GE	[1859 Sep?]
b. 13	Letter, to GE	[1859 Nov]
	Smith, Elder & Co.	
b. <b>13</b>	Memorandum of agreement concerning the publication of GHL's $\it Studies$ of $\it Animal Life$	[1859]
	Smith, George, 1824-1901	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1864 May 3
	Smith, George Barnett, 1841-1909	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1872 Dec 6
	Signed "Guy Roslyn."	
	Tinker 1001	
	Smith, Lucy Caroline (Cumming), (Mrs. William Henry Smith)	

# Smith, Lucy Caroline (Cumming), (Mrs. William Henry Smith) (continued)

	Letters, to GE	
b. 13	Letter	[1873] Apr 24
b. 13	Letter	[1873] Oct 23
b. 13	Letter	[1874] Feb 14
b. 13	Letter	[1874] Jun 27
b. 13	Letter	[1878] Dec 3
b. 13	Letter	[1879] Mar 28
	Smith, William Robertson, 1846-1894 to GHL	
b. 13	Letter, to GHL with 12 pages of extracts on aphasia, etc.	1871 Sep 25
b. 13	Letter, to GHL	1872 Dec 19
b. 13	Letter, to GHL	1873 Apr 8
b. 13	Letter, to GHL	1874 Jan 7
	Souvestre, Marie	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	[1873 Jun 29]
	Spence, C.H.	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1876 Nov 23
	Spencer, Herbert, 1820-1903	
	Letters, to J. W. Cross	
	Tinker 1002	
b. 13	Letter, It occurred to me	n.d.
b. 13	<u>Letter</u>	1881 Mar 9
b. 13	<u>Letter</u>	1881 Mar 16
b. 13	<u>Letter</u>	1881 Apr 3
b. 13	<u>Letter</u>	1883 Dec 21
b. 13	<u>Letter</u>	1884 Jan 13
b. 13	<u>Letter</u>	1884 Oct 21
b. 13	<u>Letter</u>	1884 Oct 23
	<u>Lettel</u>	1864 Oct 23
b. 13	<u>Letter</u>	1884 Oct 24

## Spencer, Herbert, 1820-1903 > Letters, to J. W. Cross (continued)

b. <b>13</b>	<u>Letter</u>	1884 Oct 29
b. 13	Letter	1885 Feb 2
b. 13	<u>Letter</u>	1885 Feb 9
b. 13	Letter	1885 Mar 14
b. 13	Letter	1889 Oct 13
b. <b>13</b>	<u>Letter</u>	1892 Dec 7
	Steele, Joseph	
b. <b>13</b>	Letter, to GE	1855 Oct 7
	Stephen, Sir James FitzJames, 1829-1894	
b. <b>13</b>	Letter, to GE	1872 Nov 4
	Stewart, James S.	
b. <b>13</b>	Letter, to Longman's Green	1877 Aug 22
	Stoddard, Charles Warren	
b. <b>13</b>	Letter, to GE	1868 Sep 6
	Accompanied by printed verses.	
	Stoddard, John L.	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1870 Nov 19
	Stowe, Harriet Elizabeth (Beecher), 1811-1896	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	[1878 Dec]
	(fragment)	
	Strachey, Jane Maria (Grant), Lady	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	[1879?] Apr 23
	Strangford, Emily Anne (Beaumont), Viscountess, d. 1887	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 13	Letter	1873 Oct 27
b. 13	Letter	1874 Mar 6
b. 13	Letter	1874 Apr 23
b. 13	Letter	1874 May 30
b. 13	Letter	1879 Jan 9
b. 13	Letter	1880 May 8
	Streeter, Ada Louise, b. 1864?	

Streeter, Ada Louise, b. 1864?

## Streeter, Ada Louise, b. 1864? (continued)

b. <b>13</b>	Letter, to GE	1880 Jan 12
	Stuart, Evorilda Eliza Maria (Fraser) (Mrs. John Glass Gordon Stuart), 1837?-1903	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 13	Letter	1872 Jan 29
b. 13	Letter	1872 Dec
b. 13	Letter	1873 Feb 15
	Stummer, Juda	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 2
	Swanwick, Anna, 1813-1899	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 17
	Szász, Károly, 1829-1905	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1879 Jul 15
	Tait, Peter Guthrie, 1831-1901	
b. 13	Letter, to GHL	1874 Oct 29
	Taylor, Clementia (Doughty), d. 1908 (Mrs. Peter Alfred Taylor)	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 13	<u>Letter</u>	[1870?] Aug 12
b. 13	<u>Letter</u>	[1873] Nov 9
b. 13	<u>Letter</u>	[1878] Dec 3
b. 13	<u>Letter</u>	[1878] Dec 8
	Teetgen, Alexander	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1874 Oct 22
b. 13	Temple, Frederick Judgment in the case of Craddock vs. Bray (12 July 1860) filed with letter from Charles Bray to C.H. Bracebridge, 14 July 1860.	
	Tennyson, Alfred Tennyson, 1st. baron, 1809-1892	
b. 13	Letter, to GHL	1878 Aug 5
	Tennyson, Eleanor (Locker), (Mrs. Lionel Tennyson)	
b. 13	1 111/ 6	1000 D 20
2	Letter, to J.W. Cross	1880 Dec 29
2.10	Thomas, Millicent (Gilchrist)	1880 Dec 29
b. 13		1879 Jan 5

	Tilley, Elisabeth, 1821-	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 16
	Tollemache, Marguerite Home (Purvis), (Mrs. William Augustus Tollemache), 1817-1896	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	[1878] Dec 4
	Trepplin, Charles	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	187[5?] Jan 19
	Trollope, Anthony, 1815-1882	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 13	Letter	1862 Jun 28
b. 13	Letter, addressed also to GHL and filed with Trollope's letters to him	1872 Feb 27
	Letter, to C.L. Lewes	
b. 13	Letter	1880 Dec 24
	Letters, to GHL	
b. 13	Fragment, saying: I shall be at Greenwich on the 9th	n.d.
b. 13	Letter	1860 Jul 9
b. 13	Letter	1860 Jul 20
b. 13	Letter	1860 Jul 23
b. 13	Letter	1860 Aug 9
b. 13	Letter	1860 Aug 14
b. 13	Letter	1861 Apr 7
b. 13	Letter	1861 Jul 3
b. 13	Letter	1862 May 15
b. 13	Letter	1863 Nov 16
b. 13	Letter	1863 Dec 13
b. 13	Letter	1864 Jan 31
b. 13	Letter	1864 Mar 21
b. 13	Letter	1864 Jun 26
b. 13	Letter	1864 Dec 24
b. 13	Letter	1865 May 30
b. 13	Letter	1865 Jun 1

## Trollope, Anthony, 1815-1882 > Letters, to GHL (continued)

b. 13	Letter	1866 Nov 9
b. 13	Letter	1868 Oct 3
b. 13	Letter	1869 Aug 13
b. 13	Letter	1869 Dec 13
b. 13	Letter, Addressed also to GE	1872 Feb 27
b. 13	Letter	1874 May 3
b. 13	Letter	1875 Nov 1
b. 13	Letter, Accompanied by a printed map of Trollope's Barsetshire.	
	Trollope, Frances Eleanor (Ternan), (Mrs. Thomas Adolphus Trollope)	
	Letters, to GE	
b. 13	Letter	1878 Dec 5
b. 13	Letter	1879 Dec 15
	Trübner & Co.	
b. 13	Agreement for publication of Problems of Life & Mind, addressed to GHL.	1873 May 26
b. 13	Statement on royalties due for <i>Problems of Life &amp; Mind</i> , addressed to C.L. Lewes.	1880 Apr 29
	Turgenev, Ivan Sergevich, 1818-1883	
b. 13	Letter, to GE, in French	1871 Jan 16
b. 13	Letter, to William Henry (Bullock) Hall	1878 Oct 16
	Tyndall, John, 1820-1893	
b. 13	Letter, to J.W. Cross Tinker 1003	1880 Dec 28
b. 13	Letter, to GHL	1866 Dec 1
b. 13	Letter, to Arthur Penrhyn Stanley Tinker 1004	1880 Dec 25
	Tzikos, Pericles	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1880 Jan 1
	Verey, Joseph	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1859 Mar 12
	Waldstein, Charles (later Sir Charles Walston)	
b. 13	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 7

b. 13 Letter 1876 b. 13 Letter 1877 b. 13 Letter 1877 b. 13 Letter, Accompanied by a copy of selected passages from a letter from GE to E.S. Phelps, sent to GE to be copied by her after the original was accidentally destroyed.  Watson, Agnes C.  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1875 b. 14 Letter, to GE 1875 Watt, A.S. b. 14 Letter, to Ellis & Ellis 1926 Watts, George Frederic, 1818-1904 b. 14 Letter, to GE 1876 Wedgwood, Frances Julia b. 14 Letter, to GE 1872 b. 14 Letter, to GE 1872 b. 14 Letter, to Barbara Bodichon n.d. Wheatley, Henry Benjamin, 1838-1919 b. 14 List of articles on the age of the earth prepared for GE at the request of Warren De la Rue. White, Edgar b. 14 Letter, to GE 1874 White, Newman Ivy b. 14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes 1936 Williams, J.E.	
b.13	
b. 13 Letter 1876 b. 13 Letter 1877 b. 13 Letter 1877 b. 13 Letter, Accompanied by a copy of selected passages from a letter from GE to E.S. Phelps, sent to GE to be copied by her after the original was accidentally destroyed.  Watson, Agnes C.  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1875 b. 14 Letter, to GE 1875 Watt, A.S. b. 14 Letter, to Ellis & Ellis 1926 Watts, George Frederic, 1818-1904 b. 14 Letter, to GE 1876 Wedgwood, Frances Julia b. 14 Letter, to GE 1872 b. 14 Letter, to Barbara Bodichon n.d. Wheatley, Henry Benjamin, 1838-1919 b. 14 List of articles on the age of the earth prepared for GE at the request of Warren De la Rue. White, Edgar b. 14 Letter, to GE 1874 White, Newman Ivy b. 14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes 1936 Williams, J.E.	
b.13	3 Feb 26
Letter, Accompanied by a copy of selected passages from a letter from GE to E.S. Phelps, sent to GE to be copied by her after the original was accidentally destroyed.  Watson, Agnes C.  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1875  Watt, A.S.  b. 14 Letter, to Ellis & Ellis 1926  Watts, George Frederic, 1818-1904  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1870  Wedgwood, Frances Julia  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1872  Wheatley, Henry Benjamin, 1838-1919  b. 14 List of articles on the age of the earth prepared for GE at the request of Warren De la Rue.  White, Edgar  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1874  White, Newman Ivy  b. 14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes 1936  Williams, J.E.	6 Dec 1
GE to E.S. Phelps, sent to GE to be copied by her after the original was accidentally destroyed.  Watson, Agnes C.  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1875  Watt, A.S.  b. 14 Letter, to Ellis & Ellis 1926  Watts, George Frederic, 1818-1904  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1876  Wedgwood, Frances Julia  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1876  b. 14 Letter, to Barbara Bodichon n.d.  Wheatley, Henry Benjamin, 1838-1919  b. 14 List of articles on the age of the earth prepared for GE at the request of Warren De la Rue.  White, Edgar  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1874  White, Newman Ivy  b. 14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes 1936  Williams, J.E.	7 May 27
b.14 Letter, to GE 1879 b.14 Letter, to GE 1879  Watt, A.S.  b.14 Letter, to Ellis & Ellis 1926  Watts, George Frederic, 1818-1904  b.14 Letter, to GE 1870  Wedgwood, Frances Julia  b.14 Letter, to GE 1872  b.14 Letter, to Barbara Bodichon n.d.  Wheatley, Henry Benjamin, 1838-1919  b.14 List of articles on the age of the earth prepared for GE at the request of Warren De la Rue.  White, Edgar  b.14 Letter, to GE 1874  White, Newman Ivy  b.14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes 1936  Williams, J.E.	y?] 1875.
b.14 Letter, to GE  Watt, A.S.  b.14 Letter, to Ellis & Ellis  Watts, George Frederic, 1818-1904  b.14 Letter, to GE  Wedgwood, Frances Julia  b.14 Letter, to GE  1872  b.14 Letter, to Barbara Bodichon  n.d.  Wheatley, Henry Benjamin, 1838-1919  b.14 List of articles on the age of the earth prepared for GE at the request of Warren De la Rue.  White, Edgar  b.14 Letter, to GE  White, Newman Ivy  b.14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes  Williams, J.E.	
b. 14 Letter, to Ellis & Ellis 1926  Watts, George Frederic, 1818-1904  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1870  Wedgwood, Frances Julia  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1872  b. 14 Letter, to Barbara Bodichon n.d.  Wheatley, Henry Benjamin, 1838-1919  b. 14 List of articles on the age of the earth prepared for GE at the request of Warren De la Rue.  White, Edgar  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1874  White, Newman Ivy  b. 14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes 1936  Williams, J.E.	9 Mar 28
b. 14 Letter, to Ellis & Ellis  Watts, George Frederic, 1818-1904  b. 14 Letter, to GE  Wedgwood, Frances Julia  b. 14 Letter, to GE  1872  b. 14 Letter, to Barbara Bodichon  n.d.  Wheatley, Henry Benjamin, 1838-1919  b. 14 List of articles on the age of the earth prepared for GE at the request of Warren De la Rue.  White, Edgar  b. 14 Letter, to GE  White, Newman Ivy  b. 14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes  Williams, J.E.	9 Sep 28
Watts, George Frederic, 1818-1904  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1870  Wedgwood, Frances Julia  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1872  b. 14 Letter, to Barbara Bodichon n.d.  Wheatley, Henry Benjamin, 1838-1919  b. 14 List of articles on the age of the earth prepared for GE at the request of Warren De la Rue.  White, Edgar  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1874  White, Newman Ivy  b. 14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes 1936  Williams, J.E.	
b. 14 Letter, to GE  Wedgwood, Frances Julia  b. 14 Letter, to GE  1872  b. 14 Letter, to Barbara Bodichon  n.d.  Wheatley, Henry Benjamin, 1838-1919  b. 14 List of articles on the age of the earth prepared for GE at the request of Warren De la Rue.  White, Edgar  b. 14 Letter, to GE  White, Newman Ivy  b. 14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes  Williams, J.E.	6 Mar 4
Wedgwood, Frances Julia b. 14	
b. 14  Letter, to GE  b. 14  Letter, to Barbara Bodichon  Nd.  Wheatley, Henry Benjamin, 1838-1919  b. 14  List of articles on the age of the earth prepared for GE at the request of Warren De la Rue.  White, Edgar  b. 14  Letter, to GE  White, Newman Ivy  b. 14  Letter, to C. L. Lewes  Williams, J.E.	0 Jan 12
b. 14  Letter, to Barbara Bodichon  N.d.  Wheatley, Henry Benjamin, 1838-1919  b. 14  List of articles on the age of the earth prepared for GE at the request of Warren De la Rue.  White, Edgar  b. 14  Letter, to GE  White, Newman Ivy  b. 14  Letter, to C. L. Lewes  Williams, J.E.	
Wheatley, Henry Benjamin, 1838-1919  b. 14 List of articles on the age of the earth prepared for GE at the request of Warren De la Rue.  White, Edgar  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1874  White, Newman Ivy  b. 14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes 1936  Williams, J.E.	2 Nov 8
b. 14 List of articles on the age of the earth prepared for GE at the request of Warren De la Rue.  White, Edgar  b. 14 Letter, to GE  White, Newman Ivy  b. 14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes  Williams, J.E.	
Warren De la Rue.  White, Edgar  b. 14 Letter, to GE 1874  White, Newman Ivy  b. 14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes 1936  Williams, J.E.	
b. 14 Letter, to GE  White, Newman Ivy  b. 14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes  Williams, J.E.	78]
White, Newman Ivy b. 14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes 1936 Williams, J.E.	
b. 14 Letter, to C. L. Lewes 1936 Williams, J.E.	4 Jul 25
Williams, J.E.	
	6 Aug 20
b. 14 Letter, to GE 1871	
	1 Dec 9
Williams, Samuel D., Jr.	
b. 14 Letter, to GE No y	year May 9
b. 14 Letter, to GE [187	78 Dec 2]

#### Williams, Samuel D., Jr. (continued)

b. 14	Letter, to GHL	1865 Sep 15
	Willim, Elizabeth (Ashweek) Lewes, (Mrs. John G. Willim, GHL's mother), 1787-1870	
b. <b>14</b>	Letter, to GHL	[1860]
	Wills, William Gorman, 1828-1891	
b. 14	Letter, to GE, with draft of reply by C.L. Lewes on verso	[1879?]
	Wilson, William James Erasmus, 1809-1884	
b. 14	Letter, to GE	1878 Dec 10
	Winkworth, Emma	
b. 14	Letter, to GE	1873 Dec 4
b. 14	Letter, to Mrs. Edmund	1873 Jan 15
	Winkworth, Susanna, 1820-1884	
b. 14	Letter, to GE	1859 Apr 7
	Withers, Edmund	
b. 14	Letter, to GHL	1859 May 17
	Wood, William	
	Letters, to J.W. Cross	
b. 14	Letter	1878 Nov 8
b. 14	Letter	1878 Dec 31
b. <b>14</b>		
	Letter	1885 Feb 10
b. <b>14</b>	Letter  Letter	1885 Feb 10 1885 Mar 10
b. 14 b. 14		
	Letter	1885 Mar 10
b. 14	Letter Letter, incomplete	1885 Mar 10 n.d.
b. 14	Letter  Letter, incomplete  Letter, to GE	1885 Mar 10 n.d.
b. 14 b. 14	Letter  Letter, incomplete  Letter, to GE  Yeo, Gerald Francis, 1845-1909	1885 Mar 10 n.d. 1877 Feb 27
b. 14 b. 14	Letter  Letter, incomplete  Letter, to GE  Yeo, Gerald Francis, 1845-1909  Letter, to GE, On behalf of the Physiological Society	1885 Mar 10 n.d. 1877 Feb 27

# Section IV. George Eliot. WRITINGS, 1854–1861

b. <b>15</b>	1. JOURNAL	1854-1861
	Contains recollections of Weimar (1854), Berlin (1854-55), Ilfracombe (1856), the Scilly Isles (1857), Jersey (1857); "How I came to write Fiction"; and the "History of Adam Bede." 152 leaves 21 cm. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.	
	Sold by Miss Elsie Druce, niece of J. W. Cross, at Sotheby's on 17 April 1930, item 911. Purchased with the Altschul Fund, 1931.	
b. <b>16</b>	2. JOURNAL	1858-1860
	Contains journal of a trip to Germany, April 14-October 27, 1858 and beginning at the back of the book, "Recollections of Italy, 1860." 175 p. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.	
	Sold by Miss Elsie Druce, niece of J. W. Cross, at Sotheby's on 17 April 1930, item 915. Purchased with the Altschul Fund.	
b. <b>17</b>	3. JOURNAL	1861-77 Jul-Dec
	"Order of writings", a list of GE's works up to 1876, precedes the first page of the diary. 144 p. [53 blank] 15 cm. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.	
	Tinker 868	
	Gift of Chauncey B. Tinker, 1955.	
l. 40	4 IOURNAL	40/4 40/5
b. <b>18</b>	4. JOURNAL	1864-1865
D. 18	4. JOURNAL  Contains journal of a trip to Italy in 1864 and to Normandy in 1865. 137 p. [74 blank]  12 cm. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.	1864-1865
D. 18	Contains journal of a trip to Italy in 1864 and to Normandy in 1865. 137 p. [74 blank]	1864–1865
D. 18	Contains journal of a trip to Italy in 1864 and to Normandy in 1865. 137 p. [74 blank] 12 cm. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.	1864–1865
b. 19	Contains journal of a trip to Italy in 1864 and to Normandy in 1865. 137 p. [74 blank] 12 cm. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.  Tinker 869	1880 January
	Contains journal of a trip to Italy in 1864 and to Normandy in 1865. 137 p. [74 blank] 12 cm. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.  Tinker 869  Gift of Chauncey B. Tinker, 1955.	
	Contains journal of a trip to Italy in 1864 and to Normandy in 1865. 137 p. [74 blank] 12 cm. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.  Tinker 869  Gift of Chauncey B. Tinker, 1955.  5. DIARY  Contains also cash accounts for the year 1880. Accompanied by typescript	1880 January 01-1880
	Contains journal of a trip to Italy in 1864 and to Normandy in 1865. 137 p. [74 blank] 12 cm. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.  Tinker 869  Gift of Chauncey B. Tinker, 1955.  5. DIARY  Contains also cash accounts for the year 1880. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.	1880 January 01-1880
b. 19	Contains journal of a trip to Italy in 1864 and to Normandy in 1865. 137 p. [74 blank] 12 cm. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.  Tinker 869  Gift of Chauncey B. Tinker, 1955.  5. DIARY  Contains also cash accounts for the year 1880. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.  Purchased from Gabriel Wells with the Library Associates Fund, 1935.	1880 January 01-1880
b. 19	Contains journal of a trip to Italy in 1864 and to Normandy in 1865. 137 p. [74 blank] 12 cm. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.  Tinker 869  Gift of Chauncey B. Tinker, 1955.  5. DIARY  Contains also cash accounts for the year 1880. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.  Purchased from Gabriel Wells with the Library Associates Fund, 1935.  6. COMMONPLACE NOTEBOOK, with index. 307 p.  Sold by Miss Elsie Druce, niece of J.W. Cross, at Sotheby's on 17 April 1930, item	1880 January 01-1880
b. 19 b. 20	Contains journal of a trip to Italy in 1864 and to Normandy in 1865. 137 p. [74 blank] 12 cm. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.  Tinker 869  Gift of Chauncey B. Tinker, 1955.  5. DIARY  Contains also cash accounts for the year 1880. Accompanied by typescript prepared by Richard L. Purdy.  Purchased from Gabriel Wells with the Library Associates Fund, 1935.  6. COMMONPLACE NOTEBOOK, with index. 307 p.  Sold by Miss Elsie Druce, niece of J.W. Cross, at Sotheby's on 17 April 1930, item 913. Purchased with the Altschul Fund, 1931.	1880 January 01-1880

b. 22	8. NOTEBOOK  Contains miscellaneous notes and quotations, some in Greek and German. 20 p. 11 cm.	1880
	Sold by Miss Elsie Druce, niece of J.W. Cross, at Sotheby's on 9 April 1935, item 435. Gift of Chauncey B. Tinker, 1955. Tinker 867	
b. 23	9. NOTES  Notes, possibly for a projected novel, on the back of a card calendar for January 1876. 1 card. 9.5 x 13.5 cm.  Purchased from C.A. Stonehill with the Library Associates Fund, 1944. Published in Blanche Colton Williams' <i>George Eliot, a biography</i> , New York, Macmillan, 1936. p. 290-291.	1876
b. 24	10. NOTEBOOK  Notebook of memoranda, statistics, historical notes and quotations collected in preparation for writing <i>Felix Holt, The Spanish Gypsy</i> . 150 p. 14 cm.  Tinker 866  Gift of Chauncey B. Tinker, 1955.	[1861]
b. 25	11. ETHICA  GE's translation of Spinoza's Ethica, parts 1-5. 654 leaves 23 cm. Accompanied by GHL's "Notes and additions to the Theologico-Political Tractate" of Spinoza. 9 leaves.  Purchased from Mrs. Elinor Ouvry with the Library Associates Fund, 1942.	[1855]
b. <b>26</b>	12. ADDRESS BOOK  Notebook with addresses in the hands of GE and GHL. 64 leaves 14.5 cm.  Purchased from C. A. Stonehill with the Library Associates Fund, 1944.	
b. 27	13. SCHOOL NOTEBOOK  This notebook, the earliest known GE manuscript, contains poems copied from various sources, rules and illustrative problems in arithmetic, an essay on "Affectation and Conceit," and a story, "Edward Neville." 66 leaves.  Purchased from J. H. P. Pafford with the Library Associates Fund.	1834
b. 28	14. "BROTHER JACOB"  A short story published in the <i>Cornhill Magazine</i> , July 1864, and a poem, "A College Breakfast Party," April 1874, published in <i>Macmillan's Magazine</i> , July 1878. 128 leaves, probably bound by C.L. Lewes, 1881.  Purchased from Mrs. Ouvry with the Library Associates Fund.	[1860]
b. 29	15. MEMORANDUM by GE Of the agreement with Smith, Elder & Co. relating to the copyright of <i>Romola</i> . With note on verso by Mrs. Ouvry.  Purchased from Mrs. Ouvry with the Library Associates Fund.	[February 1862]
b. 30	16. "ZODAICAL ASPECTS"  4 p. removed from one of the notebooks for <i>The Spanish Gypsy</i> , 1868. Removed from v. 25 of GE's <i>Works</i> , Boston, 1908.	1868

b. <b>31</b>	17. "TWO LOVERS"	
	A poem. Two versions. First version dated March 1865. 1 p. 23 cm. Second version dated September 1866 but on paper watermarked 1869 and in the violet ink first used in 1872. 1 p. 23 cm.	
b. 32	18. NOTEBOOK	
	Contains a few brief chronological notes on ancient history. Paper cover marked "Quarry". 26 p. 9 cm.	
b. 33	19. NOTES	1879
	Criticism of Joseph Remi Léopold Delboeuf's article, "George-Henry Lewes. Sa vie et ses ouvrages" which appeared in <i>La Revue Scientifique</i> for 1 February 1879. 1 p. 15 cm.	
	Sold at Sotheby's on 27 October 1959; gift of Gordon S. Haight and Richard L. Purdy in honor of Chauncey B. Tinker, 1959.	
b. 34	20. DIARY	1879
	The original diary is in the Berg Collection of the New York Public Library, and permission to paraphrase or quote from this diary must be obtained from the Berg Collection. This typescript was prepared by R. H. Nims for Gordon S. Haight.	
b. 35	21. [NOTEBOOK kept while studying Kant]	
	Photocopy only, original at Nuneaton. This photocopy was made from a photocopy owned by Mrs. Joy Hooton, December 1984.	

# Section V. George Eliot. WRITINGS. DRAMATIZATIONS.

b. <b>36</b>	1. Program and review of <i>Daniel Deronda</i> dramatized by Lydia Lewisohn and Lily Tobias, "Q" Theatre, Kew, 14-20 February 1927. 2 pieces.	1927 February 14-1927 February 20
b. 36	2. Daniel Deronda, dramatized in 6 episodes for BBC by Alexander Baron, 1969. Recorded 14 June-4 August 1969; transmitted 11 April-13 May 1970. 365 leaves.	
b. 36	3. Review of the first episode of Alexander Baron's dramatization of <i>Daniel Deronda</i> . Manuscript note on clipping: Telegraph 3-16-70.	

# Section VI. George Henry Lewes. WRITINGS, 1856 July 24-1859 March 31

b. 37	1. JOURNAL X	1856 July 24-1859 March 31
b. 38	2. JOURNAL XI	1859 April 01-1866 January 01
b. 39	3. JOURNAL XII	1866 June 01-1870 May 06
b. 40	4. DIARY	1869
b. 41	5. DIARY	1870
b. 42	6. DIARY	1871
b. 43	7. DIARY	1872
b. 44	8. DIARY	1873
b. 45	9. DIARY	1874
b. 46	10. DIARY	1875
b. 47	11. DIARY	1876
b. 48	11a. DIARY	1877
b. 49	12. NOTEBOOK Miscellaneous notes, quotations, sketches. 144 p. Written mostly in pencil.	1857 Feb
b. 50	13. NOTEBOOK  Miscellaneous notes, addresses, diary entries in Antwerp and Holland. 148 p.  Written mostly in pencil.	1860 March-1867 December
b. 51	14. NOTEBOOK  Miscellaneous notes, addresses, quotations about Shakespeare, Pythagoras, etc. Several entries in ink. 110 p.	
b. 52	15. "Extracts made by G.H. Lewes (Interesting)" 127 p. (46 blank). "The Oedipus Colonos of Sophocles. Translated by G.H.L. 1843 (Sept -)" 16 p. at end.	
b. <b>53</b>	16. "Ariadne: or The Principles of Success and Failure in Literature."  Notebook, 66 leaves (4 blank). Published as "The Principles of Success and Failure in Literature" in the Fortnightly Review vol. 1-2, 1865.	1861
b. 53	17. "Psychological CasesBegun Dec 1866."	
	58 leaves (48 blank). Probably miscellaneous notes for his <i>Problems of Life and Mind</i> .	
b. 54	18. "Notes (Physiological) Begun Feb 1873." 138 leaves (86 blank). Probably miscellaneous notes for his <i>Problems in Life and Mind</i> .	

b. <b>55</b>	27. "Goethe." 22 leaves	1854–1855
b. 55	26. "Glimpses & Guesses" 18 p. "Thoughts of G.H. Lewes", cover title in Mrs. Ouvry's hand.	
b. <b>55</b>	25. "The Fox who got the Grapes. A comedy in One Act." 42 leaves.  Note on cover: "Turned into 'Mrs. Beauchamp's Vengeance' in Blackwood."	
b. <b>55</b>	24. "Drat that Dick! A Philosophical Farce. By Slingsby Lawrence Esq." 38 leaves.	
b. 55	i. "Being & existence are here treated as identical terms" 24 p. numbered E to FF. Pencilled note on E: "Wm. Appleton?"	
b. 55	h. "Remarks on Mr. Lewes' Chapters IVVII." 16 p.	
b. <b>5</b> 5	g. "Notes on fragment of Parmenides printed in Lewes' Hist. Mat. pp. 54, 55." 3 leaves.	
b. 55	f. "Book II, Chap. I. The Alexandrian School." 24 leaves.	
b. <b>55</b>	e. Miscellaneous notes beginning with "Ruskin." 4 leaves.	
b. 55	d. "V. Laws of Matter in Mind." 24 leaves.	
b. 55	c. "Immediate & mediate knowledge." 7 p.	
b. 55	b. Table of contents in the hands of GHL and GE of the former's "The Study of Psychology, its object, scope, & method." 1 p.	
b. <b>55</b>	a. A list of 13 items beginning: George Eliot's copied notes from various notebooks of G. H. Lewes' philosophy." Miscellaneous notes on verso, one headed "Belief." I leaf.	
	Note: Larger portions of this manuscript are at Princeton, Huntington, and Berg.	
	Published as the third series of <i>Problems of Life and Mind</i> , 1879.	
	23. "Fragmentary M.S.S. of G. H. Lewes" some apparently for a Volume IV never published to be entitled 'The Study of Psychology'' Notes by GHL, GE, and others.	
b. 55	22. "History dates, chronological summary." 58 p. (11 blank).	
b. <b>55</b>	21. "[Historical Note Books] VII & VIII cents. IX & X cents." 49 - [94] leaves.	
b. 55	20. "Historical Note Books IV, V, VI centuries." 48 leaves.	
b. <b>55</b>	19. "Preparation for Hipparchus, Hipparchus, Ptolemy." 47 leaves (15 blank).	

b. 55	28. "Marguerite." A play in 5 acts. 47 leaves.	
b. 55	29. "The Miser's niece. Comedy in 2 Acts." 29 leaves.	
b. <b>55</b>	30. "Pretension; or The School for Parvenus. A Comedy in 5 Acts." 85 leaves.	
b. <b>56</b>	31. [The Nervous Mechanism].  Possibly the first draft of the chapter on this subject in the second series of <i>The Problems of Life and Mind</i> . 21 leaves numbered 166-[177].	
b. <b>56</b>	32. PROBLEMS OF LIFE AND MIND.  Part of Vol. III, Part I, etc. in folder labelled "Colour, Sensation." 103 p.	
b. <b>56</b>	33. PROBLEMS OF LIFE AND MIND. Part of vol. IV, in George Eliot's hand. 6 leaves.	
b. <b>56</b>	34. PROBLEMS OF LIFE AND MIND.  Chapters XI-XIV of Problem III: "The Sphere of Sense and Logic of Feeling." (Third series). 69 leaves.	
b. <b>56</b>	35. PROBLEMS OF LIFE AND MIND. Chapter on "Belief." 9 leaves.	
b. <b>56</b>	36. PROBLEMS OF LIFE AND MIND?  Notes on "Insanity" (in folder marked "Hallucinations") probably intended for another volume of <i>Problems of Life and Mind</i> . 24 leaves.	
b. <b>56</b>	37. PROBLEMS OF LIFE AND MIND Chapter on "Intuition." 5 leaves.	
b. 56	38. PROBLEMS OF LIFE AND MIND.  Appendix B of vol. II: "Lagrange and Hegel: The Speculative Method." 28 leaves numbered 257-284.	
b. 56	39. "Thoughts for the Thoughtful. Part III."	
b. <b>56</b>	40. Notes of requirements for examination in classical languages, history, geography, logic, and political philosophy. 1 p.	[c. 1865]
b. 56	41. SAVELLO GHL's sketch of a tragedy in 3 acts adapted from Carl Dietrich Ludwig Felix von Rumohr, "Der letzte Savello," published in <i>Urania. Taschenbuch auf das Jahr 1834</i> , Leipzig, 1834 and re- printed in <i>Deutscher Novellenschatz</i> , ed. P. Heyse and H. Kurz, Munich, II (1871), 125-209. The Savello-Cassandra episode is found in pp. 184-209. Written in pencil by GHL and traced over by GE in ink. GHL mentions reading the story in his Diary, 2 August 1871.  "Notes and additions to the Theologico- Political Tractate" of Spinoza: notes accompanying GE's translation of Spinoza's <i>Ethics</i> . Stored in: IV. 11. (Box 25)	[1871]

# Section VII. George Eliot. ASSOCIATION ITEMS

b. <b>56</b>	1. THE LINNET'S LIFE, London 1822.
	The first book GE received from her father. Inscribed on flyleaf [1870?] and presented to J. W. Cross in 1880.
b. <b>56</b>	2. George Eliot.
	<i>Agatha</i> , London, 1869, and <i>How Lisa Loved the King</i> , Boston, 1869, bound together with an inscription to Mrs. William Cross, January, 1874. Additions and corrections in GE's hand on pages 10, 16, 18, 24, 34, 37, 47, and pencil markings for reading aloud.
b. 56	3. Thomas à Kempis' <i>De Imitatione Christi,</i> 1853.
	Presented by GE to John Walter Cross on their wedding day. Inscribed by Cross "JWC from MAC 6 May 1880".
b. <b>56</b>	4. John Walter Cross.
	A notebook with M. E. L. stamped on cover contains one note (the address of Josiah Mills, coal merchant, now almost obliterated) in GE's hand and several by J. W. Cross, soon after her death, chiefly dates drawn probably from her journals.

# Section VIII. George Eliot. WRITINGS ABOUT

b. 57	1. List of GE's manuscripts made by Charles Lee Lewes, probably in 1880. With a note by Mrs. Ouvry: "Most of these sold 1923 at Sotheby." 3 p. 18 cm.	1880
	2. Reviews of GE's works.	
	a. SCENES OF CLERICAL LIFE	1858
b. <b>57</b>	Saturday Review, p. 566-567.	1858 May 29
b. <b>57</b>	Saturday Review, p. 583-584.	1858 Jun 5
	b. ADAM BEDE	1859
b. <b>57</b>	Athenaeum, p. 284.	1859 Feb 26
b. 57	Bentley's Quarterly Review, 1, p. 433-456.	1859
b. 57	Literary Gazette, p. 281-283.	1859 Feb 26
b. 57	Saturday Review, p. 250-251.	1859 Feb 26
b. 57	Westminster Review, 71, p. 486-512.	1859 Apr
b. 57	Emile Montégut, "Le roman réaliste en Angleterre" in Revue des deux mondes, Il 21, p. 867-897 [p. 867- 894 missing).	1859 Jun 15
	c. THE MILL ON THE FLOSS	1860
b. <b>57</b>	The Times, [E. S. Dallas]	1860 May 19
	d. THE SPANISH GYPSY	1868
b. 57	Macmillan's Magazine, 18, p. 281-287.	1868
	e. MIDDLEMARCH	1873
b. <b>57</b>	Quarterly Review, 134, p. 336-369.	1873
b. <b>57</b>	St. Paul's Magazine, 12, p. 592-616.	1873
	f. DANIEL DERONDA	1876
b. 57	Wilhelm Scherer in Deutsche Rundschau, 10, p. 240-255.	1877
b. 57	R. E. Francillon in Gentleman's Magazine, 17, p. 410-427.	1876
b. 57	J. Jacobs in Macmillan's Magazine, 36, p. 101-111.	1877
b. 57	E. P. Whipple in North American Review, 124, p. 31-52.	1877
b. 57	Unidentified, headed "Literature of the Day," p. 645-648.	1876
	g. General reviews:	
b. 57	National Review, 11, p. 191-219.	1860
b. 57	Standard.	[June 1876?]

### 2. Reviews of GE's works. > g. General reviews: (continued)

b. <b>57</b>	J. Morley, Macmillan's Magazine, 14, p. 272-279.	1866
b. 57	James Sully, Mind, 6, p. 378-394.	1881
b. 57	Edward Dowden, Contemporary Review, 20, p. 403-422.	1872
b. 57	Edward Dowden, Contemporary Review, 29, p. 348-369.	1877
b. 57	Miss C. H. Spence, Melbourne Review p. [146]-163.	1876 Apr
b. 57	Unidentified. "Realistic Novelists," p. 200-224.	
	3. Blackwood, Wm. & Sons.	
	Estimates of the cost of publishing GE's works	
	See: correspondence with Wm. Blackwood & Sons.	
b. <b>57</b>	Scenes from Clerical Life	[1859]
b. <b>57</b>	Adam Bede, Mill on the Floss, Silas Marner, Felix Holt.	1866
b. 57	Middlemarch	1872-1873
b. 57	Cabinet Edition of Works, 2 pieces.	n.d.
b. 57	Cheap Edition of 5 novels.	n.d.
	4. Blackwood, Wm. & Sons.	
b. <b>57</b>	Statement of sales of GE's works 23 pieces.	1861–1885
	Tinker 959	
	5. Memoranda of stocks and bonds.	
b. <b>57</b>	a. Register of Investments: autograph list by John Walter Cross with a few entries by GE and later entries by Cross. 90 p. 21 cm.	1879 Mar
b. 57	b. "Schedule of Stock $\&$ Share Certificates belonging to Mrs. Lewes," with marginal notes by GE. 1 p. 33 cm.	1878 May 1
b. 57	c. "Memorandum of Property deposited with The Union Bank of London Charing Cross Branch in the name of Mrs. M. E. Lewes." 1 p. 34 cm.	1880 Apr 24
b. 57	d. "To the Holders of India £4 per- Cent Stock": printed notice, endorsed by C. L. Lewes: "Mrs. Müllers Trust" [probably Mrs. Eduard Müller, wife of the headmaster of Hofwyl School].	1887 Apr 19
b. 57	6. Certified copy of the record of GE's baptism, 29 April 1819. Signed by G. R. Pennington, Chilvers Coton, 30 April 1881. 1 p.	1881 Apr 30
b. <b>57</b>	7. Deed of declaration adopting the surname of Lewes in addition to the name of Evans. Signed Mary Ann Evans and witnessed by Charles Lee Lewes, with envelope addressed by GE. 2 p. 33 cm.	1879 Jan 31
b. <b>57</b>	8. Photocopies of extracts from the settlement by GE on her marriage to J. W. Cross and from her will, pre- pared by Duncan, Warren and Gardner, solicitors, 8 p. 32 cm.	1880 May 04-1881 February 09

b. <b>57</b>	9. Photocopy of the announcement in <i>The Times</i> of GE's marriage to J. W. Cross. 1 card. 10.5 cm.	1880 May 8
	10. London Cemetery Company.	
b. <b>57</b>	Receipt for GE's burial charges, paid by J. W. Cross	1880 Dec 27
b. <b>57</b>	Account of GE's funeral, from <i>The Times</i> .	1880 Dec 30
b. 57	11. Agreement between Mrs. Elinor Ouvry and Mary Margaret Paterson about George Eliot's Family Life and Letters by Arthur Henry Paterson. 2 p.	1928 Feb 14
	12. Letters to Ernest Carrington Ouvry about Arthur Paterson's <i>George Eliot's Family Life and Letters</i> from:	
b. <b>57</b>	a. The Author's Syndicate, signed by Margaret Sanders.	1928 Jan 30
b. <b>57</b>	b. William Archibald Spooner, 1844-1930.	1928 Apr 10
b. 57	c. Ernest Barker.	1928 Apr 18
b. 57	d. Lord Bertie of Thame.	1928 Apr 23
b. <b>57</b>	13. Reviews of Arthur Henry Paterson's <i>George Eliot's Family Life and Letters</i> mounted in red notebook.	1928
	14. The Spectator.	1932 July 23-1932 September 17
	Clippings of correspondence about GE and the Lewes family by:	
b. <b>57</b>	Adamson Mary M. p. 111	
	Adamson, Mary M., p. 111	Jul 23
b. <b>57</b>	Matthews, Hubert B.	Jul 23
b. 57 b. 57		Jul 23
	Matthews, Hubert B.	Jul 23
b. 57	Matthews, Hubert B.  Gardner, Charles	
b. 57 b. 57	Matthews, Hubert B.  Gardner, Charles  Matthews, Hubert B., p. 155	
b. 57 b. 57 b. 57	Matthews, Hubert B.  Gardner, Charles  Matthews, Hubert B., p. 155  Church, Richard	Jul 30
b. 57 b. 57 b. 57 b. 57	Matthews, Hubert B.  Gardner, Charles  Matthews, Hubert B., p. 155  Church, Richard  G., M., p. 234	Jul 30 Aug 20
b. 57 b. 57 b. 57 b. 57	Matthews, Hubert B.  Gardner, Charles  Matthews, Hubert B., p. 155  Church, Richard  G., M., p. 234  Ouvry, Elinor Southwood (Lewes) p. 344	Jul 30 Aug 20
b. 57 b. 57 b. 57 b. 57 b. 57	Matthews, Hubert B.  Gardner, Charles  Matthews, Hubert B., p. 155  Church, Richard  G., M., p. 234  Ouvry, Elinor Southwood (Lewes) p. 344  Manuscript letters relating to the correspondence in The Spectator:	Jul 30 Aug 20 Sep 17
b. 57 b. 57 b. 57 b. 57 b. 57	Matthews, Hubert B.  Gardner, Charles  Matthews, Hubert B., p. 155  Church, Richard  G., M., p. 234  Ouvry, Elinor Southwood (Lewes) p. 344  Manuscript letters relating to the correspondence in The Spectator:  Adamson, Mary M., ALS to Mrs. Ouvry.	Jul 30 Aug 20 Sep 17 1932 Jul 30
b. 57	Matthews, Hubert B.  Gardner, Charles  Matthews, Hubert B., p. 155  Church, Richard  G., M., p. 234  Ouvry, Elinor Southwood (Lewes) p. 344  Manuscript letters relating to the correspondence in The Spectator:  Adamson, Mary M., ALS to Mrs. Ouvry.  Ouvry, Elinor. Draft of a letter to Mary M. Adamson.	Jul 30  Aug 20  Sep 17  1932 Jul 30  1932 Aug
b. 57	Matthews, Hubert B.  Gardner, Charles  Matthews, Hubert B., p. 155  Church, Richard  G., M., p. 234  Ouvry, Elinor Southwood (Lewes) p. 344  Manuscript letters relating to the correspondence in The Spectator:  Adamson, Mary M., ALS to Mrs. Ouvry.  Ouvry, Elinor. Draft of a letter to Mary M. Adamson.  Adamson, Mary M., ALS to Mrs. Ouvry.	Jul 30  Aug 20  Sep 17  1932 Jul 30  1932 Aug  1932 Sep 18  1932 Sep 18  1959 Jul 3

b. <b>57</b>	16. Taylor, Don. "The Confessions of Marian Evans. A Portrait of George Eliot."  Typescript of the dramatization pre- sented on BBC television. 63 p.	1969 Nov 23
b. <b>57</b>	17. Currey, Stella Martin. "Scenes from an Improper Life." Program for the dramatization pre- sented at Leamington Theatre, April 19-22, 24-29, 1972.	1972 April 19-1972 April 29
b. <b>57</b>	18. Questions about the original manuscript of Middlemarch.	
b. 57	19. "A Hundred Years after 'Middlemarch.'  Offering the corrected proofs of the works of George Eliot from the Archives of the Publishers William Blackwood and Sons, Ltd. 1857-1880." Catalogue of Lew David Feldman, House of El Dieff, Inc.	
b. 58-59	20. Haight, Gordon S.  George Eliot. A Biography. Author's corrected typescript and proof sheets of the biography published by the Oxford University Press in 1968.  Gift of Gordon S. Haight, 1974.	
b. 60	21. Tee, G.J. "Sof'ya Vasil'yevna Kovalevskaya". Offprint from <i>Mathematical Chronicle</i> , v.5, 1976-77. Gift of the author.	1976–1977
b. 60	22. Miscellaneous articles about GE 7 items.	
b. 60	23. Payne, John Burnell Typescript of his notes of a conver- sation with George Eliot.	

# Section IX. George Eliot. SPECIAL FILES

b. <b>61</b>	1. Blank writing paper of GE The Priory, 21 North Bank, Regents Park. 3 sheets, folded. The Heights, Witley, nr.	
	Godalming. 1 half-sheet. 1 plain envelope.	
b. <b>61</b>	2. Calling card of Mr. & Mrs. Cross	
	The Heights, Witley.	
b. <b>61</b>	3. Photograph of GE's blotter, with extracts from various authors, notes for poems, etc., mounted in a folder.	
	26 cm. Three smaller pieces of genuine GE blotting paper laid in. 19 cm.	
	4. Photographs of GE or said to be of GE	
	a. Originals in the National Portrait Gallery:	
b. <b>61</b>	No. 669 Chalk drawing by F. W. Burton. 5 copies.	1865
b. <b>61</b>	No. 1232 Watercolor by Mrs. C. Bray. 2 copies.	1842
b. <b>61</b>	No. 1405 Copy of a portrait by F. D'Albert Durade, the original of which is in the Gulson Library, Coventry.	1849
b. <b>61</b>	No. 1758 Pencil sketch by Lady Alma-Tadema.	1877
b. <b>61</b>	No. 2210 Drawing by Margaret Gillies?	
b. <b>61</b>	No. 2211 Pencil sketch by Lady Alma-Tadema.	n.d.
b. <b>61</b>	No. 2645 Silhouette, artist unknown. Not GE	n.d.
b. <b>61</b>	b. Glass negative of D'Albert Durade's portrait of GE, made by Howard A. Kelly.	
b. <b>61</b>	c. Photograph of a painting by Sophus Williams.	
b. <b>61</b>	d. Photograph of GE made by the London Stereoscopic and Photographic Company, 2 copies.	
b. <b>61</b>	e. Photograph of pencil sketch by GE made by Princess Louise. The original in the possession of Mrs. Reginald Allen, New York City.	1879 Mar 16
b. 61	f. Photograph of a chalk drawing of GE by Samuel Laurence.	1860
b. <b>61</b>	g. J. W. Cross's framed copy of Rajon's etching from the 1858 photograph.	
b. <b>61</b>	h. Profile, with lace head-covering.	
b. <b>61</b>	i. Full face, with hood. Not GE.	
b. 62	j. Two pencil sketches of GE by Barbara Bodichon pasted on flyleaves of Romola.	1877
	5. Photographs of GE's homes	
b. 63	a. Doorway of Griff House, Chilvers Coton.	
b. 63	b. Brookbank, Shottermill.	

## 5. Photographs of GE's homes (continued)

b. 63	c. Witley, The Heights.	
	6. Poems written to or sent to GE	
	Anonymous:	
	a.	
b. <b>63</b>	1. O painter, match an English bloom	1873
b. 63	2. Why should I strive to express it?	1874
b. 63	3. And Love?-thine heart imagined1875	
b. 63	4. O when through all the crowd	1876
b. 63	5. And all is over	1877
b. <b>63</b>	b. Her eyes were like two quiet stars	1854
b. 63	c. T. George Eliot, signed A. E. I.	
b. 63	d. Written in North Wales.	
b. 63	e. To the Author of George Eliot's Gospel.	1874
b. 63	f. To the Writer of "How we reward research"!	1879
b. 63	g. [Poem in German] "Noch gläntze im warmenden Sonnenlicht"	
b. 63	h. [Poem in German] "Welch' tiefer Ton dringt an das Ohr?"	
b. 63	i. "Paraphrase on a part of the conclusion of The Mill on the Floss".	
b. 63	j. Sigrutz, Karl. "The Spanish Gipsey by George Elliot".	
b. 63	k. Stanzas from J. R. Lowell's <i>The Present Crisis</i> .	
b. 63	I. Brontë, Emily. "Remembrance".	[1879 Dec 18]
	Copy made by Mrs. Hans William Sotheby and sent to GE.	
b. 63	7. Analysis of the water at Witley	1879 Jun 29
b. 63	8. Quotation from <i>Middlemarch</i> used as subject for an essay on the "Examination for First Appointments to the Cavalry and Infantry".	1874 Aug 15
b. 63	9. signed by A.V.A. Water color illustration labelled "Daniel Deronda may he come in?"	
	In portfolio in bottom drawer.	
b. 63	10. Braddon, Paul. Eight water color sketches of places connected with GE in folder labelled "Reminiscences of George Eliot". 8 X 10 inches.	
	In portfolio in bottom drawer.	
	11.	
b. 63	a. Announcements, programs, etc. for The George Eliot Centennial Conference at the University of Puget Sound, 4 pieces.	1980 April 10-1980 April 12

#### 11. (continued)

b. 63	b. George Eliot. An exhibition at the British Library.	1980 December 11-1981 April 26
b. 63	c. Daniel Waley. George Eliot's Blotter. 2 copies.	
b. 63	d. Commemorative stamps of George Eliot, Charlotte Brontë, Emily Brontë and Mrs. Gaskell, with an enlarged photograph of the GE stamp. 5 pieces.	
b. 63	e. Westminster Abbey. Unveiling and dedication of a memorial to George Eliot. With ticket of admission. 2 pieces.	1980 Jun 21
b. 63	f. Gordon Haight's speech in Westminster Abbey on 21 June, when a memorial stone to George Eliot was unveiled. Photocopy of the speech printed in the London Review of Books, 17 July - 6 August 1980.	
b. 63	12. "Memorandum Book of Occurences [!] at Nuneaton": transcript of an anonymous journal in the Nuneaton Public Library. 1810-45 (1838-June 1843 lacking). 168 pages. Accompanied by a manuscript list ("from Mrs. Dodds 18 Sept 1950") of the most striking events in the journal.	1810-1845
b. 63	13. The George Eliot Fellowship. Miscellaneous announcements, photographs, clippings, reports, etc.	1953-1973
	The George Eliot Fellowship Review, No. 1, June 1970- See: <u>1984 +S18</u> . This item has been catalogued separately.	

# Section X. George Henry Lewes. SPECIAL FILES

#### 1. Articles and stories: printed and proofs

b. 64	a. "Attention."  Proof of an article printed by the <i>Contemporary Review</i> but never published, nor was it used in the section on attention in <i>Problems of Life and Mind</i> , 3rd series, 1879, p. 184-196.	
b. 64	b. "The coming reformation."  Four parts signed Vivian [GHL] and published in <i>Douglas Jerrold's Shilling Magazine</i> (May-August 1847) 436-448, 509-519, 35-45, 168-176.	1847 May-1847 August
b. 64	c. "The course of modern thought"  Fortnightly Review, 21, [317]-327.	1877 Apr
b. 64	d. "Dickens in relation to criticism."  Fortnightly Review, 11, [141]-154.	1872 Feb
b. 64	e. "The gallant glazier."  Douglas Jerrold's Shilling Magazine, 517-534.	1847 Dec
b. 64	f. "Modern French literature."  The Topic, [85]-98.	1846 Aug 29
b. <b>64</b>	g. "Motor-feeling and the muscular sense."  Second revise proof, printed by Wm. Clowes & Son. <i>Problems of Life and Mind</i> , 1879, 3rd series, Problem III, ch. 7, p. 312-325, uses parts of it, mostly rewritten.	1878 Mar 28
b. 64	h. "A night in a German swamp."  Douglas Jerrold's Shilling Magazine, 161-171.	1847 Feb
b. 64	i. "On the dread and dislike of science."  Fortnightly Review, 23, [805]-815.	1878 Jun 1
b. 64	j. "Spiritualism and materialism."  Fortnightly Review, 19, (1 April 1876) [479]-493, 19, (1 May 1876) [707]-719.	1876
b. 64	k. "Trust not your eyes in love" (followed by) "Men of thought and men of action."  Douglas Jerrold's Shilling Magazine, 499-533.	1848 Jun
b. <b>64</b>	2. Hamlet.  Notes for lectures on Hamlet. Passages cut from printed text with manuscript notes interpolated. 46 [i.e. 40] p. in paper cover marked "Hamlet."	
b. 64	3. Syllabus of a course of six lectures on the history of philosophical specu-lation, ancient and modern. Printed syllabus of lectures given at the Liverpool Mechanics Institution in February 1849.	
	4. Estimates and statements of sales of his books.	1862-1899
b. 64	Estimates, 2 pieces.	1862, n.d.

#### 4. Estimates and statements of sales of his books. (continued)

b. 64	Sales by Trübner & Co., 14 pieces.	1877–1889
b. 64	Other sales, 4 pieces.	1875–1899
	5. Reviews of <i>The Life and Works of Goethe</i>	
b. 64	a. Literary Gazette	1855 Nov 3
b. 64	b. Athenaeum	1855 Nov 10
b. 64	c. Schöll, Adolf. Weimarer Sontags - Blat. 13 and 27	1857 Dec
b. 64	d. Siegfried, Heinrich. An G.H. Lewes eine Epistel. Berlin.	1858
b. 64	e. Duntzer, H. <i>Allgemeiner Zeitung</i>	1858 Apr 26
	6. Reviews of <i>Problems of Life and Mind</i> :	
b. 64	a. "Mr. Lewes and Metaphysics" in unidentified periodical. p. 104-137.	
b. 64	b. Clifford, W. K. <i>Academy</i>	1874 Feb 7
b. 64	c. Ward, James. <i>Academy</i> p. 237-239.	1878 Mar 16
b. 64	d. Ward, James. <i>Academy</i> p. 349-350.	1878 Apr 20
b. 64	e. <i>Athenaeum</i> p. 397-398.	1879 Sep 27
b. 64	f. Spalding, Douglas A. <i>Examiner</i> p. 261-262.	1874 Mar 14
b. 64	g. Sully, James. <i>Examiner</i> p. 773-774.	1875 Jul 10
b. <b>64</b>	h. Sully, James. <i>Examiner</i> p. 803-804.	1875 Jul 17
b. 64	i. Harrison, Frederic. <i>Fortnightly</i> 16, p. 89-101.	(1874)
b. 64	j. Courtney, William L. <i>Fortnightly</i> 26, p. 318-328.	(1879)
b. 64	k. [Proof] Revue Scientifique	(1877)
b. 64	I. Saturday Review, p. 301-302	1875 Sep 4
b. 64	m. Saturday Review, p. 84-85.	1879 Jul 19

7. Obituary notices

### 7. Obituary notices (continued)

b. 64	a. Harrison, Frederic. <i>Academy</i> p. 543-544.	1878 Dec 7
b. 64	b. Bartling, Heinrich. Allgemeine Literarische Correspondenz, p. 1-2.	1879 Apr 1
b. 64	c. Daily News	1878 Dec 3
b. 64	d. Echo	1878 Dec 2
b. 64	e. Buchanan, Robert. <i>Examiner</i> , p. 1551.	1878 Dec 7
b. 64	f. Sully, James. New Quarterly Magazine, p. 356-376.	1879 Oct
b. 64	g. Delboeuf, M. J. Revue Scientifique, p. 730-733.	1879 Feb 1
b. 64	h. The Times	1878 Dec 3
b. 64	i. Unidentified. 2 items.	
	8. George Henry Lewes Studentship, University of Cambridge, founded by George Eliot in 1879.	
	a. Letters, etc., relating to the founding of the studentship:	
b. 64	1. Balfour, Francis Maitland, 1851-1882. ALS to Sir Michael Forster, 7 p.	[1879]
b. <b>64</b>	2. Dyer, William T. Thistleton. Memorandum, 11 p.	[1879]
b. 64	3. Eliot, George. Draft of a plan for the studentship. 3 p.	[1879]
b. 64	4. Forster, Sir Michael, 1836- 1907. 3 ALS to GE, with 2 drafts of plans. May 21, 26, and Jun 10. 2, 4, 4, 6, 9 p.	1879 May-1879 June
b. 64	5. Huxley, Thomas Henry Comments on a proposal for the studentship. 2 p.	
b. 64	6. Paget, Sir James, 1814-1899. ALS to GE, 3 p.	1879 May 24
b. 64	7. Pye-Smith, Philip H., Memorandum, 7 p.	1879 May 8
b. 64	8. Sidgwick, Henry, 5 ALS to GE. March 2, 4, 12, May 8, 16. 8, 2, 4, 3, 4 p.	1879 March-1879 May
b. 64	9. Sidgwick, Henry. ALS to Sir Michael Forster.	[1879] Apr 10
b. 64	10. Warren, Charles Harris, 2 ALS to GE. 4, 3 p.	1879 Jul 1
b. <b>64</b>	11. Printed "Extract from the Conditions under which is constituted a Studentship of Physiology founded in Memory of George Henry Lewes." 2 p.	1879 Jul 26
b. 64	12. Printed "Trust Deed of the "'George Henry Lewes' Studentship." 4 p. 2 copies.	
b. 64	13. Roy, Charles Smart. (the first GHL Student) 2 ALS to GE 12, 4 p.	1879 Nov 17, 1880 Aug 13

## 8. George Henry Lewes Studentship, University of Cambridge, foun [...] (continued)

b. 64	b. Letters from applicants for the Studentship:	1879 Sep
	1. A., the Rev. M. 2. Allen, Frank J. 3. Anderson, L. 4. Bailey, T. R. 5. Bellhouse, F. W. 6. Cameron, W. J. 7. Combs, Annie L. 8. Cooper, Henry Charles Evans 9. Draper, John B., with copies of 3 testimonials	
	10. Emmett, R. B. 11. Field, John 12. Harris, D. P. 13. Heath, Alice 14. Huson - More, J. 15. Kempe, C. P. 16. Kent, W. Saville, with printed testimonials 17. Logan, J. R. 18. Mead, George B. 19. Newman, James H.	
	20. North, W. 21. Osborn, Ada E. 22. Payne, Georgianna 23. Plummer, H. G. 24. Radford, William 25. Smith, W. F. 26. Waters, W. H. 27. Wheatley, Arthur 28. Younge, George Harrison	
b. 64	With 2 newspaper cuttings inviting applications	1924, 1928
b. 64	c. Correspondence between Ernest Carrington Ouvry and the University of Cambridge relating to the GHL Studentship.	1947-1948
	11 items, including one leaf of notes by Mrs. Ouvry, a list of some of the early Students, and a printed announcement of the vacant Studentship on 1 October 1946.	
	d. Photographs and drawings of GHL.	
b. 64	1. Sketch by Anna Gliddon. Photocopy of the original in the National Portrait Gallery. No. 1373.	1840
b. <b>64</b>	2. Sketch of Agnes Jervis Lewes, George Henry Lewes, and Thornton Leigh Hunt, about 1844. Photocopy of a pencil sketch by W. M. Thackeray in the National Portrait Gallery.	c. 1844
b. 64	3. Sketch by Rudolf Lehman, dated. Photocopy of the original in the Nuneaton Public Library.	1867 Jun 20
b. 64	4. Photograph by Elliott & Fry.	
b. 64	5. Photograph by Mayall.	
9. A	articles about Lewes	
b. 64	a. Noble, D. George Henry Lewes, George Eliot and the Physiological Society. Removed from The Journal of Physiology, December 1976, vol. 263, no. 1, p. 45P-54P.	1976 Dec

## Section XI. May 2022 Addition

1.25 linear feet (3 boxes)

Section XI contains correspondence from George Eliot, George Henry Lewes, John Walter Cross, and others; newspaper clippings relating to Eliot and Lewes; Eliot's writings; two pencil sketches of Eliot; and other papers.

Acquired from various sources, 1985-2019. For further information consult the appropriate curator.

Former call numbers: Uncat MS Vault 653, Uncat MS Vault 715, and Uncat MS Vault 745.

Section XI is organized into three groupings: I. Correspondence, 1833-1918. II. Writings, 1853-1880. III. Other Papers, 1842-1919.

	Correspondence	1833-1918
	Letters by GEORGE ELIOT to:	
	Arranged alphabetically by correspondent.	
b. 65	Barclay, Martha (Jackson) (Mrs. Henry Barclay)	1840 February 27
b. 65	Belloc, Elizabeth [Bessie] Rayner (Parkes) (Mrs. Louis Belloc) 1829-1925	1861 July 12
	Benzon, Elizabeth Lehmann	
b. <b>65</b>	Letter	1870 September 22
b. <b>65</b>	Letter	1871 March 27
b. <b>65</b>	Letter	1873 March 28
b. <b>65</b>	Letter	undated
b. 65	Letter	undated
b. 65	Blackwood, William, 1836-1912	1879 May 17
b. 65	Bond, Edward Augustus, 1815-1898	1864 April 27
b. 65	Brabant, Robert Herbert	circa 1851-1853
	Bray, Charles, 1811-1884	
b. <b>65</b>	Letter	1857 November 10
b. 65	Letter	1875 February 25
b. 65	D'Albert-Durade, Alexandre Louis François, 1804-1886	1873 August 9
b. <b>65</b>	Harrison, Frederic, 1831-1923	1868 December 24
b. <b>65</b>	Holland, Margaret Jean (Trevelyan), Lady	1876 December 15
b. <b>65</b>	Hoole, Elijah [?]	1877 February 2

## Correspondence > Letters by GEORGE ELIOT to: (continued)

b. <b>65</b>	Houghton, Frances [Fanny] Lucy (Evans), 1805-1882 (Mrs. Henry Houghton)	1869
	Envelope only.	
b. <b>65</b>	Knowles, James Thomas	1874 February 11
b. <b>65</b>	Lehmann, Emil, 1829-1898	July 5
b. <b>65</b>	Lehmann, Nina (Chambers) (Mrs. Frederick Lehmann)	undated
b. <b>65</b>	Leighton of Stretton, Frederic Leighton, Baron, 1830-1896	1862 June 4?
b. <b>65</b>	Lytton, Edith Villiers, Countess of	undated
b. 65	Malleson, Elizabeth (Whitehead), 1828-1916 (Mrs. Frank Rodbard Malleson)	1871 December 25
b. <b>65</b>	Macquoid, Katharine S. (Mrs. Thomas R. Macquoid)	1877 December 25
b. <b>65</b>	Simon, Mrs.	1871 March 11
b. <b>65</b>	"Sir Henry"	1879 April 2
b. <b>65</b>	Strangford, Emily Anne Beaufort Smythe, Viscountess, -1887	1877 [?] June 27
b. <b>65</b>	Williams, Sydney	1859 December 19
b. <b>65</b>	Unidentified recipient	1866 February 24
	Letters by GEORGE HENRY LEWES to:	
	Arranged alphabetically by correspondent.	
b. <b>65</b>	Beesly, Edward Spencer, 1831-1915	1865 May 9
b. <b>65</b>	Benzon, Elizabeth Lehmann	circa 1875 August
b. <b>65</b>	Clifford, William Kingdon, 1845-1879	undated
b. <b>65</b>	"Dear Sir"	1871 January 10
b. <b>65</b>	"Dear Sir"	undated
b. <b>65</b>	"Dear Sir"	undated
b. <b>65</b>	"Miss Field"	undated
b. 65	"Gentlemen"	1858 November 7
b. <b>65</b>	"Gentlemen"	1873 August 27
b. <b>65</b>	"Gentlemen"	undated
b. 65	Grove, George, 1820-1900	1865 December 29

#### Correspondence > Letters by GEORGE HENRY LEWES to: (continued)

#### Harper, Messrs. and Brothers

b. 65	Letter	1879 June 3
b. <b>65</b>	Letter	1897 December 31
b. 65	Letter	1898 December 1
b. 65	Holden, James	1869 June
b. 65	Kemble, John M.	undated
b. <b>65</b>	Lehmann, Frederick	undated
b. 65	Lewes, Charles Lee, 1842-1891	1871 August 10
b. 65	Lockyer, Norman, 1836-1920	1871
b. 65	Longman, William	1846
b. <b>65</b>	Low, Sampson	before 1874 April 13
b. 65	Lucas, James	undated
b. 65	"Madame la Comtesse"	1877 April 13
b. 65	Morley, John, 1838-1923	undated
	Patterson, Robert Hogarth, 1821-1886	
b. 65	Letter	undated
b. 65	Letter	undated
b. <b>65</b>	Letter	undated
b. <b>65</b>	Payne, [Joseph Frank]	[1869 January 25]
b. 65	Pigott, Edward Frederick Smyth, 1824-1895	undated
b. 65	Trübner, Mrs. Nicolaus	undated
b. 65	"Vivian"	undated
b. 65	Walker, Henry	1858 January 14
b. 65	Webster, Benjamin Nottingham, 1797-1882	1854
b. 65	Autographs cut from correspondence	undated
b. 65	Autographs cut from correspondence	undated

Letters to/about GEORGE ELIOT & GEORGE HENRY LEWES Arranged alphabetically by correspondent.

Bray, Caroline (Hennell), 1814-1905

# $\label{lem:correspondence} Correspondence > Letters \ to/about \ GEORGE \ ELIOT \ \& \ GEORGE \ HENRY \ LEWES > Bray, Caroline \ (Hennell), 1814-1905 \ (continued)$

b. <b>65</b>	Letter to Sara Sophia Hennell	1847 December 26
b. <b>65</b>	Letter to Sara Sophia Hennell	1848 July
b. 65	Letter to Sara Sophia Hennell	undated
b. <b>65</b>	Chapman, Susanna (Brewitt) to George Eliot	1850 November 8
	Cross, J. W. (John Walter), 1840-1924	
b. 65	Letter to Rev. A. D. Spong	1881 March 9
b. 65	Letter to "Mrs. Evans"	1881 July 19
b. <b>65</b>	Letter to Elizabeth Rayner (Parkes) Belloc	1881 December 23
b. <b>65</b>	Letter to Lady Elizabeth Northcote	1905 February 28
b. <b>65</b>	Letter to "Mrs. Prullimore"	1916 March 29
b. <b>65</b>	Evans, Isaac Pearson, 1816-1890 to J. W. Cross	1884 August 15
b. 65	Hall, John C. letter to George Eliot	1878 January 3
b. <b>65</b>	Lytton, Edward Bulwer Lytton, Baron, 1803-1873 to George Henry Lewes	1845 March 12
	Former call number: MS Vault Shelves Lytton	
b. <b>65</b>	Muirhead, James F. (James Fullarton), 1853-1934 to "Dear Sir"	1918 February 24
b. <b>65</b>	Rajou, F. to J. W. Cross	1881 September 23
b. 65	Scharf, George, 1820-1895 to J. W. Cross	1883 February 23
	Wood, Frederick M.	
b. <b>65</b>	Letter to E. Herford	1859 April 30
b. <b>65</b>	Letter to E. Herford	1859 August 27
b. <b>65</b>	[Illegible] to J. W. Cross	1892 December 2
b. <b>65</b>	Unidentified to Sara Sophia Hennell	1861 April 13
	Writings	1853-1880
b. <b>66</b>	George Eliot synopsis of Hecuba of Euripides	circa 1860
b. 66	Journal in the hand of George Eliot and Sara S. Hennell	circa 1853-1872
b. 66	Volume of seven essays from Westminster Review and other periodicals with manuscript revisions	circa 1879-1880

Other Papers		1842-1919
b. <b>67</b>	Ceramic dog  Dog figurine given to George Eliot by John Blackwood on 1862 January 1, after the loss of Pug.	
b. <b>66</b>	Newspaper clippings relating to George Eliot and John Walter Cross	circa 1893-1919
b. 66	Portrait of George Eliot Pencil sketch of George Eliot by Caroline Hennell Bray.	circa 1842
b. <b>66</b>	Portrait of George Eliot  Pencil sketch drawn by Princess Louise, Duchess of Argyll, of George Eliot.  Sketch is on the back cover of a program for the Royal Normal College and Academy of Music for the Blind.	1879 March 16
b. 66	Receipt giving Chapman & Hall partial rights to the first edition of Ranthorp	e 1847 May 21
b. 66	Stationery (blank)	

## **Selected Search Terms**

The following terms have been used to index the description of this collection in the Library's online catalog. They are grouped by name of person or organization, by subject or location, and by occupation and listed alphabetically therein.

Lewes, George Henry, 1817-1878

## **Subjects**

Authors, English -- 19th century -- Archives Novelists, English -- 19th century -- Archives

## Genres / Formats

Diaries Photographic prints

## **Occupations**

Authors -- Great Britain -- 19th century

#### **Names**

Acton, John Emerich Edward Dalberg Acton, Baron. 1834-1902 Bodichon, Barbara Leigh Smith, 1827-1891 Bray, Caroline Hennell, 1814-1905 Bray, Charles, 1811-1884 Browning, Oscar, 1837-1923 Burne-Jones, Georgiana, Lady, 1840-1920 Chapman, John, 1822-1894 Cross, Anna Chalmers, 1813-1878 Cross, J. W. (John Walter), 1840-1924 D'Albert-Durade, Alexandre Louis Francois, 1804-1886 Eliot, George, 1819-1880 Harrison, Frederic, 1831-1923 Hennell, Sara S. Houghton, Frances Lucy Evans, 1805-1882 Lewes, Charles Lee, 1843-1891 Lewes, Edgar James, d. 1836? Lewes, George Henry, 1817-1878 Lewes, Gertrude Lewes, Herbert Arthur, 1846-1875 Lewes, Thornton Lewis, Maria, 1800?-1887 Lytton, Edward Robert Bulwer Lytton, Earl of, 1831-1891 Spencer, Herbert, 1820-1903 Trollope, Anthony, 1815-1882

#### **Contributors**

Eliot, George, 1819-1880